Haringey Council

Corporate Committee

MONDAY, 20TH JUNE, 2011 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, LONDON N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Meehan(Chair) Watson, Griffith, McNamara, Amin, Khan(Vice Chair) Gorrie,
Whyte, Jenks, Williams.

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE(IF ANY)
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any of any late items of urgent business.
(Late items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New
items will be dealt with atitems 2 & 19 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.



4,

5.

DEPUTATIONS/PETITION/ QUESTIONS

To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, Paragraph
29 of the Council’'s Constitution.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 -66) -[7.05]

To consider and approve the following minutes:
General Purposes Committee 29 March 2011
Special General Purposes Committee 18 April 2011
Special General Purposes Committee 04 May 2011
Special General Purposes Committee 19 May 2011

Audit Committee 19™ April 2011
Pensions Committee 12™ April 2011

Remuneration Committee 14 April 2011

CORPORATE COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE & PROTOCOLS (PAGES 67
- 74) - [7.10PM]

To note the terms of reference for the Corporate Committee, agreed at full Council on
the 23 May 2011 and note the Protocols for how the Committee will operate.

QUARTERLY PENSION FUND UPDATE INCLUDING INVESTMENT STRATEGY
REVIEW UPDATE (PAGES 75 - 82) — [7.15PM]

To report the following in respect of the quarter to 31st March 2011:

. Investment asset allocation and strategy
Investment performance

. Responsible investment activity

. Budget management

. Late payment of contributions

PENSION FUND GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT (PAGES 83 - 90)-
[7.30PM]

The committee to consider an updated draft of the Pension Fund Governance
Compliance Statement in compliance with the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Administration) Regulations 2008 and to consider the appointment of an independent
adviser to the Committee in relation to Pension Fund matters.

ACADEMIES - DEFICIT RECOVERY PERIODS - [7.45PM]



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The Committee to consider options for the deficit recovery period for new Academies
joining the Pension Fund as separate employers. Report to follow

GRANT THORNTON GRANT REPORT FOR 2009/10 (PAGES 91 - 132) —[8.05PM]

To report to the Committee the outcomes of the annual grant work by Grant Thornton
and to obtain approval for the action plan resulting from the report of the auditors.

PROGRESS UPDATE (PAGES 133 - 150) [8.35PM]
To consider Grant Thornton’s Audit Progress report for June 2011.

DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2010/11 (PAGES 151 - 164) —
[8.45PM]

To inform the Corporate Committee of the requirements of the statutory Annual
Governance Statement (AGS) and provide a draft statement relating to 2010/11 for
review and approval.

ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT AND ASSURANCE STATEMENT 2010/11 (PAGES 165 -
178) [9.00PM]

The report will inform members of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
system of internal control and risk management operating throughout 2010/11 and
present a summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion, including
reliance placed on work by other bodies. The report also fulfils the requirements of
the Committee’s terms of reference.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2010/11 OUT-TURN & QUARTER 1 2011/12 UPDATE
(PAGES 179 - 190) —[9.15PM]

The committee will receive information in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury
Management Code of Practice and the Prudential Code on the following matters:

e details of capital financing, borrowing, debt rescheduling and
investment transactions in 2010/11;

e an assessment of the risk implications of treasury decisions and
transactions;

e details of the outturn position on treasury management transactions
in 2010/11;

e Compliance with treasury limits and Prudential Indicators.

The report will further update members on treasury management activity during the
first quarter of 2011/12.

RESTRUCTURING OF THE PLANNING REGENERATION & ECONOMY SERVICE
(PR&E) [9.25PM]



The Committee will be asked to agree to the proposed restructuring of the Planning
Regeneration and Economy Service (PRE) following formal consultation with staff
and their Trade Unions. Report to follow

16. ESTABLISHING A SHARED ECONOMIC SERVICE (PAGES 191 - 226) [9.40PM]
The report will seek approval to establish the new shared Economic Development
Service for Haringey and Waltham Forest following the formal consultation with staff
and their Trades Unions.

17. EXEMPT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
The following items were subject of a motion to exclude the press and public from
the meeting as they contained exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the
Local Government 1972; namely information likely to reveal the identity of an
individual, and information relating to any individual.

18. EXEMPT MINUTES (PAGES 227 - 258) [9.55PM]
To consider the Exempt minutes of the following meetings
Special Committee 29 March 2011

Special Committee 04 April 2011
Special Committee 19 April 2011

Special General Purposes Committee 19™ May 2011
Pensions Committee 12 April 2011
Council and Employee Joint Consultative Committee 01 Feb 2011 &31 March 2011.
Remuneration 14 April 2011
Minutes of Staff Disciplinary Appeals and Grievance Hearings
7 April 2011
03 May 2011
09 May 2011
19. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT EXEMPT BUSINESS

The Committee to consider any new items of exempt urgent business.



David McNulty

Head of Local Democracy
and Member Services
Level 5

River Park House

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Ayshe Simsek

Principal Committee Co-ordinator
Level 5

River Park House

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Tel: 020 8489 2929
Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk

Circulated 10 June 2011



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 5

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 29 MARCH 2011

Councillors

Apologies

Meehan (Chair), Khan, Waters and Whyte

Councillor Wilson, Bloch and Rice

Also Present: Councillor Williams, Councillor Browne, Stuart Young, Mun Thong

Phung, Anne Lippitt, Steve Davies, Jean Croot, Martin Tucker.

MINUTE

NO. SUBJECT/DECISION

GPCO110, APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rice, Wilson and Bloch.
Councillors Browne and Williams substituted in accordance with the Constitution
rules on substitutions as set out in part 4, rules of procedures, section B,
Committee rules, and paragraph 55.

GPCO111) URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of urgent business submitted.

GPCO112 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest

GPCO113 DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS
None

GPCO114) MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING
The minutes of the meetings held on the 11" January, 25 January, 07 February,
15 February, 22 February, 10" March, and 22 March were agreed as correct
records.

GPCO115 NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
There were no new items of urgent business to be considered under this item.

GPCO116 STAFFING RESTRUCTURE REPORT FROM ADULTS, COMMUNITY AND

CULTURE SERVICES

The Director of Adult, Culture and Community introduced the report which set out
the proposed restructure of Adult services and Commissioning business unit and
Safeguarding & Strategic Services. Essentially these two services were merging
to become a single Adults service which would mean the deletion of one head of
service post. The new structure of the service would respond to :

e Promoting a borough where every adult had an equal chance of having a




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 29 MARCH 2011

healthy safe and fulfilling life

e The current challenges placed on adult social care which involved
considerable reductions in grant funding

e Changes within a framework of new policy directives from central
government

The service would in turn develop a clear balance within available resources, of
universal targeted and specialist provision, including the introduction of
personalisation. The report further set out the strategic direction and the priorities
for the service and listed the staffing restructures to be undertaken. Some of
these decisions were to be considered at a future committee meeting and others
proposed to be taken by delegated authority by the Director of the service in
consultation with the Chair of the General Purposes Committee. However,
following distribution of the report and consultation with the Employee side the
Director of Adults, Community and Culture service proposed that these delegated
decisions also be considered by the General Purposes Committee.

The Chair advised the Committee that this report should be treated as an interim
report as a number of the restructures outlined in the report were subject to
statutory consultation and decisions would, as previously reported, come back to
the Committee. The Committee were advised that further fuller report on the
staffing structures of the new directorate, Adults and Housing services would
follow to the Corporate Committee in late June /July.

RESOLVED

i.  That the overview of the current and proposed future shape of the service
and summary of the proposed restructures set out in appendix 1 be noted.

i. That the following reports be considered by the Committee on staffing
restructures and unit closures, on the conclusion of staff and public
consultation:

Alexandra Road Crisis unit

Adult Services drop in centres

The Haven

Woodside Day Centre

Six8Four Centre

Cranwood

The Red House

Broadwater Lodge

Whitehall Street

New Reablement Service

Realignment of the assessment and Personalisation Service

GPCO117

LOCAL DEMOCRACY AND MEMBER'S SERVICES REVIEW

The Assistant Chief Executive presented the report which set out the
reorganisation of Local Democracy and Member’s Services with the timetable for




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 29 MARCH 2011

implementation outlined in paragraph 7.5 of the report. The proposals involved
deleting 13 posts and the remaining structure provided 17 posts with greater or
lesser degrees of changes to job descriptions. The service offer to be provided by
the new structure was set out in page 54 of the agenda pack and a visual
presentation of the reorganised structure was also set out in Appendix 2 of the
interleaved report for members to consider. Staff consultation information along
with the trade union response to the consultation was also attached. Members
noted that ,where there were staff ringfenced for more than one position, they
would still undertake one interview and be asked to state their preference order
for the positions. The interview questions would be wide ranging to also reflect the
positions that were being applied for.

Members enquired about the future plans for mayoral transport .It was noted that
there would be a forthcoming review of mayoral transportation. The service had
already utilised on the expiry of the existing car lease by altering the
arrangements to allow less usage of motor transport. Travel to future mayoral
engagements, where motor transport was the only option, had been looked at and
it had been calculated that there would need to be provision of this to 70
engagements. The majority of the remaining engagements the Mayor was
envisaged to make independent transportation plans for.

The Committee were advised that a member appointment panel had that morning,
following an interview process, appointed David McNulty, to the post of Head of
Local Democracy and Member Services .

RESOLVED

i.  That the Member support Service offer from LDMS at appendix 3 be noted.

i.  That the staffing structure at appendix 2 be agreed taking into account the
responses to formal consultation detailed in paragraph 11 and appendix 5
and also paying due regard to the authority’s public sector equalities
duties.

GPCO118

HUMAN RESOURCES RESTRUCTURE

Members were asked to consider proposals for the restructure of the Council’s
Human Resources service in order to meet a Council approved level of savings of
£884k for the Human Resources and Personnel Services. The Committee were
advised that as a result of the Finance and HR Support Functions Reviews and
the Children’s business support and development review it had been identified
that the best configuration for these HR related services was to bring them
together and enable them report to the Head of Human Resources. It was noted
that as a result of this amalgamation the Head of Human Resources would be
responsible for :
e Schools Personnel
e Payroll work of officers in Leisure, Catering, Transport and Parking
/Enforcement services
e Schools Health and Safety Work
e SAP establishment maintenance work from the financial systems team in
Corporate Finance.

Members noted the current structure of the service set out in pages 84-86 and




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 29 MARCH 2011

proposed structure set out on page 88. The post which had been deleted were
further highlighted in Appendix B which were a summary of changed posts
including deleted posts.

The Head of Human Resources communicated some minor anomalies in the
report which did not impact on the final recommendations of the report. These
included:

e Appendix A - HR Support - there should be an additional scale 4 post
included in the new structure.

e Schools Payroll& Employee Admin — Schools Pay and admin team — the
single PO1 post should read PO2/3,SO2 post should be removed and
there were 5xSc6/SO1 in the new structure.

The Committee noted that Appendix F of the report contained mainly union
comments from Unison with some comments from the GMB union.

Members enquired about potential increased income for the service from sharing
recruitment services with Waltham Forest. It was noted that these discussions
were at an early stage with £20k of funding secured to take this investigation of
shared activity further forward.

Following the reduction in posts responsible for health and safety provision,
Members further sought assurances that the level of health and safety
management provision provided to schools would be maintained. It was
explained to the Committee that, the reduction in these posts was responding to
feedback in the consultation where this was highlighted as a savings area. The
Committee were informed that the Corporate Health and Safety manager would
be covering these duties and this post holder would ensure that the necessary
health and safety regulations were met.

The Committee were advised the due to pressing timescales to complete the
report the equalities impact assessment enclosed was not fully completed. The
Committee agreed to consider and agree the recommendations of the report
subject to considering the completed equalities impact assessment at their
meeting on the 19" May 2011.

RESOLVED

i. That the revised post changes and deletions detailed in Appendix B be
approved, taking into account the outcome of the consultation outlined in
Appendix F and paying due regard to the authority’s public sector
equalities duties.

i. That the revised service offer outlined in Appendix A be noted.

iii. That it be noted that the revised structure will predominantly be
implemented with effect from 1 October 2011 in recognition of the
considerable people change work that HR are supporting across the
Council. Where posts can be deleted in advance of 1 October without
impacts on service delivery support these will be actioned earlier.




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 29 MARCH 2011

iv.  That the level of savings levels to be achieved from the review in 2011/12
outlined in paragraph 11 be noted.

v. That the completed equalities impact assessment be considered at the
Committee meeting on the 19" May 2011.

GPCO119

YOUTH OFFENDING TEAM RESTRUCTURE

The report set out proposals for the restructuring of the Youth Offending Service
which was required to achieve the financial savings and remain within budget.
The Youth Justice Board had contributed to the compilation of the report and
recommendations . Several projects were due end by the end of March 2011 due
to the expiry of external grants and there was no alternative funding to continue
these projects. The staff involved were on fixed term contracts. The Youth Justice
Grant for 2011/12 has been reduced and the new structure has been drawn up to
reflect these reductions. The re-structure has been designed to have the least
effect as possible on services to young offenders and their families and to achieve
the Youth Justice Board indicators in relation to reducing the number of first time
entrants to the criminal justice system, reduce re-offending and reduce the use of
custody

There were 7 members of staff leaving the organisation through voluntary
redundancy and under the new structure the remaining staff would have a new
generic and flexible support role. The operational managers managing the service
would be reduced from three to two.

The Committee noted that the timing of the review did allow displaced staff from
the Youth Service to be considered for roles in the Youth Offending Service. The
Equalities Impact Assessment had been distributed to key stake holders including
Children and Young People’s Service. Responses had included a strong
recommendation to provide a Turkish speaking part time support worker to assist
with the contact. A further recommendation from the consultation was to convert
the part time reception worker to a full time post as there was a need to securely
and appropriately meet the young people who were attending the service. These
suggestions had been accommodated in the restructure proposals.

Clarification was sought on redundancy arrangements for the employees on fixed

term yearly contracts which were due to end. The Committee noted that these
employees would not receive a redundancy payment as they had been on fixed
term contracts for less than two years. Further to questions from the committee on
the number of these staff displaced , according to the previous structure this
would mean that 3 fixed term contract staff would be leaving the organisation.

The Committee noted that the revised grant allocation, that would contribute to
funding the service, was not ringfenced and expressed concern about the future
sustainability of the service should this funding not be agreed for this area. The
Committee were informed that there were strong recommendations for youth
justice work to continue to be funded and for it to remain a key priority of the
Council. It was also a legislative requirement to provide a health related post




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 29 MARCH 2011

working with young people and the PCT related funding would hopefully
contribute to funding a mental health worker in the Adults outreach team. The
service would nonetheless prepare for any eventuality together with making
strong recommendations to the Council and agencies to keep to previous
commitments to fund this vital service.

The Committee enquired about how staff in the new structure with a changed role
would be supported meet the requirements of their new generic job descriptions.
In response it was noted hat there would be in house training provided to staff to
help with the transition to their new roles.

RESOLVED

i.  Thatin principle the Youth Offending Service be restructured subject to the
outcome of consultation and consideration of the authority’s public sector
equality duties . Seven of the Youth Offending Staff had applied for and
been accepted for voluntary redundancy.

ii.  That the staff consultation which started on the 1% of March 2011 involving
staff members affected be completed, in line with the Council’s policy and
procedure, and comments received will be considered and responded to
accordingly.

iii.  That agreement be given for delegated decision making to the Chair of the
Committee in consultation with the Director of Urban Environment, taking
into account the consultation process and the authority’s public sector
equality duties, and providing nothing of a substantive matter arises during
or from the consultation period and process.

GPCO120

ESTABLISHING A SHARED ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICE

The report considered by the Committee sought approval for establishing a new
Shared Economic Development Service for Haringey and Waltham Forest
including the 30 day consultation period with staff and their Trades Unions. The
outline service description and proposed organisational chart and ring fenced
recruitment schedule were appended to the report for the Committee’s
consideration. This was potentially the first shared service with Waltham forest to
begin to be established. Work areas to be shared were programme management
team and core economic development with a reconfigured Haringey Guarantee
Delivery Team. There would be a total of 17 posts in the new shared service with
additional delivery and programme management posts to be created if and when
sub contracts for local delivery of the Work Programme were secured. Delivery
Team and Programme Officers, and the Film Officer posts would be Haringey
posts with Head of Economic Development, Economic Development Manager,
Economic Development Officers and Economic Development Support Officer
being shared service posts open to officers from Haringey and Waltham Forest.

The Committee enquired about the total cost of this shared service and what
amounts each borough would be contributing to the cost of the service. There
was further discussion on the work of the programme delivery team who had
been successful in generating funding for Haringey related programmes and




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 29 MARCH 2011

clarification was sought how they would work on Waltham Forest projects. It was
reported that there were a lesser number of delivery projects in Waltham Forest.
It was further estimated that there would be £500k allocated for Haringey
delivery programmes with £340k expenditure on staff. In terms of the Haringey
Guarantee programme, there would be additional programme management posts
created if the shared service was successful in obtaining sub contracts for local
delivery from the Government’s Work Programme scheme. It was noted that the
organisation of the Haringey Work Guarantee programme would remain in
Haringey. The Committee felt that it would be useful to have an understanding of
counterpart member views on this shared service and on its distribution of
responsibilities to understand if they were in favour of them or had concerns. It
was noted that there had been close working between Waltham Forest Council
and the Councils HESP team in compiling these proposals with both Council
Cabinets agreeing to the development of this shared service.

The members of the Committee were in agreement that the final report to
Committee which would be considered on the 19" May would need to contain
information on :

e Cost of the service and likely future cost

e The division of funding to the shared service and which part of the service
each borough'’s funding will contribute to

e The percentage of the work completed by the Shared Service for Waltham
Forest Council.

e Clarification on who the members of staff in the shared service will
ultimately be employed by.

e The benefits of being a partner in this shared service

The discussion indicated a strong need for a set of principle information in
reports on shared services which would respond to points such as those raised
above. The Chair agreed to discuss this further with the Chief Executive.

RESOLVED

i.  That the ongoing work on developing the new shared service including the
reduced Haringey Guarantee Delivery , Programme management and core
Economic Development service teams be agreed.

i.  That due regard be given to the authority’s public sector equality duties in
relation to the agreement of the recommendation.

iii. Following the completion of consultation the final proposals for this shared
service be the subject of a further report to the Committee on the 19" May
2011.

GPCO121

PROPOSED RESTRUCTURE OF FRONTLINE SERVICES

The Cabinet agreed on the 25" January to the amalgamation of Frontline




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 29 MARCH 2011

Services with the elements of services provided by Safer Stronger Communities
business unit into a new single Frontline Service. Within this report Cabinet
agreed that a further report setting out the details of the reorganisation should be
presented to the General Purposes Committee. The report containing this
information was now provided to the Committee and contained details of the
savings to be made by the Council as a result of this reorganisation . A proportion
of these savings £1.4million(of the total 3.6 million savings to be made) had been
predicated on the disestablishment of the Neighbourhood Management Service
which had ph)reviously been considered at General Purposes Committee meetings
on the 15" February and again following consultation , on the 10" March
2011.The proposed restructure within this report sought to deliver the remaining
savings, a net reduction of 2.2m from the existing Frontline Services structure.
Section 6.15 of the report set out the numbers of staff affected by the restructure
and members noted that the emphasis was on a reduction of management posts.

In considering the report, the Committee further discussed the new title of the
directorate, Place and Sustainability, and felt it should be proposed to the Chief
Executive, that there should be a re-evaluation of it and a new name proposed
which provided more understanding of the services that would be provided by the
directorate.

RESOLVED

i.  That in principle the proposed Single Frontline Business Unit Structure for
consultation as set out in Appendix B , taking into account the attached
draft equalities impact assessment be agreed.

i. That it be noted that the formal consultation with staff started on the 21° of
March and would be completed in line with the Council’s Policy and
procedures . It was further noted that all comments received would be
considered and responded accordingly.

iii.  That a further final report on the proposed reorganisation , following formal
consultation with staff, be presented to the General Purposes Committee
on the 19" May.

iv. ~That members note the timetable for the delivery of the new Frontline
services.

GPCO122

ITEMS OF EXEMPT BUSINESS

NONE

GPCO123

MINUTES OF GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE SUB-BODIES

Exempt minutes of the General Purposes Committee in the 07 February were
agreed.

Minutes of Staff Disciplinary Appeals and Grievance hearings for the 15th Feb, 04
March, and 01 March were noted.




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 29 MARCH 2011

GPCO124| NEW ITEMS OF URGENT EXEMPT BUSINESS
NONE

Councillor George Meehan
Chair



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES

MONDAY,

Councillors

Apologies

Page 11

OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
18 APRIL 2011

Meehan (Chair), Khan, Waters, Whyte, Wilson, Rice (Vice-Chair) and
Bloch

None

Also Present: lan Bailey, Belinda Evans, Stuart Young, Diana Edmonds, Dave Burn,

Ros Cooke and Michael Wood.

MINUTE

NO. SUBJECT/DECISION

GPCO125 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)

GPCO126) URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of urgent business submitted.

GPCO127 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
ClIr Wilson declared a personal interest, as part of the discussion on item 8, After
School Childcare, by virtue of his position as a school governor at Weston
ParkPark Primary School.

GPCO128 DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS
The Committee received deputations from Sean Fox and Andrea Holden
(Employee side Representatives) on agenda items: 6) — Restructure of Haringey
Early Years Service. 8) Procurement Service Function Review. There was also a
deputation received from Gwen O’Garrow, a parent from Hornsey Ridge school,
in relation to agenda item 7) After School Childcare. Details of their comments
and representations are recorded under the relevant minute below.
There were two petitions received by the Committee. The first is in relation to the
agenda item 6, Restructure of the Early Years and the second on item 7, After
School Child Care.
In accordance with the Council Constitution, Part 4, Council Procedure rules,
paragraph 11.1 — Petitions - . The Petitions were handed to the Chair of the
Committee and recorded as received by the representative of the Head of Local
Democracy &Member Services with no further debate. The Chair of the
Committee would report the Council’s response to the petition at the next ordinary
meeting of the Committee. A copy of this response would be sent to the
Petitioners.

GPCO129 FEEDBACK AND INFORMATION GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE




Page 12

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 18 APRIL 2011

The Committee considered proposals for the centralisation of the management of
all Council complaints, Member’s enquiries, Freedom of Information and data
protection enquiries function. In addition, an information governance function
would be established to be based within the new centralised Feedback and
Information Governance team. There were currently 26 officers located across the
Council covering feedback and complaints functions and following the
centralisation this function it would be reduced to 13. The Committee noted the
consultation exercise undertaken and the inclusion of the Records Management
functions and staff into this restructure. The Committee were further referred to
the findings of the equalities impact assessment and union responses which were
appended to the report.

The restructure was estimated to make savings of £270k, a majority of these
savings had already been achieved due to directorates making reductions to
these posts as part of their own restructures, and pre agreed savings and
reviews. Therefore these savings were not cashable as they had already been
taken by individual services.

The Committee were advised that the inclusion of the additional posts allocated
to Records Management was a positive step as it would enable the Council to
keep this expertise and help ensure that information is managed as legally
required; enable effective filing/archiving practices to be developed, where
needed, and used consistently across the Council.

The Committee enquired about how the priority of improvement and efficiency
would be kept to given the reduction in posts dealing with Member’s enquiries and
complaints. In answer to this, the Committee noted that existing processes would
be reengineered to ensure that efficiency was the key priority. This was
exemplified by the changes made to the complaints process, the three stage
complaints process would be reduced to two with all stage two complaints to be
investigated by the centralised team. There would now also be a single
centralised port for receiving and processing complaints from across the Council.

RESOLVED

That the proposed centralisation of feedback and information governance
functions as outlined in the report and appendices be agreed.

GPCO130

RESTRUCTURE OF HARINGEY EARLY YEARS SERVICES

The Committee considered proposals for the restructure of teams employed
centrally by the Children and Young People’s Service to support the delivery of
early year’s provision. It was noted that at present, staff were spread across a
number of service areas .The key proposal was to replace these teams with a
single smaller team that would provide essential statutory services.

In response to the consultation with staff and key stakeholders, some changes
have been made to some of the roles. A revised structure chart and list showing
the posts in the new structure was attached at Appendix 6. There was however no
change to the proposed level of saving or the role and function of the service. The




Page 13

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 18 APRIL 2011

changes listed in paragraph 6.4 were as follows:

¢ Line management arrangements have been altered and conveyed in the
structure chart at Appendix 6.

e Two deputy head of service posts had been redesignated as lead officers
for their respective areas — Early Years Lead for Early Intervention &
Prevention and Early Years Lead for Vulnerable Children with Multiple &
Complex Needs.

e The Childcare Support Officer Job Description had been revised to have a
stronger focus on business support and contract monitoring. The job title
was now a Business Support Officer.

e The 0.5 FTE 2-year old pilot project co-ordinator roles had been expanded
to incorporate additional duties supporting the work of the team. The post
was now full-time and the job title was now Early Years Support Officer.
The grade remained at PO1.

The Employee side addressed the Committee and highlighted their deep
concerns about the restructure of his service . They pointed to references in the
report about the work and connections of the Early Years service to Children’s
Centres. The restructure of this latter service was the subject of a separate
exercise. The public consultation on which would end on the 20™ April and staff
consultation begin. The Employee side, as communicated previously at
Committee meetings, requested that the restructure of the Early Years team be
deferred and considered alongside the Children’s Centres restructure report by
the Committee in June. This would allow staff from the Early Year’s provision to
be considered for posts in the Children’s Centres structure. The Employee side
further expressed their anxiety about the feasibility of the restructured service to
deliver an Early Year's service given the reductions being made and were
concerned about the future condition of the Family Information Service.

In answer to these concerns, the Deputy Director for Business Support in
Children’s Services explained that delays to the restructure processes in both
services would have severe financial impacts with delays leading to more staff
reductions. There were a small number of staff that had been identified which
could be considered for posts in the Children’s Centres structure and the
employment ringfences would be held to accommodate these eligible staff. This
delay would have a relatively small impact on the budget target for this area. In
terms of the concerns expressed on the outreach work of the service, it was
hoped that once the Children’s Centres structure was finalised and viewed by the
Employee side, they would be assured that this was a key priority for the new
service. The Family Information Service would still fulfil its basic statutory function
and the service was hopeful of keeping its best attributes. Information on services
would be assessable with web links to the service examined to ensure maximum
accessibility. The Employee side were assured that the previous job descriptions
of employees subject to the early years restructure were being examined in
relation to single status rulings. This was to understand if there were
compensation requirements to be met. Responding to concerns about the
workload of the new team, it was noted that the staff likely to be working in the
new structure would be those that would be experienced and equipped to work
across agencies and departments. A key task for the new service was the
prioritisation of work for which management would be responsible for and




Page 14

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 18 APRIL 2011

ensuring that staff would not be overstretched. The service would prioritise
support to newly registered childminders and those with weak OFSTED ratings.

The Committee learned that service provided courses for childminders on
developing their educational skills with the children they looked after. These
courses were run by a combination of teachers and experienced childminders.
These officers worked across a spectrum of services i.e. schools, play groups,
private nurseries and were primarily concerned with delivering early years
foundation one (this was a key deliverable and likened to key stage 1
achievements but in an early years setting). The current service ,where
applicable, was charging for this facility which was also offered to the private
sector. Although, the proportion of income received from this charge was small,
the Committee were assured that the service would utilise on any available
options for recharging of services and generation of funding.

Some members raised queries regarding the pay scale of managers in this
restructured service. In reply to this, the Committee noted that pay scales would
need to reflect the increased complexities of the positions and grades and job
description requirements.

The Committee noted that the new structure following changes made, as a result
of the consultation, were set on page 103 of the agenda pack.

The Chair enquired about the progress of the Children and Families restructure
and was advised that this was planned for completion and consideration by
Committee in June along with the Children’s Centres Report. The Chair requested
that the Children’s Centres report contain a timetable for recruitment to provide
the Committee with a fuller understanding of the final shape of the service.

RESOLVED

i. That the Committee note that the formal consultations on these proposals
began on 03™ February 2011 and was concluded on the 14™ March.

ii. That the comments received from staff and trades unions and the
management responses to these in appendix 5 be noted.

iii.  That the proposed restructure as set out in Appendix 1 and summarised in
section 6 of the report, taking account the outcome of the staff consultation
and management response , be agreed with due regard given to the
Council’s public sector equalities duties.

iv.  That ClIr Bloch’s opposition to the above recommendations be noted.

GPCO131

AFTER SCHOOL CHILDCARE

The Committee received a deputation from a group of parents from Hornsey
Ridge School who wanted to speak against the transfer of the after school
provision at their school to St Aidens . This transfer of provision was a




Page 15

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 18 APRIL 2011

consequence of the Council’s curtailment of funding to borough wide after school
provision. The spokes person for the group was Gwen O’Garrow who reported to
the Committee the exceptional current facilities provided to children at Hornsey
Ridge school which were to a very high standard. On behalf of the deputation,
Gwen O’ Garrow expressed concern about the facilities on offer at St Aiden’s
which she felt were not on par with the current facilities at Hornsey Ridge school.
She proposed that the school should be given the opportunity to try and increase
the numbers of children attending the after school club to make the service more
financially viable. The Committee heard that as part of the consultation, parents
had not been given the option of considering an increase to the fees for this
provision. This may have been acceptable to them given the value and necessity
of the service. The deputation called on the Committee to reconsider the
recommendations of the report which were to reduce Council employed staff
providing after school childcare and consider their duties as an authority to
provide childcare for parents and in turn allow them to work or access education.
The deputation further asked the Committee to consider the need for this service
by the community in Hornsey and thanked the Committee for listening to their
views.

The Committee welcomed the deputation and enquired about the activity
previously undertaken to address the declining numbers of children attending this
after school provision. At this point, in the meeting, ClIr Wilson also declared a
personal interest in his subject by virtue of his school governor position at the
neighbouring school, Weston Park. Members of the deputation explained that
there was little effective advertisement of the after school provision provided by
Hornsey Ridge school. Following research, by the parents, there was found to be
no information on government websites or local websites on this after school
provision .Parents at the nearby schools of Rokesly and Weston Park had been
spoken to and they showed little knowledge of the existence of this provision
which further highlighted the need for effective advertising of this school service.
The deputation believed that the opportunity should be given for this as this
would impact on the number of children attending this provision. The Committee
noted that the concept of improved PR had been suggested in the consultation
period by the parents and sought further understanding of the number of children
attending the after school provision. This was reported to be seventeen with
children aged four and upwards.

The Deputy Director of the Children’s Service was asked to introduce the report
which contained proposals to curtail the Council’s direct delivery and subsidy of
after school childcare and to which the deputation spoke in relation to.lt was
important to keep in mind the context of which the reductions to a number
services provided by the Children’s service were predicated. This was the
requirement for the Children’s service to make £14.1 million of savings
immediately in 2011/12. This saving target was to be met through a restructure of
the service and would inevitably mean that direct services, such as after school
provision and were not a statutory services could no longer be resourced by the
local authority. Funding from central government was no longer provided directly
to local authorities for this service. Whilst the impact was unfortunate on Hornsey
Ridge school, the local authority were examining the priorities for services across
the borough as a whole. It was noted that there were currently 14 after school
providers in the borough which would be affected by the proposals to cease
funding of these services. The Schools Forum had agreed to additional resources




Page 16

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 18 APRIL 2011

for 2011/12 only, to assist with supporting the transition of the service to those
schools that are able to provide the service on a sustainable long term basis.
There had been discussions with Weston Park school on taking over the after
school provision to Hornsey Ridge school children but the school did not feel able
to subsume this service. The local authority had held discussions with the YMCA
about continuing this after school service for Hornsey Ridge pupils. This centre
was located near the school and provided after school provision. The YMCA
service had recently been assessed as a “good” service by OFSTED and they
were able to assist and admit the children from Hornsey Ridge after school club.
Arrangements could also be made for the children to be walked to the centre from
the school by a teacher / school officer.

Understanding was sought by the Committee on the previous activities of the
Council to increase numbers at this after school provision given that the funding
was £45 per head ,a high amount compared to funding of places in other parts of
the borough. It was explained that there had been previous benchmarking
exercises undertaken to examine the cost of after school provision per child per
head and it had found that the subsidy provided by the local authority was higher
when compared to other boroughs. There had been past consultation with parents
at Hornsey Ridge School on this provision. Whilst parents were eager to initially
register their commitment to using the provision , this was not fully followed up by
all parents. Currently there were 17 parents signed up to the service.

In responding to the deputation’s concerns about the facilities at St Aidens, the
local authority committed to re-examine this provision as it was understood that St
Aiden’s had previously had an OFSTED report 3 years ago.

The Committee were advised that ,following the commitment of the Schools
Forum to fund the transitional arrangements for after school provision, this would
assist with funding the walker who would be responsible for safely transporting
the children from Hornsey Ridge school to their new provision.

The Committee were advised that guidance was available from the Council to the
deputation party about the requirements of setting up a voluntary group to
possibly manage and continue this service if they wished to explore this as an
option.

The Committee noted the findings of the equalities impact assessment on the
disproportionate effect of the proposals on female staff and those aged between
44-55. The Committee were advised that the Council would continue to work with
schools to, where possible and an option, continue the employment of the
displaced Council funded staff under different management conditions.

The Committee shared the deputations and union’s sadness at the deletion of
this service which had in the past been recognised nationally as setting the
example for childcare provision. However, the Council were required to reduce
their budget by 41 million and were not in a position to fund direct or non statutory
services. It would also be difficult to fund services on the assumption of increased
uptake or increased funding by users as unfortunately the reductions to the
Children’s Services budget needed to be made in a short term. The Chair
reiterated the offer made by the service to provide advice the deputation party in
examining the option of setting up a voluntary group to manage this service.




Page 17

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 18 APRIL 2011

RESOLVED

i. That the Committee note that formal staff consultation on these proposals
began on 8th February 2011 and was concluded on the 9th March and that
public consultation began on the 14th February and concluded in 8th April
2011.

ii. That the comments received from staff and trade unions and the
management response to these in Appendix 5 be noted.

iii. That the proposed reduction in staff as set out in the consultation
document (appendix 1) taking into account the outcome of the staff
consultation be agreed with due regard given to the Council’s public sector
duties.

GPCO132

PROCUREMENT SERVICE FUNCTION REVIEW

Members were informed that as part of the Haringey Efficiency and savings
Programme(HESP) a review of the Procurement function (including transaction
processing across the Council had been undertaken in order to arrive at a revised
Procurement structure and new model of delivery of the Procurement function .

The Head of Procurement provided Members with the context behind the
proposals being made which was essentially to centralise the Procurement
structure. The Council had currently 960 live contracts, therefore this was a high
spend and high risk area where good management was crucial. The department
had been set the savings target of £416k which was to be achieved over the next
two years with £312k allocated for delivery in this financial year. The proposed
model for the Procurement function would include transactional processing,
procurement of supplies and services, construction, property, commercial contract
management, category management and energ%/ management. The consultation
period with staff had been completed on the 08™ April and there was appended to
the report a log of the changes to job titles and descriptions made in response to
feedback. The service offer was set out on page 100 of the agenda pack and this
had not changed since consideration by the Committee on March 22 2011. The
equalities impact assessment had been updated to further reflect feedback from
the consultation.

The Employee side spoke to the Committee about their concerns on the
application of ringfences which they felt had been indifferently applied. They felt
that the exercise had favoured procurement staff already working in central
procurement and therefore there were seen to be little opportunities for directorate
staff to be successful in obtaining a procurement post. They compared the
Procurement review to the Finance service function review which had used more
open ringfences and contributed to staff feeling that the process was fairer with
an equal prospect of a job. They highlighted the lack of information provided on




Page 18

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 18 APRIL 2011

the recruitment procedure , with only the standard information provided to staff in
the review which did not indicate the methods to be used in the recruitment
procedure i.e. interviews or tests, limiting staff preparation. There was also
substantial responses received from officers involved in the review in the
consultation period which suggested that the manner of the process followed was
not favoured. In response to these issues raised, The Head of Procurement
advised that the function review of Procurement had followed the same process
as the Finance review. The difference being that officers which had 20% of
procurement duties involved in their posts were part of the review. In the Finance
review officers with 50% of finance duties were included in this. The Procurement
service had followed Finance and Human Resources advice at every aspect of
the review .

Due to the nature of the concerns raised by the Employee side, the Committee
wanted to ensure that employees felt that they were treated fairly in the
recruitment process and it was important that all posts were recruited to without
leaving any vacancies. The Assistant Chief Executive offered to review the
ringfence proposals contained in the review in detail and update the Committee
on these outcomes at their meeting on May 19"™. The Committee agreed in
principle to the recommendations of the report subject to receiving this update.

The Committee were informed that the revisions to contract standing orders
which would reflect the changes to financial thresholds, would be for agreement
by Full Council, following consideration by the Constitution Review Working
Group.

RESOLVED

i. That the proposed new centralised Procurement structure be approved
subject to a further report back to Committee on the 19" May from the
Assistant Chief Executive on the review of employment ringfences to be
applied in the recruitment process to posts in the new structure.

i.  That the timetable for implementation of the review be noted.

GPCO133

CULTURE LIBRARIES AND LEARNING

The Committee considered proposals for staff changes in Libraries, Archives and
Museum Services in order to meet Council approved budget reductions and the
loss of ABG funding from 2011/12. The proposals had been subject to full staff
and public consultation . Union comments had useful and in some cases their
suggestions were taken forward in the restructure. Clarification was sought on
the total number of staff remaining in the service after the restructure and the
Assistant Director for Culture Libraries and Learning agreed to provide this
information to all Committee members following the meeting.

The Committee commented on recommendation 3.2 which sought approval to
revised weekend opening hours for the Libraries service . This decision was
agreed to not be within the remit of the General Purposes Committee’s terms of
reference and understanding was sought on whether this issue had been




Page 19

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 18 APRIL 2011

discussed as part of a previous Cabinet report? It was noted that this decision
was required as a result of the withdrawal of Area Based Funding which
supported the provision of this weekend service. The Committee recommended
that the Assistant Director for Culture, Libraries and Learning seek advice on the
correct decision making body to enable this decision.

RESOLVED

i.  That the revised post changes and deletions detailed in Appendices A and
B taking into account the outcome of the consultation outlined in Appendix
C be approved with due regard given to the authority’s public sector
equalities duties.

i. That the revised structure to be implemented from the 01 May 2011 be
noted.

iii. That the level of savings to be achieved from the review in 2011/12
outlined in paragraph 11 be noted.

GPCO134| ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS

Councillor George Meehan

Chair




Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES

Page 21
OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE

WEDNESDAY, 4 MAY 2011

Councillors

Apologies

Khan, Waters, Whyte, Wilson, Rice (Chair), Bloch and Browne

Councillor Meehan

Also Present: Councillor Browne, Jan Doust, lan Bailey, Dave Burn, Steve Davis

MINUTE

NO. SUBJECT/DECISION

GPCO135 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)
Apologies for absence were received from Clir Meehan, Chair of the Committee.
In accordance with the Constitution rules on substitutions as set out in part 4,
rules of procedures, section B, Committee rules, and paragraph 55, Clir Browne
substituted. Clir Rice in his role as vice chair chaired the meeting.

GPCO136) URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of urgent business submitted.

GPCO137 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The Committee were handed a letter by a representative of the NUT, Tony
Brockman, in reference to agenda item 6, Trade Union Facilities, Duties, Activities
and Time off Arrangements. The letter claimed that there was a financial benefit
to schools as a result of the proposed reduction in the Council funding of time off
facilities for union branch officers. Julie Davies, representative of the NUT,
advised the meeting that she was currently seconded to the union branch officer
post and following proposals to reduce the time off facilities for union work she
would return to her teaching post. This would mean that her school would have an
additional funded teacher and would mean that other schools that have a teacher
seconded to branch officer posts would be in similar beneficial position. Tony
Brockman along with Julie Davies claimed that this constituted a prejudicial
interest for some members of the Committee who were also governors at schools
in the borough which they believed should be declared together with withdrawal
from the meeting. The Chair asked the legal representative at the meeting to
provide advice on the assertions made in the letter and Committee member’s
positions in relation to agenda item 6 as school governors. The Committee were
informed, by the legal representative, that there was not a requisite degree of
financial impact on schools or a financial gain to members personally to deem
this a prejudicial interest. Further, the decision recommended from the Committee
involved only an allocation of paid time to the NUT, which would then be the
subject of further decisions by the NUT before its implementation at the level of
any school. The legal representative advised that these were therefore personal
interests as opposed to prejudicial interests. In response, to a query on legal
advice provided at Planning Committees on personal and prejudicial interests
when considering planning applications, the Committee were advised that in the
consideration of some planning applications there could be circumstances where




Page 22

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 4 MAY 2011

there was a direct impact on the financial position of the members involved or
organisations that they, or close family members, were affiliated with which would
need declaration and non participation in the meeting. In this case the direct
financial effect on schools was not sufficient to warrant members of the
Committee to declare a prejudicial interest. In response to the advice provided,
Clir Wilson declared a personal interest by virtue of his position as a school
governor at Western Park Primary School. Clir Rice declared a personal interest
as a School Governor at John Loughborough School and Northumberland Park
Secondary School and Cllir Waters declared a personal interest as a school
governor at Risley Primary School. Clir Browne declared a personal interest by
virtue of his membership of National Union of Journalists, Equity (the performers’
union)and sought advice from the legal representative on whether his lifelong
honorary membership of the GMB, which was not active, would constitute a
prejudicial interest. In answer to the latter declaration, the legal representative
advised that this was a personal interest and not a prejudicial interest as this was
not an active membership and not employment connected.

GPCO138

DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS

The Committee received deputations from Chris Taylor and Andrea Holden
(Employee Side Representatives) on Agenda item 5) Youth Connexions and
Participation - Agenda Item 6) Trade Union Facilities, Duties, Activities, and Time
Off Across the Council. Deputations were also received from the Teaching side of
the Employee side — Tony Brockman and Julie Davies in relation to Agenda ltem
6)Trade Union Facilities , Duties, Activities, and Time Off Across the Council.

Details of their comments and representations are recorded under the relevant
minute below.

GPCO139

YOUTH CONNEXIONS AND PARTICIPATION

Members of the Committee considered a report on the proposals for the
restructure of the Council’s Youth, Connexions and Participation services. The
context behind the recommendations and necessity for this report were the
requirement for the local authority to make savings of over 84 million over the next
3 years. As part of this, the Children and Young People’s service were required to
restructure the service to reduce spending by 14.1m whilst ensuring that it fulfilled
its statutory duties and protected services to the borough’s most vulnerable
children. The proposition was to reorganise the Council’'s Youth Service,
Connexions Service, and Children and Young People, Parent & Community
Participation Service into a revised Youth, Participation and Community service to
achieve required savings of £3,298,443 whilst keeping to the following
responsibilities:

e Delivering statutory responsibilities for the Local Authority

e Prioritising provision for at risk vulnerable groups

e Meeting the needs of the community and the aspirations of young people

It was noted that 105 staff were affected by the review which equated to 85.9 Full
Time Equivalents. It involved the deletion of 44 vacant posts (30.9 Full Time
Equivalent posts). The full employment position of the staff members included in
the restructure was set out in section 5 of appendix 1. The Committee learned




Page 23

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 4 MAY 2011

that the restructure had sought to achieve a balance between full and part time
posts as working in youth service involved flexibility and working outside normal
working hours.

The key aim of the new service was to target children most at risk. This would be
achieved through maximising frontline services so that through partnership with
statutory and community organisations there was focus on working with young
people and families which were known to the Council to have enhanced risk
factors. A further priority of the new service would be community development
and quality assurance which would entail developing , agreeing and monitoring
clear quality standards in conjunction with young people for services that were
managed by the Council , commissioned, or those that the Council signposted to
in the voluntary, community and third sector . The Council would be seeking to
develop relationships with these sectors to ensure that there was a shared
understanding of the meaning of quality services across the borough. This would
further include: addressing professional issues where required, training, staff
development, ensuring safeguarding protocols were in place and that tracking
systems, which provided schools with and other agencies with data information
on learning, and employment destinations of young people were maintained to a
high level. The third key priority was citizenship and involvement of young people
and ensuring that they were routinely involved and engaged in decision making,
shaping, and planning the service. This would include working with children and
young people through the Youth Council and CIC Council and ensuring that
consultation on broader developments of the service included young people. In
relation to the connection of this priority to the Voluntary Sector this would involve
liaising with HAVCO to make sure that there were skilled and trained workers in
the voluntary sector. In terms of volunteering, the new service would record young
people’s volunteering and offer accredited training if appropriate.

Members were pointed to the new staffing structure of the service which was set
out in Appendix A and asked to agree the recommendations of the report.

The Employee side were invited by the Chair to address the meeting and raise
their concerns about the report and its recommendations. They began by
expressing their immediate concern; on how the prevention agenda would
continue to be adhered to as they felt it would be hindered greatly by the level of
budget reductions to this service and they felt that in the long term there would be
a greater cost to the community and the local authority. In response to this it was
noted that prevention would continue as a key aim of the service and would
include working with children in care colleagues to provide targeted services
rather than a broad service. The Employee side referred to the formal feedback
provided by Unison to the consultation which was appended to the report as part
of Appendix 5 and sought the following clarifications.

e Youth Development Officer post was marked as an open ring fence post —
The Deputy Director Prevention and Early Intervention agreed to review
this ringfence proposal.

e Single status evaluations for Frontline workers - the consultation period
had been extended to allow evaluations for single status to be undertaken.
Any potential payments associated with single status claims would be met




Page 24

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 4 MAY 2011

within the budget for the service.

e New Job Descriptions for Connexions employees indicated working 4
evenings a week which had implications for the work life balance of these
employees. In response it was noted that the job descriptions were
compiled on the pretext of meeting the needs of young people. The figure
of 4 evenings a week was a guide and it was not envisaged that this many
working evening would be needed per week. The previous job descriptions
for this role set evening work at one evening per week and this was altered
to reflect Youth workers job descriptions which indicated as a guide
working 4 evenings per week. In response to this clarification, the
Employee side pointed to the difference between part time youth workers
and the Connexions post holders who were working full time hours and
expected to work evenings. The committee noted that the need to meet the
availability of young people made it essential for these post holders to be
available in the evenings. However, it was reiterated by Officers, that 4
evenings was a guide and it was unlikely that post holders would be
expected to work this number of evenings per week.

e Participation Strategy Officer and Community Participation Officer Job
description changes - It was explained that these two posts had been
transferred from Children and Young People service along with their
budget to be located in the proposed new structure of the Youth,
Connexions and Participation service. There were no changes currently
proposed to these job descriptions and therefore no current issues to
resolve on ring fences. There would follow, in future, a review of these
posts.

Following the Employee side deputation, members of the Committee put forward
further questions on the restructure of the service to officers. The Committee
understood that there would be a significant reduction in the size of the service
and this would necessitate effective targeted intervention with children most in
need of the service. The Committee sought assurances on the effectiveness of
the evidence source of the Children’s service to ensure that young people most in
need of the new Youth, Connexions and Participation service were located and
service provided. They also sought clarification on how the reliability of this source
would continue to be monitored and asked how examples of previous good
practices were to be shared in the service and referred to as to ensure the
success of the new service going forward. The Committee were informed that the
main feedback received from young people about the service was their
satisfaction with the one to one support given and there were good working
relationships developed with their workers; however this was not measurable in
the quantitative format. The key information source used by the service was the
database which recorded the number of Children Not in Education or,
Employment or Training (NEET). This database assisted the service greatly in
knowing the location and situation of all young people in the borough. The
information on this database was monitored consistently as there was an
overriding aim to keep the number of children classed NEET low. This was also
information which was reported to the Government on a regular basis. Where
there was uncertainty about the employment, training and education situation of a
young person, there were efforts made to contact them to ensure that overall the




Page 25

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 4 MAY 2011

data was continually robust.

Clarification was sought on how the services provided by the Youth Offending
Service would be continued in the new service. It was reported that the Youth
Offending service had transferred to the Children and Young People’s service
recently following the overall Council re-organisation report on the Council,
Rethinking Haringey. A further task would be to examine the working relationship
of the Youth Offending team and the new Youth, Connexions and Participation
service over the coming year.

In response to a Committee question on the responsibility for young people with
disabilities, it was reported that they would be one of the groups targeted by the
new service for support.

Members referred to Appendix 6 of the report which set out the structure of the
service and enquired how many of the staff listed were frontline staff. It was
noted that all staff listed could be thought of as frontline staff; including the
management staff as they would all in some capacity have contact with the users
of the service. It was clarified that the team leader’s primary function was to lead
the teams, whilst also supervising case loads to ensure that they were
manageable. They would themselves also retain a small number of cases. The
tracking assistants listed in the structure also had a frontline role as part of the
interface with young people was through the youth space website where feedback
from young people was collected. In response to a query on the geographical
areas in the borough covered by the teams, it was clarified that the children’s
network geographical model had been used to mark the responsibility for areas.
Assurances were given that no area of the borough had been missed.

Having considered the information provided at the meeting and further to
considering the report, the following resolutions were made:

RESOLVED

i. That it be noted the formal consultation on the proposals contained in the
report began on 11 February 2011 and was concluded on the 20 April
2011.

i. That the comments from staff and trades unions and the management
response to them set out in appendix 5 be noted.

iii.  That the Equalities Impact Assessments relating to these proposals set out
in appendices 2 and 3 be noted.

iv. That the proposed staffing restructure as set out in the consultation
document in Appendix 1 be agreed. This decision took account of the
outcome of the staff consultation and management response (appendices
5&6) and gave due regard to the Council’s public sector equalities duties.

GPCO140

TRADE UNION FACILITIES, DUTIES, ACTIVITIES AND TIME OFF
ARRANGEMENTS ACROSS THE COUNCIL




Page 26

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 4 MAY 2011

The Head of Human Resources introduced the report which sought the
Committee’s agreement for amendments to trade union facilities, duties activities
and time off arrangements across the Council with a view to reducing expenditure
on current time off provision. The Head of Human Resources referred to
paragraph 6, which reported that a number of meetings had taken place between
himself and the Head of Schools Personnel, Deputy Director of Business Support
&Development, Children and Young People’s service and representatives on the
trades unions. The Head of Human Resources had allocated reasonable time off
for branch officer roles to all trades unions by taking into account the following
criteria:

¢ Union Membership numbers

e The volume and complexities of Corporate and Local Industrial Relations
issues taking place in the organisation

e A minimum of 0.1 facility time would be granted to each recognised trade
union. In addition for unions with 0.1 or 0.2 facility time reasonable time off
will be also granted in recognition of casework preparation and
representation at meetings.

The Committee learned that the total current time off allocated to all the trades
unions was 12.1 Full Time Equivalent posts which were proposed to be reduced
to 7.5 Full Time Equivalent posts, a reduction of 4.6 full time equivalents. It was
clarified to the Committee that, the figure of 0.1 (the number of days off allowed to
deal with Union duties) was equitable to half a day off per week.

The Chair asked the deputation from the NUT to address the meeting and raise
their views in regards to the report and its proposals.

Tony Brockman, representing the NUT, voiced opposition to the proposals
contained in the report as they would mean a reduction in Council funding to
teaching unions. Tony Brockman proposals were not seen as equitable in
comparison to the reductions proposed to the other non teaching unions and the
deputation asked the proposals to be repelled .Tony Brockman expressed
concern that there had not been prior discussion of the proposed reductions
through the form of a negotiating body or through the CEJCC. He disputed the
membership numbers listed in the report and pointed to the lack of provision given
to time off facilities for branch officers undertaking national union duties.
Allocation of Health & Safety duties were also matters for resolution between the
Council and the teaching unions as there was currently no provision in schools
rules to accommodate these functions. Therefore there was a need to resolve the
allocation of school safety issues and the learning representative duties which
were now to be allocated to schools but which were previously carried out by the
Council.

Tony Brockman further challenged the membership figures set out in the report
and claimed that they were not accurate. The teaching unions had a higher
number of members than listed in the report and advised the figure to be 2067.
He further questioned the benchmarking exercise undertaken with other boroughs
on their membership numbers and used as a basis to form recommendations.
Anecdotal research had found that other boroughs were increasing their facilities
for teaching unions instead of decreasing them.




Page 27

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 4 MAY 2011

Julie Davies continued with the deputation and highlighted the number of duties,
representative roles, meetings attended as well as national duties carried out by
the teaching union representatives. This would often entail working above and
beyond Council funded union time off arrangements. She pointed to their key
roles in relation to resolving grievances at an early stage and limiting the number
of grievances. Further she referred to the allocation of time off for health and
safety work and the union learning representative roles which she contended
were better provided to schools by one person with full time off arrangements.

The deputation in summary requested that the recommendations contained in the
report should not be agreed as the formula used to calculate the allocation of
union branch officer full time equivalents was not accurate. They believed the
process had not been transparent or fair to all of the unions concerned.

Chris Taylor from Unison was the spokesperson for their deputation. He began by
concurring that the NUT had been treated in a dissimilar manner to the other non
teaching union trade unions. He requested that the implementation of the
reduction in time off for Unison take effect from March 2012 instead of January
2012 to coincide with the annual trade union elections and enable the changes to
be implemented following the annual meeting. Chris Taylor referred to the report
which advised that the provisions for union time off facilities would be reviewed
annually by the Head of Human Resources and he requested, on behalf of the
Unison, that issues regarding provision are raised through the Employment Joint
Consultative Committee (CEJCC). There was further reference to paragraph 4.4,
Appendix A, which provided information on how time off arrangements would be
applied for trade unions duties in relation to staffing restructures, attending
meetings with members related to staff changes, attending steward meetings and
representing members at formal meetings. The paragraph further advised that 2
hours would be allocated per week to these duties which the Employee side
asked this is reconsidered because it was not a sufficient time to carry out these
duties. They asked for some flexibility with time allocations and gave an example
of situations when employees may prefer to be represented at certain meetings
with a steward who they are familiar with as opposed to a branch officer.

The Chair asked the Head of Human Resources to respond to the points raised
by the deputations from the NUT and the Employee side. The Head of Human
Resources explained that the proposals regarding the change to trade union time
off provisions was not a matter that required negotiation through formal bodies
and that the decision was for the General Purposes Committee to make. The
Council had a legal duty to provide reasonable time off facilities for trade unions
which they were adhering to. There had also been consultation on the proposals
prior to this Committee meeting as outlined in the introduction to the report. The
Head of HR responded to the argument made that the membership levels were
not a strong basis to base the recommendations of the report upon, and he
advised that the criteria considered was not only membership numbers but the
volume and range of issues dealt with at the local level by the unions together
with the complexities of their casework. The criteria considered when revising the
provision were set out in paragraph 6 of the main report. In relation to the
concerns expressed about Health and Safety representation at school meetings, it
was the obligation of employers to provide reasonable time off arrangements for
attendance at these meetings. This did not rule out the NUT addressing the




Page 28

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 4 MAY 2011

Schools Forum on their concerns about this and provisions for learning
representative roles. The membership numbers for the teaching unions were to
be confirmed at the time of the review but the Head of HR offered to amend the
NASUWT Branch officer time off from 0.2 to 0.1 until the membership numbers
were verified. The Head of Human Resources further advised the deputation from
Employee side that the Committee would need to make the decision on whether
to amend the implementation date for the reduction in time off facilities from
January 2012 to April 2012. In terms of the timing of the review on the provision in
2012, the Head of Human Resources advised that the election arrangements of
the trade unions would be taken into account. He further agreed that the EJCC
could encompass the referral of concerns on the new proposed time off
provisions. The matter of union stewards time off was responded to and the
Committee advised that the figure of two hours off per week was provided as a
guide and reasonable account would be taken of a steward’s time for preparation
of staff meetings and core meetings, and representation of staff at meetings.

The chair invited questions from the Committee members which followed along
with input from the deputations.

Some members expressed concern on the application of proportionality and
referred to the numbers of staff in the Council being reduced in comparison to the
reductions in full time equivalent union representatives which was not in equal
proportion. There were further questions from the NUT deputation on the
comparative data and clarification sought on which other boroughs were reducing
Council funding of teaching union provisions for time off. It was noted that the
membership number listed for Unison was before the current staff reductions
taking place and were the figures available at the time of writing the report. The
Head of Human Resources reiterated that the membership numbers were not
the sole criteria used for proposing changes to the union time off arrangements
and explained that the current offers of provisions for teaching trade union time
off facilities could not dictate the Council’s proposals on this. He also pointed to
the level of industrial relations and casework issues that would be dealt with by
the Employee side through dealing with a broader membership. The deputation
from the NUT continued to dispute the membership numbers and further spoke of
their undocumented work in dealing with staff matters and grievances at an early
stage meaning that there were very few cases which progressed to a hearing
stage and therefore no requirement to record or have figures on. They referred to
their case loads and offered to provide statistics from diaries on the number of
casework and health and safety meetings attended. The Committee asked about
the central funding received from NUT head office and whether increased claims
could be made for funding especially to support the workloads of local NUT
branch officers. In response it was noted that the NUT already had a significant
staffing framework to support and this included the legal advisors which could
called upon if a staff grievance was formalised as these could be difficult and
complex cases.

In response to a question on the school teacher membership of unions in relation
to the number of schools in the borough it was clarified that the school academies
and non maintained schools membership of the teaching union were not included
in the membership numbers as they were not funded by the local authority. It was
also important to note that teachers could be a member of more than one
teaching union. This would be better known once the smaller teaching unions had




Page 29

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 4 MAY 2011

verified their membership numbers.

In answer to concerns about adequate time off for National Executive Union
duties, assurance was given that there would be adequate time off provision
provided, should a member of the unions have this national role. This was also
something which was legally required.

The Committee noted that an equalities impact assessment was not required on
this report as the required EQIA screening tool had been applied and had
determined this.

The Committee agreed to the request of the Employee side to amend the
implementation date for the reduction in time off for NUT and Unison. This would
take effect from 01 April 2012 as opposed to the 01 January 2012 to allow for
the annual trade union elections and enable the changes to be implemented
following their Annual meetings.

RESOLVED

i. That the recommended changes to the trade union time off provision as
described in paragraphs 7 be agreed . (In summary this meant a reduction
of 4.6 full time equivalent (FTE) in Branch Officer and Employee side time
off and a reduction in the scope of the paid time off for attendance at
accredited conferences)

i. That the revised policy for Trade Union Facilities and Time off
Arrangements at appendix A be agreed. That it be noted that these
arrangements had now been harmonised to include teaching unions as
well as the non teaching unions.

iii. That the change in the time off agreements start from 1 April 2011 but the
implementation of the reduction in time off for NUT and Unison take effect
from 1 April 2012 to allow time for appropriate notice and furtherance of
good employee relations during the coming months of further significant
organisational change. Those changes for the other unions and employee
side take place from 1 July 2011.

iv. ~That these provisions be reviewed annually by the Head of Human
Resources and reported to the new Corporate Committee if changes to the
branch officer time off levels are recommended.

v.  That the abstentions of Clir Bloch and ClIr Browne be noted in regard to the
above recommendations.

GPCO141

ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS




Page 30

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, 4 MAY 2011

Councillor Reg Rice

Chair



MINUTES

Page 31
OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE

THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

Councillors

Apologies

Meehan (Chair), Khan, Waters, Whyte, Wilson, Rice (Vice-Chair) and
Bloch

None

Also Present: Stuart Young, Steve Davies, John Morris, Anne Lippitt, Dinesh Kotecha,

Bernard Lanigan, Jan Doust and Robin Payne.

MINUTE

NO. SUBJECT/DECISION

GPCO142 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)
None

GPCO143) URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of urgent business received.

GPCO144 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Rice declared a personal interest by virtue of his membership of The
Friends of Down Lane Park .

GPCO145 DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS
The Committee received deputations from Sean Fox, Andrea Holden and Helen
Steel (Employee side representatives) on: Agenda item 6)Update on Procurement
Service Function Review, Agenda Item 8) Proposal for the deletion of the Gypsy,
Roma and Travellers Education team Agenda Item 12)Restructure of Recreation
Services.
Details of their comments and representations are recorded under the relevant
minute below.

GPCO146) RETHINKING HARINGEY
Following on from the previous consideration of the Chief Executive’s report on
Rethinking Haringey on January 25™ 2011, the Committee received an update on
a change to the reorganisation of the Council following consultation. This was the
proposal to establish a project support office which would report to the Chief
Executive. This Office would generate further efficiency by bringing together
resources deployed to support Council projects. It would enable better co-
ordination of resources in the Council project activity area and would also mean
that this office would replace a number of project offices in the Council including
the one currently assigned to efficiency. The staffing changes arising from this
proposal would be progressed in accordance with the standard Council




Page 32

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

employment processes for reorganisation. It was noted that this would reduce
expenditure on project resources.

Understanding was sought on how the Council were monitoring and managing the
spans of control following the consequential restructures of teams .This was
further to the Committee receiving a number of reports on service restructures in
which some still contained proposals for a management post managing less than
5-8 staff, the recommended number under the Rethinking Haringey proposals.
The Committee were informed that there was an analysis exercise, currently
being undertaken by the Assistant Chief Executive, of the teams restructured
under the Rethinking Haringey proposals to ascertain how they were conforming
to the recommendations and principles of the Rethinking Haringey report. The
Committee were informed that a number of teams do adhere to the spans of
control principle but this exercise would help identify where the spans of control
principle was not being utilised and could lead to identification of further savings.
The Assistant Chief Executive offered to report back his findings from this
exercise to the Corporate Committee if needed.

It was clarified that the Member Panel Appointment process was to be completed
and the first phase involving internal appointments had been completed .There
were a further two Member Appointment panels to be convened to appoint the
Assistant Director for Frontline services and the Assistant Director for Finance.

RESOLVED

i. The progress towards restructuring the top three tiers of Council Staff was
noted.

ii. That the minor changes arising from further consideration of the Council
structure agreed at Council in February 24" 2011, as detailed in Paragraph
6.5 be agreed.

iii.  That the Equalities Impact Assessment attached at appendix one be noted.

GPCO147

PROCUREMENT SUPPORT FUNCTIONS REVIEW - UPDATE ON
RINGFENCE PROPOSALS

Arising from concerns on the application of ringfences in the Procurement Service
Function Review, the Committee had asked the Assistant Chief Executive to
undertake a review of these. The Assistant Chief Executive had met with the
Trade Unions, Human Resources representatives and Procurement Service
Managers before completing the review. There was examination of the job
descriptions, particularly the roles which were for assimilation and which had
caused the most concern amongst employees. The Assistant Chief Executive had
considered the criteria for assimilation and how it had been applied. He was
satisfied that there was the required substantial overlap in duties between the
former and new post to which post holders were being assimilated to warrant this
action. He had next considered whether a wider group of posts could also be




Page 33

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

included, generating ringfences for those jobs identified for assimilation. Arising
from this consideration he had recommended a change to the application of the
ringfence of the Procurement contract officer. This would involve 5 posts being
subject to an open ringfence meaning that more staff from the various
departments could take part in the recruitment to these posts. It was noted that
some of these 5 posts were in specialist areas and the staff involved in this
interview process would be asked to state their preference to allow each interview
to be tailored to the requirements of each job. It was noted that three other
requests for changes from the unions were considered but not felt to warrant
change.

The Chair asked the Employee side to share their views on the report with the
Committee. The Employee side acknowledged the discussions with the Assistant
Chief Executive on this matter and the efforts made to analyse the ringfence
applications to ensure that they had been fair and included opportunity for
employees involved in the review to apply for posts. However, further to the
outcomes of the Assistant Chief Executives report, concerns remained and the
Employee side wished to place on record their continued opposition to the final
application of ringfences. They advised the Committee that during this review
period, staff had already been informed on the final plans for the application of
ringfences which had left the employees and the Employee side with reservations
on whether their views had been valued. The Assistant Chief Executive advised
that he had not been aware of this situation. Going forward, there were lessons to
be learned from the service function review, including managers briefing their staff
on Committee reports before they were considered at Committee. He
acknowledged that there were sensitivities to be aware as this review progressed
and advised that his dialogue would continue with this service and he would keep
the Employee side and Chair of the Committee informed of any issues.

RESOLVED
i. It be noted that the Assistant Chief Executive had reviewed the ring fence
proposals for the procurement service. This had included discussions with

management, Human Resources and the trade unions.

i. It be noted that arising from the review changes to the schedule of
ringfences had been made.

GPCO148

COMPLETED EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT TO BE CONSIDERED
FOLLOWING AGREEMENT OF THE - HUMAN RESOURCES REVIEW ON 29
MARCH 2011

At the General Purposes Committee meeting on the 29™ March at which the
Human Resources restructure was considered, the Committee had agreed to
consider the Equalities Impact Assessment on this review which was only partially
completed at the time of this meeting. The Committee were now asked to
consider full Equalities Impact Assessment on the service restructure and noted
that there was no disproportionate adverse equalities implications for any group of
staff who shared any of the protected characteristics set out in the Equality Act
2010. This conclusion had been assisted by the measures taken by the service in
the application of ringfences .Members noted the summary of the Equalities




Page 34

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

Impact Assessment contained in section 9 of the report.

RESOLVED

That the Equalities Impact assessment as attached at Appendix A be noted.

GPCO149

PROPOSAL FOR THE DELETION OF THE GYPSY, ROMA AND TRAVELLERS
EDUCATION TEAM

The Committee had considered proposals to close the Gypsy, Roma & Traveller
Education Team at their meeting on the 22 March. This was a non statutory
service affected by the budget savings required by the directorate and Council.
The service had been operating for many years and was valued for its
contributions to the Traveller, Gypsy Roma communities. The service provided
advice, guidance, training and support to Children Centres, schools and
colleagues and undertook casework with children and their families. The
Committee were informed that over recent years much good work had been done
to equip, the settings outlined above, to meet the needs of Travellers and Gypsy
Roma children. At the meeting in March the Committee had asked the service to
complete a consultation exercise, in an appropriate format, in order to engage
with the users and obtain their views on this unit closure. The consultation
exercise had subsequently been carried out in April and May and had involved
sending out 424 copies of letters to families that had been translated into
Bulgarian, Romanian and Polish and distributed via the Ethnic Minority
Achievement Co-ordinators in 42 schools. There were 90 letters sent to families
whose children were waiting for a schools place or had recently joined a school.
The letters were sent to Children’s Centres where there were service users from
these communities. Some letters were further followed up with telephone
contacts. The Committee were informed that no written responses were received
from users. There were two meetings organised in Wood Green Library for
families from the Gypsy Roma and Traveller communities to attend. Two families
attended with translators present to provide their views on the closure of the
service. The Committee noted that these families were very positive about the
support they got from the service and spoke about the assistance they received
with filling forms, accessing services, and enrolling their children in school. The
Committee were advised that, although this was seen as helpful by the users, this
was not part of the specification of this unit. This type of assistance could be
provided by other voluntary sector providers in the borough. The Committee were
assured that there were existing settings to meet the needs and responsibilities of
this group and therefore were asked to agree the closure of this unit.

Concern was expressed by the Committee on the methods of communications
used by the service for the consultation exercise. Letters had been sent to the
Gypsy, Roma families when there was knowledge by the service that literacy was
an issue. In the introduction to the report the Committee had been advised that
letters had been followed up with telephone contact, however the details from this
communication were not included in the report. In response to these concerns,
the Deputy Director for Children’s Networks, advised that the Gypsy, Roma,
Travellers Education team had completed follow up work on the consultation
documents by going out and visiting the families and using the sources of




Page 35

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

contacts known to them to meet with the families.

There was reference to the Equality Impact Assessment findings which indicated
that the average attendance at school of children from the Traveller, Gypsy and
Roma communities was 83%. This was lower compared to the national average
attendance of 94% and possibly highlighted an issue of integration.
Understanding was sought on how this issue would be tackled with the deletion of
this team? The Committee were advised that the Children’s Service recognised
that attendance at school would be an issue for children and young people from
these communities and they would continue to be considered as a priority .All
attendance issues were dealt with by the Education Welfare team. It was noted
that the statutory responsibility for ensuring attendance, integration at school and
meeting any special need of this ethnic minority group lay with schools and not
the local authority. The Chair advised that the Children’s Service would continue
to receive Special Education funding and he would speak to the Lead Member
for Children and Young People about ensuring that some of these resources were
made available to this group of young people.

Further to Member questions, the Chair asked the Employee side to put forward

their deputation in relation to this item. Andrea Holden addressed the Committee,
on behalf of the Employee side, and asked that the recommendations be
dismissed and the unit remain in place. She pointed to the engagement with the
community which was not taken forward in an appropriate communication
format. The location of the consultation meeting was also not appropriate or
convenient for the traveller or Gypsy Roma families hence the low turnout. The
Committee were advised that the issues around communicating with these
communities was highlighted by staff working in the Gypsy ,Traveller and Roma
Education team and were taken on board. There was a need to resolve how the
existing work of this unit would be taken forward and consider whether there was
a real saving to be made as there would be increased translation costs resulting
from the displacement of the member of staff from Roma Gypsy dissent. The
deputation further asked that the unit not be closed but merged into the Children’s
service. In response to these assertions the Deputy Director of Children’s
Networks advised the Committee that there were robust plans in place to take on
the work of the unit. The claim that there had not been engagement with the team
on the consultation methods was disputed as the manager of the Gypsy Roma
and Traveller Education team was involved in the meetings discussing the
consultation exercise format. It was accepted that there had been challenges
faced with engaging with the community but the consultation needed to be
completed within the resources available to the service. Members were assured,
in terms of safeguarding duties, that these were carried out by the Children
services social care colleagues where there was staff assigned for contact with
these communities. The Committee were advised that if this saving was not
completed a consequential saving would need to be made elsewhere in the
service.

In conclusion to the discussion, the Chair asked members to consider the
function of the Committee which was to make decision on staffing matters. It was
important to note that the policy decision on the closure of this unit had in essence
already been made through the Cabinet and the agreed Council budget
reductions. The Chair advised that he would ensure that the Cabinet Member for
Children and Young People was aware of the improvements required to the




Page 36

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

attendance levels of children and young people from the Gypsy, Roma and
Traveller communities due to the wider problems this could lead to. He would
further ask the Cabinet Member for this particular group of children and young
people to be considered as priority for access to available special needs
resources. The Chair would further communicate the concerns of the Committee
about deleting this service and would ask if there were alternative resources
available to fund this service.

RESOLVED

i. That it be noted the formal consultation with staff and trades unions on
these proposals began on the 20™ January 2011 and was concluded on
10" March.

i. That the comments received from staff and trades unions and the
management response to these set out in Appendix 5 be noted.

ii. That the outcome of the consultation with service users as set out in
Appendix 6 be noted.

iv. That the proposed reduction in staff as set out in the consultation
document (appendix 1) be agreed. This decision took into account the
outcome of the staff and service user consultations and gave due regard to
the Council’s public sector equalities duties.

v.  That the dissent of Clir Whyte, Wilson and Bloch to the above resolutions
be noted.

GPCO150

PERSONALISATION - ORGANISATIONAL RECONFIGURATION TO DELIVER
A TRANSFORMED SOCIAL CARE PATHWAY TO SUPPORT SERVICES

The Committee considered a report proposing a range of organisational changes
across the Adult Social Care Business Unit in order to establish an organisational
structure appropriate for the delivery of adult social care services within a
transformed social care system. The structure had been designed to enable adult
social care users to choose the services they needed to support their needs. The
report included information on the range of services that would be available and
the skills that would be needed to provide these services. The revised structure
was in accordance with the assigned budget reductions to the service and there
had been particular effort to ensure that a minimum amount of staff were
displaced.

The Committee referred to the attached diagram:




Page 37

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

Advice & Advice & Advice &
Information Only Information Only Information Only
N o Personal
Re-ablement Social Work
Referral = Latt —p mujp | Budget Support
Safe Guarding Income
Services Maximisation

This conveyed the pathway to adult social care services from the point of referral
and showed how the services would be constructed to respond to user’s adult
social care needs. Staff with the required expertise would be placed at the various
points of the above pathway to ensure that users gained an optimum service at
each point and were not delayed at certain parts of the pathway. The Committee
were advised that contact with the service would be made easier as there would
be expert advice available to the user at each required stage. It was noted that
the initial aim of the service, when receiving a referral, was to support the client to
reach their optimum level of health before assessing which further services were
needed. It was noted that residents accessing the service could always re-enter
the pathway after receiving support. The Committee noted that, where an
individual was in receipt of the re-enablement service and was deemed likely to
need an ongoing support, a social worker would complete an assessment which
would lead to calculations on the cash amount to be allocated to them to buy
services or products to meet their individual care needs. The individual could then
decide if they wanted to supplement this allowance with their own personal funds
to achieve a higher level of independence.

In response to a question on the cost of advice to a resident, it was noted that this
was free.

Members sought clarification on the level of financial oversight provided by the
Council when individuals were managing their own finances and there was
particular concern on monitoring how funding was spent and if spent
appropriately. Members learned that the system of Direct Payments, which
allows individuals to manage the finances of their own care package, had been in
existence for around 7 years and therefore was not a new scheme for the Council
to monitor. Individuals had flexibility to draw down their funding to suit their
monthly needs. A Social Worker would complete an assessment which
contributed to ascertaining whether the individual was able to manage their own
finances. They would be required to set up a separate bank account to receive
the payments for their social care needs and would have been advised by the
Council of audits to be completed on their accounts to ensure that money was
being used accordingly.

Members commented on the service pathway and how users, that was in
between services, would be dealt with as it seemed that they would not have a
single contact person throughout their care. It was recognised that a single
contact person would potentially be favoured by the user, however the expert
advice and support received at each particular pathway stage outweighed the
benefit received from a single person contact. This approach was in the long term
more beneficial to the user. The Committee noted that this model of working had
already resulted in significant reductions in delayed discharges from hospitals.




Page 38

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

RESOLVED

i.  That the organisational restructuring of the Adult Social Care Business unit
set out in the body of the report and the accompanying appendices be
agreed.

i.  That the staffing strategies set out in Appendix 9 to implement the required
changes be agreed.

GPCO151

SINGLE FRONTLINE SERVICE

The Cabinet agreed on the 25th January to the amalgamation of Frontline
Services with the elements of services provided by Safer Stronger Communities
business unit into a new single Frontline Service. A further report setting out the
details of the reorganisation was presented to this Committee on the 29th March
at which members considered and agreed, in principle, the proposed Single
Frontline Business Unit structure for consultation. This further report set out the
final proposals, following consultation, for the reorganisation of the services listed
above into a new Single Frontline Service. This restructure would deliver £3.6m
in savings, a proportion of these savings £1.4million(of the total £3.6 million
savings to be made) had been predicated on the disestablishment of the
Neighbourhood Management Service which had previously been considered at
General Purposes Committee meetings on the 15th February and again following
consultation , on the 10th March 2011.The proposed restructure within this report
sought to deliver the remaining savings, a net reduction of 2.2m from the existing
Frontline Services structure. In the opening presentation, the Committee were
asked to note that in Appendix C, containing the structure chart for
Neighbourhood services, listed 2 health and safety food officers reporting to the
regulatory services manager, one of these post’s role also included senior
environmental officer duties. The Interim Director of Urban Environment continued
to set out the minor changes made to service specific areas. These included
changes to : grading of posts (some initial evaluations to be verified but would
have no impact on ring fencing), postholder reporting lines, deletion of a Contract
management post and Contract Support Officer post in order to create two
Contract development officer posts, adding a senior revenue officer post to
Parking services as was a priority to maintain income level from this service,
funding through the deletion of 0.5 Concessionary Travel Officer post and one
correspondence officer post . The Committee were asked to consider and agree
the Single Frontline structure.

Understanding was sought on the requirement to have a team of four smarter
travel officers. It was noted that these postholders were directly funded by
Transport for London and did not incur a cost to the Council. This was the first
year of a three year funding commitment.

The Committee commented on the number of correspondence officers employed
in the parking team and sought an understanding of their roles and duties. It was
reported that a high volume of parking correspondence was received by the
service on a daily basis. The Interim Director of Urban Environment advised that
the number of staff employed to deal with correspondence in parking was low




Page 39

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

compared to similar teams in other boroughs.

RESOLVED

i. That the proposed new Single Frontline Structure as set out in the report
be agreed.

i. That the above decision takes into account the outcome of the
consultation with staff and trades unions as outlined in the appendices of
the report and gives due regard to the Authority’s public sector duties
including the consideration of the attached Equalities Impact Assessment.

iii.  That the timetable for implementation of the new Single Frontline Business
Unit be noted.

GPCO152

TEMPORARY CHANGE TO STREET TRADING POLICY

The Committee were informed that the Council’s street trading policy set out a
framework for the approval and control of street trading in the borough and this
policy specifically prevented the issues of temporary street traded licences. The
committee were asked to agree a temporary relaxation of this policy restriction for
a trial period . It was noted that the results of this trial period would feed into a
wider review of street trading which would come before the Regulatory
Committee in 6 months time. In the meantime it was proposed to complete a
consultation exercise with residents and traders in areas prior to any trial period
being implemented . Feedback to the Chair would follow on the outcomes of the
consultation with steer being sought on whether a report back to committee was
needed. There were two choices available to the committee, to consider a
relaxation of the policy for the whole borough or for specified areas listed in
3.1.b.

The committee learned that there had been interest reported previously to the
service from perspective traders in obtaining street trading licences and it was
noted that Haringey was the only borough to have a blanket ban on temporary
street trading .

It was noted that the specified areas of Holmesdale Road N6 and Archway Road
set out in recommendation 3.1.b were essentially the same area and policy
relaxations would not proceed unless there was strong support for this scheme.
Information was further provided on the reasoning behind the suggested
specified areas of Hornsey Town Hall, Lymington Avenue and Elm Park Road.

Members were informed that it would be difficult to report back the results of all
the separate area consultations to this Committee as this information would be
considered as part of the overall review on street trading licenses to be reported
back to the appropriate Committee in 6 months time . However, to ensure that




Page 40

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

there was appropriate communication with councillors, officers would ensure that
ward members were part of the consultation exercise. It was noted that traders
views in existing areas would be sought as part of the consultation and issues
such as the economical impact would be picked up in the overall review to be
completed in 6 months time.

The Committee advised officers that this was also a local policy issue which
would be very relevant to the work of the Area committees. Therefore it would be
useful to add the topic of street trading licenses to their work plans. They further
questioned whether licensing policy would be part of the Corporate Committee’s
terms of reference as it was likely to now be in the remit of the new Regulatory
Committee.

RESOLVED

i. That amendments to the current street trading policy so that applications
for temporary street trading can be permitted for a trial period of 6 months
from this decision be agreed.

ii.  That consultation be undertaken with ward councillors, Area Committees,
residents and traders in the affected areas prior to any trial period being
implemented.

iii. That feedback on the consultation and discussion on the final locations
for temporary street trading licences be designated to the Regulatory
Committee.

GPCO153

RESTRUCTURE OF RECREATION SERVICES

The Committee considered proposals for the reshaping of Recreation services.
These proposals were intended to tackle base budget pressure, support service
externalisation and contribute to achieving an agreed budget saving of 2.7m over
the next 3 years. They would result in the reduction of 50 posts in the service this
would leave a majority of staff (145.3FTE) in Operational services, 13 FTE in
Client service and 12FTE in Commissioning services. The Assistant Director of
Recreation Services explained that he was seeking to keep the number of staff
displaced and subject to compulsory redundancy to a minimum. Currently there
were 14 posts in this situation but efforts were being made to enable them to take
voluntary redundancy/recruitment to remaining vacancies. Paragraph 11 was
refereed to which set out the consultation methods used and the key changes
made to the proposals following the consultation process.

It was highlighted to the Committee that the significant changes to the structure of
Recreation Services were the reductions to the Parks area due to decease in
funding. The staffing structure for the Parks service going forward was illustrated
with the following changes highlighted.

e There would be two operational areas each with a Manager, Assistant
Manager and 4 Team Leaders. Each of these operational areas would




Page 41

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

have 3 generic Operational Zones/Teams , with a Team Leader, senior
operative and 4 Operatives (36 staff in total) .Furthermore each operational
area would lead a taskforce team , with a borough wide remit, and a Team
Leader with 6 operational operatives. These teams would cover hygiene;
gate locking, gang mowing, tree works and machinery, play and general
maintenance.

¢ [t was noted that the teams would operate out of 6 depots and use 5 sub
depots. There would be four depots shared with Veolia, whilst a further 4
would exclusively used by Veolia.

Following consultation with staff, there were changes made as further staff had
come forward with voluntary redundancy requests. These included: a
management selection process being chosen instead of an interview selection
process for Parks operational staff, use of slotting in as opposed to closed ring
fences used where there was found to be no net reduction in staff and depot, the
selection of the Broadwater Farm Community Development Officer post was to
be appointed through a closed ring fence instead of an open ring fence and 2
vacant apprentice gardener posts had been deleted. The Committee noted that
the service were examining alternative employment opportunities for 3 female
black and ethnic minority staff working at the catering section of Tottenham
Green Centre who were identified in the Equalities Impact Assessment was facing
an unequal impact as a result of the restructure.

Following this information the Committee were asked to consider the
recommendations at paragraph 3 and agree them.

The Committee expressed concerns at the reductions in Park staff and in
particular pointed to one of the overriding aims of the Council which was to protect
frontline services and questioned whether this was being adhered to given the
level of reductions in the Parks service. There was further concern about the
recent cleanliness of Parks which some members of the Committee felt had
deteriorated in recent months. They asked whether there were alternative ideas
on new ways of working instead of the reductions in staff. In response it was
noted that the Cabinet paper, as the policy document leading the staff change,
had contained the information on the creative ideas on how the service would
work differently as a result of a reduced funding package. It was important to note
that plans for taking the service forward, following restructure, were at an early
stage but would be progressed. There were a number of ideas and proposals to
consider in particular on how the hygiene in parks would operate.

Reference was made to the earlier discussion on spans of control in which a
manager was expected to manage around 5-8 staff. This was not followed in this
restructure as the Assistant Manager was assigned to lead 4 Team Leaders and
therefore clarification was sought on the duties of this role. In response it was
noted that the Assistant Manager was expected to manage maintenance across
the parks, liaise with Homes for Haringey and manage their sites & property areas
and have responsibility for park events. The team managers were expected to be
mobile and not site based to enable them to detect maintenance and hygiene
issues .In response to the point on the sharing of facilities with Veolia and the
impact this would have, it was noted that this was an overlap negotiated in the
waste management contract. Following the reduction of the Parks service it was




Page 42

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

not financially viable to have these depots for the exclusive use of the Parks team.
The Parks service would still use 6 depots and 5 sub depots. They would share
use with Veolia with 4 of these. They would also have exclusive use of a further 4
of the 5 remaining depots. There would be limited rental income with Veolia
making an investment in the refurbishment of these depots. .

There was a question on how many operational tasks had been examined to
provide savings. An example was having an operative assigned to lock up a park
which could be looked at as presently this was not applied to all parks or where
there was easy access to the park regardless of a lock. It was noted that
currently options for locking parks was examined at each local level.

The Chair asked the representative from the Employee side to address the
meeting and provide their response to the report and its recommendations. Helen
Steel, Employee side representative started her presentation with the
recommendation that the Committee do not approve the proposals contained on
the restructure of the service and set out the reasons for this:

e The current performance of the parks service was upper quartile and the
plans for area based deployment would impact on the performance and
perception of Parks.

e The use of compulsory redundancy had not been fully ruled out. In
response the Assistant Director for Recreation Services advised the
meeting that there would be considerable effort made to ensure that there
were no compulsory redundancies. He was confident that the available
positions would be recruited to with existing staff. This was communicated
to staff at the 2 mass meetings organised.

e |t was further claimed that not all staff had received the consultation
documents on time and an extension to the consultation period had not
been agreed. The consultation document contained little information on
volumes of work , the effect of the changes or the selection process. An
assertion was made that this could make the service subject to legal
challenge as the consultation could be deemed not meaningful as the
document did not contain the information as set out above. In response to
these claims, the Assistant Director for Recreation services informed the
Committee that the consultation document identified the options for
selection and at the meetings with staff it was made clear that there would
be engagement with the staff and union branch officials to agree this
process. Subsequent to this there were meetings held with staff and a
management assessment selection template agreed which may now not
be necessary as the need to make compulsory redundancies was
diminishing. The Committee noted that a 40 day consultation period was
established which recognised the need for further discussion on specific
issues and the Easter period. There were no formal requests to extend the
consultation. Information was provided in the consultation on the future
service costs, employee numbers and deployment. There were also
indications given on where there would be work programme reductions. As
the restructure of the service was in an embryonic stage there would be
further work on how the service will move to the new zonal/team structures.
In terms of the legal position of the consultation exercise, the Monitoring
Officer advised that as a rule where there is a proposal to dismiss then




Page 43

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

notification of this should be supplied to employees 30 days before this
would take effect, which in this case, had been done. It was as noted that
not all employees had received their consultation packs at the same time
due to being located at wide and varying locations , being on annual
leave, and Easter period leave . However, what would be considered in
the event of a legal challenge would be the overall efforts made by the
service on consultation and given that they could demonstrate the
considerable efforts made to avoid compulsorily redundancy and could
evidence that they had engaged in staff meetings it was unlikely that the
service would be found to have not followed their public duties.

e The deputation claimed that information on potential redundancy payments
or selection methods was not circulated effectively to allow employees to
gain a correct idea of what their redundancy payments would be. In answer
to this assertion, the Committee were informed by the Assistant Director of
Recreation services, that it had been recognised that Parks staff would not
have access to Harinet, the internal Council website which contained a
voluntary redundancy calculator. Instead this information had been
calculated for them and supplied in writing.

e The deputation disputed that there were plans to delete the vacant
gardener apprentice posts or to reduce the number of agency staff. They
felt that the budget for apprentices should be re-directed to reduce the
number of redundancies. In answer to this, it was noted that there were 4
apprenticeship gardener posts with plans to delete two of these posts .The
remaining two posts would be recruited to as part of the Council’s wider
responsibility to offering some apprenticeship opportunities.

e They advised that the report had not provided an indication of past spend
on agency and consultant staff. There was allocation in posts for the use
of agency staff to cover hygiene duties and maintenance works. The
deputation disputed the need to employ agency staff to cover maintanence
work as there was a consistent demand for completing this work
particularly in housing estates where maintenance of shrubs and trees was
key safety aspect. In reply it was noted that there had been significant
reduction in the use of consultants. The service improver working with the
service had completed their term of employment in December 2010. It was
noted that the service had major externalisation programmes but the
consultants ,that were managing these projects, were funded from external
sources. There had been major reductions in the use of agency staff but
there would be a need to call on some agency staff at certain times in the
year due to the seasonal nature of the works in Parks.

e The deputation proposed that the remaining budget for Parkforce be
redirected to the Parks service to reduce the need for redundancies. As
there was already a considerable reduction in park staff presence in the
day, it was questionable whether Parkforce staff was affordable and
therefore their presence required in the evenings and weekends. It was
recommended that instead more gardener posts should be recruited to as
they were able to have the dual role of providing a presence in the parks
during the day and keep up the necessary maintenance of trees, shrubs
and bushes which contributed to the safety features of a Park. The




Page 44

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

Assistant Director for Recreation service advised that there have already
been significant reductions made to grant funding and the service were in
discussion with stakeholders on how best they could support volunteering
led activity.

e The deputation claimed that there were plans for volunteers to take on
some of the grounds works which had health and safety implications and
costs that would incurred in training participants. Instead this funding
should be used to keep existing Parks staff and avoid redundancies. The
Assistant Director reported that the voluntary group BTCV obtained grant
funding to carry out some parks duties and they were obliged to include
them in the consultation on the restructure of the service. There would be
no compromise in relation to health and safety and there was not the
expectation that core grounds maintenance task would be undertaken by
volunteers.

e The deputation reflected that the consultation gave no indication of future
staffing allocations and provided no information on the strategy behind the
staffing reductions to frontline staff. They felt the impact of reduced
grounds staff would be felt by resident’s .Employees had further suggested
alternatives to the reduction in staff i.e. working reduced hours, undertaking
flexible working and considering retirement options. In response , the
Committee learned that significant reductions had been made in both
management and support staff with increased expectations and demands
on the remaining posts. It was advised that pro rota the reductions in
management staff were equal to those proposed to frontline staff but met
through a deletion in vacancies and voluntary redundancy. There were no
further changes to Park operatives required and there was no contact from
other staff in the service about reducing their hours or suggesting
alternative working arrangements to warrant this proposal.

e The deputation advised that there were vacancies in the service which had
not been set out in the consultation document. They asked that these be
advertised internally to allow staff, with the potential for displacement to
apply and avoid redundancy. It was noted, in response, that the
vacancies were a result of voluntary redundancy applications. These posts
had recently been advertised internally and the Assistant Director was
confident that these posts would be filled with existing staff.

e The deputation informed the meeting that staff were unhappy about the
lack of consultation over the decision to allow Veolia to take over some
parks depots, and felt that this pre-empting the outcome of the
consultation. There were strong arguments for keeping depots in parks,
both for staff presence as a deterrent to anti-social behaviour and also to
reduce travelling time and associated costs. The Assistant Director for
Recreation services advised that the closure of the depots, following the
reductions in Parks staff had been avoided by coming to this agreement
with Veolia and they would continue to provide a presence in and around
the depot site. The waste management contract had been based on local
area delivery which this arrangement also responded to.

e In relation to the claim that there would be a cut in the number of visits to




Page 45

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

sites for litter picking, it was noted that there would be a review of the
existing programme/waste volumes collected/numbers of bins/integration
of litter and dog waste.

Before considering the recommendations the Chair asked the Committee to put
forward any further queries they had.

Clarification was sought on the total number of consultants and agency staff
currently employed by the service. It was noted that there were 2 consultants
funded by the Capital programme. These were one off investments already
agreed by Cabinet. There had been 11.5 FTE agency staff which had been
reduced to 6FTE. These remaining posts were to respond to seasonal
requirements of Park maintenance. The Committee noted that the notice period
of staff taking voluntary redundancy would fall within the summer months and
there was scope to consider what duties were carried out in this period by agency
staff.

There was considerable concern expressed on area deployment of Parks
operational staff and whether there were enough cleaning operatives in the
structure to agree recommendation 3.1.5. The Chair proposed that two extra
posts be assigned for cleaning duties to enable this recommendation to be
agreed. This was in response to the concerns and complaints received by
members of the Committee from residents about the recent cleanliness of parks in
their local areas. The Interim Director of Urban Environment asked that this
proposal be considered carefully as there would a lot of challenges to be
managed by the service and therefore the context of this request should be
considered with this.

Discussion ensued on how these two posts would be added to the
recommendation in terms of the budget allocations. The Chair agreed that he
would discuss the addition of these two posts with the Cabinet Member or the
Leader but he was confident that they would be agreed .In the event that they
were not agreed with, he would provide a report back to the next Committee on
this.

RESOLVED

i. Thatit be noted the proposals for the reshaping of Recreation services was
based upon the need to achieve initial budget savings of £1.53m from 1
April 2011.

i. That it be noted the proposed Parks related changes/reductions only relate
to Parks management and maintenance, and not the ongoing delivery of
grounds maintenance services to Homes for Haringey and Highways.

iii. That the focus and shape of the new structure for Leisure services i.e.
Client Operations and Commissioning be agreed.

iv.  That the specific changes and reduction in the establishment taking into
account the outcome of consultation set out in the report be agreed. This is
with due regard to the Authority’s public sector equality duty.




Page 46

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

v. The area based deployment of Parks operations staff with an additional 2
posts included and allocated to cleansing duties be agreed. These added
posts were subject to discussion and agreement with the Cabinet
Member/Leader, the outcome of which will be reported back to the
forthcoming meeting.

vi.  That the Permanent staffing structure at Broadwater Farm Community
Centre be agreed.

vi.  That it be noted, the completion of the current planned leisure
externalisation programme over the forthcoming two to three years would
require further organisational review.

GPCO154

RESTRUCTURE OF PROPERTY SERVICES

The Committee were asked to consider the proposals for the restructure of
Property services . They were advised that the role of Corporate Property
Services (CPS) in the future will focus on corporate asset planning, core landlord
functions and services (both internal and external) and ensuring the Council
receives competent and adequate professional advice. In addition the provision of
essential building management services with continuing emphasis on health and
safety, compliance and good use of resources, including facilities management.

Further to combined a number of teams and functions operational and support
roles had been reviewed to seek opportunities for efficiency savings and reducing
the number of posts. The following changes were therefore outlined to reshape
the service to be able to focus on the above priorities and reduce the
establishment with effect from 1% July 2011:

e Integrated management support to Technopark within the Corporate
Landlord Team, Hard FM team.

e A change of focus to the Hard FM function by adopting stronger
commissioning and client roles and further developing the relationship with
our Managing Agents and specialist property consultants.

e Revision of the soft FM management structure to concentrate resources
on leading operational delivery, combining the reception and building
support teams. This was to provide supervision during extended day on a
rota basis (7am-9pm).

e Bring together administrative and database related soft FM functions
(room bookings, ID, staff parking, stationery and requests) to provide a
responsive and flexible response to service requests accessed through a
Facilities Support team

e Re-design of the reception and building support service, increasing the
mobility of BSO’s and reducing provision. Continue providing a responsive
but less reactive service. Deletion of the River Park House Duty Officer
post, revised, extended, shift pattern for River Park House reception and
supporting a reception/concierge facility at other buildings.

e Cease the provision of the Building Maintenance Helpdesk function and
route calls direct to the Managing Agent (Europa) to eliminate duplication.




Page 47

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

The staffing changes to enable this were set out in paragraph 6 of the report.
RESOLVED

Further to no queries from the Committee, the proposed establishment changes
to Corporate Property Services resulting in 15 posts deleted , 2 posts changed
and 4 post created, was agreed.

GPCO155

SUMMARY OF DELEGATED DECISIONS

The report informed the General Purposes Committee of delegated decisions
taken by Directors in Consultation with the Chair of General Purposes Committee
on staffing matters. At the General Purposes Committee meeting on the 15th
February 2011, Members agreed that the Committee would be kept informed of
the decisions taken by delegated authority , by the Chair and directors, in relation
to staffing restructures by the means of a summary report being considered at a
Committee meeting when a sufficient number had been completed. The report
provided an update to the Committee on the number of decisions taken by
Directors in consultation with Chair of General Purposes over the last 6 months.
These decisions would have involved changes to the establishment, affecting 20
posts or less, where the relevant employee’s side are in agreement, or have not
raised objections within the agreed timetables (Council Constitution, Appendices,
Section E, Delegations to Officers, page 85.)

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

GPCO156

EXEMPT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

None

GPCO157

EXEMPT INFORMATION

The press and public were excluded from the meeting for consideration of the
following item as it contained exempt information as defined in Section 100a of
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local
Government Act 1985): paras 1 & 2: namely information relating to any individual,

and information likely to reveal the identity of an individual.

GPCO158

RELEASE OF EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT FOR AN EMPLOYEE

Agreed.




Page 48

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 19 MAY 2011

The Chair of the Committee, Committee members and Officers attending the meeting
wished to place on record their gratitude and thanks to Cyril Andrews and Steve Coles for
their work in the borough as part of their respective unions over a number of years. Their
input and advice in industrial relations over the years had been valuable and much
appreciated.

Councillor George Meehan

Chair



Page 49

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 19 APRIL 2011

Councillors Khan (Chair), Amin (Vice-Chair), Diakides, Meehan, Butcher and Strang
Apologies Councillor Gorrie

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY
PRAC77. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Clir Gorrie, for whom CliIr
Strang was substituting.

PRACT78.

URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business.

PRACT79.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

PRACS80.

MINUTES
RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 3
February 2011 be approved and signed by the Chair.

PRACS1.

DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

There were no deputations or petitions.

PRACS2.

FEE LETTER FOR 2011/12

Grant Thornton presented their Fee Letter for 2011/12, and advised that
the scale fee set by the Audit Commission for 2011/12 was £454,500.
The letter included details of the areas to be focussed on as part of the
Value for Money conclusion. In response to a question from the Chair,
financial resilience was defined as how well-prepared the Council was to
address the challenges of this spending review period and the
robustness of the medium term financial plan, particularly the 2011/12
budget.

The Chair asked the Director of Corporate Resources, as Section 151
Officer, to explain how the Council was prepared to meet the issues
raised in the course of the Localism Bill, in response to which it was
reported that, as the Bill became legislation and details became known,
individual directorates would be putting actions in place and work would
be undertaken to anticipate likely areas of risk and put measures in
place to address these. It was confirmed that the budget had been set to




Page 50

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 19 APRIL 2011

include appropriate resources for dealing with the impact of new
legislation, and that there was also a contingency in place to manage
unexpected issues.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRACS3.

REVIEW OF ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)
Graham Oliver, Head of Finance — Accounting, Control, Income,
presented the report on the review undertaken by external audit in
respect of the implementation of International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). The overall assessment of the Council's
arrangements was amber, and the report highlighted areas for further
work. Officers had accepted all of the recommendations made in the
report, and it was anticipated that all of the relevant arrangements would
be in place by the end of June 2011.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding assessment of
the adequacy of the accounting policies which had not been completed
at the time of this review, Grant Thornton advised that, where issues
were identified with the accounting policies subsequently, these would
be picked up in the ISA 260 report on the accounts. The Committee
asked about the inclusion of the Alexandra Palace and Park accounts, in
response to which it was reported that guidance was still awaited from
the Audit Commission as to whether charitable body accounts should be
incorporated. It was intended that an update on this could be given at the
first meeting of the successor committee.

The Chair asked for examples of assets under Property, Plant and
Equipment which should be written off from the revaluation reserve, in
response to which there had been a change in the way the sale of
assets was accounted and that the auditors had identified some areas in
the past 2 years where an adjustment was necessary as a result. It was
confirmed that these adjustments would have no impact on the bottom
line. In response to a further question from the Chair regarding the
assessment that was made when considering whether or not an asset
was surplus, the Director of Corporate Resources, confirmed that
officers looked across the Council to assess whether there was a need
for the asset to be used for another purpose, and also anticipated
whether there was a likely need for the asset in forthcoming years before
determining whether it was surplus. Mr Oliver confirmed that an asset
was only defined as surplus when, following such assessment, the
Council had made a definite decision that the asset was surplus and it
was anticipated that it would be sold within the next 12 months.

The Chair noted that for Local Authorities, the accounts for 2010/11
would be the first to be prepared under IFRS and that the 2009/10
accounts would also be restated under IFRS. Noting the overall
assessment as amber, the action plan attached to the report and that all
of the recommendations had been agreed, the Chair moved and it was:




Page 51

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 19 APRIL 2011

RESOLVED

That the external audit recommendations and associated comments of
the Director of Corporate Resources be noted.

PRAC84.

PROGRESS REPORT

The Committee considered the progress report from Grant Thornton,
including work and reporting arrangements for the 2010/11 accounts
audit, Value for Money conclusion, the 2011/12 fees letter, IFRS, and the
Grants Report. In response to a question from the Chair, further details
regarding the review of the Council’s progress on Personal Budgets
were provided and it was confirmed that this related specifically to Adult
Social Services.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRACSS.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT -2010/11 QUARTER 4

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on internal audit work undertaken during the 4™ quarter in completing the
2010/11 annual audit plan, reports issued for outstanding 2009/10
audits, fraud investigation work and work by human resources to support
disciplinary action across all Council departments.

The Committee expressed serious concerns regarding the findings of
Internal Audit in respect of Use of Consultants, in particular where cases
had been identified of consultants being employed with no business
case, no contract and no evidence of indemnity insurance. The Head of
Audit and Risk Management advised that the audit work had been
undertaken because Members had raised concerns around this area and
it had been identified as high risk for the Council. During 2010/11 there
had been a focus on reducing the number of consultants and work to
achieve this was ongoing. All the auditor's recommendations had been
accepted, an action plan was in place and follow up audit work would be
undertaken and reported back on. The Director of Corporate Resources
confirmed that there had been a reduction in the number of consultants
employed, in addition to which the agreed action plan would be followed
up and, where the auditor had identified areas of vulnerability, these
would have been addressed as a matter of urgency. It was confirmed
that the contracts referred to were not substantial.

The Committee expressed serious concern regarding the findings, as
this had an impact on public money, and asked how this situation had
been allowed to develop. It was reported that it was the responsibility of
individual directorates, where they were hiring consultants, to ensure
that there was a business plan and that a contract was in put place,
supported by the legal and procurement services. These issues were




Page 52

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 19 APRIL 2011

being addressed and there was ongoing work with procurement to
support this process. The Director of Corporate Resources confirmed
that this issue was being taken very seriously, particularly as public
money was involved.

In response to a question from the Committee, it was confirmed that the
audit had commenced in November 2010 and was reported on in
January 2011; the figures used were to the end of October 2010. The
Committee asked about the progress that had been made since the
audit had been undertaken, and whether the issues identified had been
addressed. The Committee also expressed concern that the
recommendations did not appear proportionate to the severity of the
issues identified, and asked how the actions and the controls to ensure
that such a situation could not recur would be monitored on a regular
basis at the highest level of the Council. The Head of Audit and Risk
Management advised that compliance with the audit recommendations
would be monitored by means of a follow up audit, and highlighted the
ongoing work with corporate procurement and internal audit to review
areas of spend and ensure that contract standing orders and financial
regulations were being complied with and that as much spend as
possible was on-contract. Any issues of non-compliance would be
reported to the Section 151 Officer.

The Committee asked about the degree to which they could rely on
assurances regarding compliance, especially at a time when financial
support services were being reduced. The Committee asked what
training was being provided to managers who would now need to take
on responsibilities previously undertaken by finance staff, such as
monitoring budget performance, in response to which it was confirmed
that Corporate Finance staff were working to provide support to
managers and to ensure that good practice was embedded in this
transitional year. It was reported that checks and controls would still be
delivered by using audit resources in a new way.

In respect of the Internal Audit findings regarding Payroll, the Committee
expressed concern regarding the recommendation that Council confirm
all new employees’ right to work in the UK, and that this implied that it
was not being done so already. The Head of Audit and Risk
Management confirmed that, as set out in correspondence with the Chair
prior to the meeting, the recommendation set out in the appendix to the
report was incorrect and should have read “It is recommended that the
payroll and SAP reconciliation should be reviewed and approved by an
independent officer. Where there are discrepancies, explanations should
be provided and these discrepancies promptly cleared from the
systems.” The response provided in the report, however, was accurate.
The item relating to right to work in the UK was work which had already
been completed, and had been included in the report as an outstanding
issue erroneously.

In response to a question regarding the way in which the issues
identified around Use of Consultants would be reflected in the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS), it was reported that the issues of




Page 53

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 19 APRIL 2011

contracts and contract spend would be reported on in the AGS, including
the work with corporate procurement to identify high risk areas and
target resources accordingly. Grant Thornton advised that it was
important for the AGS to provide specific assurances in the areas
relating to business cases and contracts for consultants.

The Chair highlighted the concerns raised by Members in relation to the
report, specifically the Use of Consultants, and requested that the
external auditor and Section 151 Officer exercise additional caution to
ensure that the issues identified in this area did not happen in the future.
In the context of this discussion, the Chair noted that decisions on
changes to processes and contract standing orders were due to be
taken by the Constitution Review Working Group. The Chair noted that
the reported performance was positive, particularly in relation to
implementation of audit recommendations, where the number of
recommendations outstanding was much lower now than it had been in
the past, as a result of action taken by the Committee.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the format of
the progress report and the information provided, the Head of Audit and
Risk Management advised that the report had developed in response to
previous requests from the Committee, and would be reviewed further as
the new governance arrangements came into place.

In considering the recommendations of the report, it was moved and
agreed that these be amended to include a recommendation that no
consultants be appointed unless a business case and contract was in
place, and that a report on this issue be presented to the Cabinet and to
the Corporate Committee at the first meeting of these bodies in the
2011/12 municipal year. The Head of Audit and Risk Management
further suggested that the follow up audit work on Use of Consultants be
carried out earlier than usual, and that an expanded sample be used to
assess the level of compliance with the recommendations, the outcome
of this work to be reported to the section 151 Officer and to the
Committee as an assurance.

RESOLVED

i) That the audit coverage and progress during the fourth quarter
2010/11 be noted.

ii) That the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations be noted.

iii) That, in light of the Committee’s serious concerns about the
use of consultants without a business case and contract being
place, a strong recommendation be made that no consultants
be appointed unless there is a business case and contract in
place, and that a report on the implementation of the audit
recommendations and the current position regarding
compliance with the Council’s regulations in respect of Use of
Consultants be presented to the Cabinet and to the Corporate




Page 54

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 19 APRIL 2011

Committee at the first meeting of these bodies in the 2011/12
municipal year.

PRACS6.

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN AND STRATEGY 2011/12

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented a report
on the proposed Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2011/12 and the internal
audit strategy. In response to a question from the Committee regarding
HR processes and whether these had been sufficiently tested to ensure
that they were ‘fit for purpose’ in the current circumstances, it was
reported that, as part of the annual audit of payroll, internal audit were
working with the Business Heads of services undergoing organisational
change to agree the key risk areas and controls which would be
expected to be in place. The supporting HR processes would be covered
and tested within the individual service reviews. From an audit point of
view, it was reported that they would be looking at the changes taking
place and the assessments by individual units, such as Equalities,
regarding whether the arrangements in place were fit for purpose. The
Director of Corporate Resources advised that the HR department were
working with change management personnel to share expertise and
support managers to keep performance levels high during this time.

The Committee asked how risks had been assessed, and whether this
was reflected in the allocation of resources in the proposed audit plan.
By way of example, the Head of Audit and Risk Management reported
that Key Financial Systems were audited annually so that, while these
represented very large risks, there was a cumulative knowledge of these
systems in place, whereas risks in other areas of the Council changed
from year to year. In response to a question regarding whether the basis
on which risks were assessed and prioritised could be included in the
report, it was reported that this was based on a range of supporting
documentation, including the departmental risk registers, and that there
might be cumulative reasons for changes in risk profile. Paul Dossett,
Grant Thornton, advised that there should be a clear process in place for
ensuring that the highest risks are allocated the appropriate audit
resource; given the level of detailed work which would go into making
these assessments, it was a question of how much information the
Committee wished to see in its reports.

Some Members of the Committee stated that they would not be
comfortable agreeing the proposed audit plan without fully understanding
the way in which this had been determined, given the significant amount
of resources involved. The Chair noted that the report gave a detailed
breakdown of the proposed plan, including a contingency of 155 days to
address issues as they arose. It was noted that resources were limited in
the current economic climate and that the proposed plan had been
formulated on the basis of a wide range of discussions and consultation
within the Council and in line with CIPFA guidance in order to best reflect
the Council’s risks. The Head of Audit and Risk Management advised
that the ‘Identifying Internal Audit Coverage’ section of the report set out




Page 55

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 19 APRIL 2011

the way in which the plan was derived, and gave a list of some of the
many factors taken into account. It was emphasised that the approach
needed to allow for a degree of contingency and flexibility in reflecting
the different risks facing the Council.

In response to concerns raised by the Committee regarding overspends
in certain departments, it was confirmed that progress against the overall
Council savings plan would be monitored and reported back to the
Section 151 Officer. The review of corporate expenditure set out in the
plan would constitute a line by line examination, supported by evidence
to ensure that things were really as stated. It was reported that internal
audit could not comment on the original budget-setting process, but
could provide assurance regarding compliance or non-compliance.

The Chair clarified that the Corporate Committee would have the power
to adjust the audit plan if it was decided that this was necessary during
the year, but expressed his opinion that the plan currently put forward
was adequate. In response to a question from the Chair regarding
whether the plan took into account the need for the Council to be
managed efficiently and economically, with fewer resources available,
the Section 151 Officer confirmed that this was the case. The Chair
asked where responsibility for overall control failures lay, in response to
which the Head of Audit and Risk Management advised that, as set out
in the Constitution, financial regulations and standing orders,
responsibility lay with individual managers, with the responsibility for
monitoring compliance resting with the auditors. It was confirmed that it
was the specific and absolute responsibility of the Section 151 Officer to
ensure that a framework of control was in place.

Noting the comments made during the discussion and the Chief
Financial Officer comments set out in the report, the Chair moved and it
was:

RESOLVED

i) That the internal audit strategy be noted and approved by the
Committee.

ii) That the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2011/12 be approved by
the Committee.

It was noted that Clirs Butcher and Strang abstained from the vote; they
did not support the recommendations of the report on the basis that
there was insufficient transparency regarding the process by which
priorities had been determined to assess whether these had been
correctly prioritised.

PRACS87.

ALEXANDRA PALACE - OUTCOME OF FOLLOW UP AUDITS AT
THE CHARITABLE TRUST AND TRADING COMPANY

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the outcome of the follow up audit work completed by the
independent internal auditors for Alexandra Palace and Park Charitable




Page 56

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 19 APRIL 2011

Trust and Alexandra Park Trading Limited. The Chair explained why this
report was presented to the Committee, as a previous report on the audit
of the Alexandra Palace and Park Charitable Trust and Alexandra Park
Trading Limited had been presented to the Committee on 28 October
2008, and the Monitoring Officer had previously given advice that the
Section 151 Officer was responsible for the overall financial position of
the Council, including Alexandra Palace

The Committee asked for an explanation of why a business plan had not
been put into place, in response to which the Director of Corporate
Resources advised that the Trust had been developing a detailed work
plan for its activities, but had been considering the future of the asset
during the past year; a regeneration working group had been set up and,
until its work had reached a certain point, it was difficult for the Trust to
set out its business future and establish a full business plan. The
intention to appoint a joint Chief Executive was part of this present
transition phase.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRACSS.

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the contract for
internal audit services, the Head of Audit and Risk Management
confirmed that the present contract would come to an end in March
2012, and that the Council was presently looking at the options available
to determine how best to proceed going forward.

The Chair expressed his gratitude to all the Members of the Committee,
officers and auditors for their work with the Committee, as this was the
final meeting of the Audit Committee. Cllr Meehan moved a vote of
thanks for the Chair for all his work on the Committee, which was
seconded by Clir Butcher and supported by the Committee Members.

The meeting closed at 9.25pm.

COUNCILLOR GMMH RAHMAN KHAN

Chair




Page 57

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 12 APRIL 2011

Councillors Watson (Chair), Gibson, Stennett, Beacham, Jenks, Wilson,
Howard Jones and Melling

Apologies Michael Jones and Brown

Also Present: Howard Jones and Roger Melling

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PRPP41. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Keith Brown, Michael Jones
and Kevin Bartle.

PRPP42. | URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new items of urgent business.

PRPP43. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Clir Watson declared a personal interest as a deferred member of the
Haringey Pension Scheme.

Cllr Jenks declared a personal interest as a member of the Haringey
Pension Scheme, and also as a volunteer with the Citizens Advice
Bureau and as a Friend of Cooperscroft, owned by TLC, which were
both scheduled and admitted bodies of the Fund.

Clir Wilson declared a personal interest as an employee of the National
Association of Pension Funds.

Roger Melling declared a personal interest as a pensioner member of
the Haringey Pension Fund.

PRPP44. | MINUTES
RESOLVED

That the unrestricted minutes of the meeting held on 22 February 2011
be approved and signed by the Chair.

PRPP45. | EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2010/11

Subarna Banerjee from Grant Thornton gave a presentation on the
external audit plan for 2010/11, outlining the audit approach and key
audit issues. In respect of the way Pension Fund liabilities would be
reflected in the accounts under the new International Financial Reporting




Page 58

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 12 APRIL 2011

Standards, it was confirmed that this would be in the form of an actuarial
report within the statement of accounts.

RESOLVED

That the Audit Plan prepared by Grant Thornton be agreed.

PRPP46.

PENSION FUND TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

Julie Parker, Director of Corporate Resources, presented this report,
which proposed a treasury management strategy statement for the
pension fund that mirrored the Council’s. It was noted that this was
considered the most efficient arrangement.

RESOLVED

That the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement for
pension fund cash be approved.

PRPPA47.

BRIEFING ON THE FINAL REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT PUBLIC

SERVICE PENSIONS COMMISSION

Nicola Webb, Head of Pensions and Treasury, presented the report on
key issues arising from the final report of the Independent Public Service
Pensions Commission, including recommendations to move to pensions
based on career average salary, to raise the normal pension age, that
the LGPS should remain funded and a number of governance
recommendations. It had been announced that the recommendations of
the report were to be accepted in full by the Government, and that
specific proposals for consultation would be brought forward in the
autumn Spending Review.

In response to questions from the Committee on the recommendations
regarding collaborative working, it was reported that the Hutton report
had not set out any specific examples, but officers were discussing this
issue with other London Boroughs. The Committee requested that an
update report on collaborative working between pension funds be
reported to the Corporate Committee early in the next municipal year.
The Committee asked about possible employee contribution rates in the
future, in response to which it was reported that this was an issue that
the Government was currently looking at. No consultation had at
present been undertaken with regards to a contribution rate rise,
however it was noted it was possible for a rise to come into effect from
April 2012.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

PRPP48.

MYNERS PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE - ASSESSMENT OF
EFFECTIVENESS 2010/11

Nicola Webb presented the report on the results of the formal
assessment of effectiveness of the Committee, to comply fully with the




Page 59

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 12 APRIL 2011

Myners Principles, and thanked Members of the Committee for their
responses. The assessment had resulted in an average score of “good”,
with areas identified for improvement including training, a review of the
quarterly data provided and business plan setting.

In response to feedback from Members regarding a wish for training on
different asset classes, such as hedge funds, it was reported that the
Investment Strategy being reported on later in the agenda left it open for
the fund to move into diversifying asset classes and that appropriate
training would be undertaken before any such development was made. It
was also agreed that a general glossary of terms relevant to the
management of the pension fund would be circulated to Committee
Members.

RESOLVED

That the proposed wording of the disclosure for the Pension Fund
Annual Report regarding the assessment of effectiveness set out in
paragraph 15.3 be approved.

PRPP49. | ACADEMIES - DEFICIT RECOVERY PERIODS
This item was withdrawn from the agenda.
PRPP50. | DRAFT WORK PLAN
Nicola Webb presented the report on the draft work plan for the 2011-12
municipal year, which set out the key strategic activities for the next 12
months. It was reported that, following changes to the accounting rules,
the draft accounts would no longer be reported up to Committee, only
the final accounts.
RESOLVED
That the draft work plan for the 2011-12 municipal year be approved.
PRPP51. | ADMISSION AGREEMENT FOR VEOLIA

lan Benson, Pensions Manager, presented the report on the admission
agreement for Veolia ES UK Ltd to the Haringey Pension Fund. The
Committee were advised that the report circulated should be amended at
paragraph 4.3 to reflect that the value of the bond should in fact read
£1.271m, the name of the organisation at paragraph 5.1 should read
Veolia ES UK Ltd, and at paragraph 7.3 the contribution rate ought to
read 22.1%.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding how an
excessive salary increase would be defined, Mr Benson advised that this
was not clearly defined, although salary increases would be looked at if
they were in excess of the actuarial assumptions.

RESOLVED




Page 60

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 12 APRIL 2011

i) That the admission of Veolia ES UK Ltd as a transferee
admitted body to the Fund from 17" April 2011 be agreed.

ii) That the agreement be a closed agreement such that no new
members other than those listed in the admission agreement
can be admitted.

iii) That the contractor be required to provide a Bond to the value
of £1.271m to be reviewed by the Fund actuary on an annual
basis.

iv) That final approval to the terms of this Admission Agreement
be delegated to the Chief Financial Officer.

PRPP52. | ADMISSION AGREEMENT FOR EUROPA SUPPORT SERVICES LTD
lan Benson, Pensions Manager, presented the report on the admission
of Europa Support Services Ltd (ESSL) as a transferee admitted body
participating in the Haringey Council Pension Fund from 1% November
2010. The Committee was advised that the contribution rate at
paragraph 13.1 of the report ought to read 28%. It was noted that this
agreement related to a single employee.

RESOLVED

i) That the admission of Europa Support Services Ltd as a
transferee admitted body to the Fund from 1% November 2010
be agreed.

ii) That the agreement be a closed agreement such that such
that no new members can be admitted.

iii) That the contractor be required to provide a Bond valued by
the Fund actuary to cover its potential pensions liabilities
should the contractor fail commercially and that the Bond
value is reviewed annually.

iv) That final approval to the terms of this Admission Agreement
be delegated to the Chief Financial Officer.

PRPP53. | CESSATION AGREEMENT FOR EUROPA WORKFORCE SYSTEMS

lan Benson, Pensions Manager, presented the report on the funding
position attributable to Europa Workspace Ltd on their cessation as an
admitted body to the Haringey Pension Fund at 30" October 2010.

RESOLVED

That the settlement of the £64.9k surplus attributed to Europa
Workspace Ltd on the cessation of the admission agreement be noted.




Page 61

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 12 APRIL 2011

PRPP54.

NEW ITEMS OF UNRESTRICTED URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new items of unrestricted urgent business.

PRPPS55.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED

That the press and public be exclude for the following items.

PRPP56.

EXEMPT MINUTES
RESOLVED

That the exempt minutes of the Pensions Committee held on 22
February 2011 be approved and signed by the Chair.

PRPP57.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

David Crum, Aon Hewitt, introduced the report on the proposals for the
implementation of the investment strategy decisions made at the
previous meeting of the Pensions Committee.

RESOLVED

That the recommendations of the report be agreed.

PRPP58.

NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS
There were no new items of exempt urgent business.
The Chair thanked everyone for their work on the Pensions Committee

during the previous municipal year, particularly those who had
participated in the Investment Strategy Working Group.

The meeting closed at 20:00hrs.

COUNCILLOR RICHARD WATSON

Chair




Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63

UNRESTRICTED MINUTES OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 14 APRIL 2011

PRESENT :
* DENOTES ATTENDANCE

Councillors Bull, *Goldberg, *Gorrie, *Kober, *Meehan (Chair) and *Whyte

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

RECO21., APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Bull.

NOTED

RECO22., URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business.

RECO23. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interests.

RECO24., MINUTES
RESOLVED
That the unrestricted Minutes of the meeting of the Remuneration

Committee held on 13 December 2011 be signed as an accurate record
of the proceedings.

RECO25., REVIEW OF THE APPRAISAL SCHEME - TO FOLLOW
The Chair asked for a brief introduction of the report.

The Assistant Chief Executive — Mr Young advised the meeting that the
report had been late due to the need to assess the proposed changes to
the current performance appraisal scheme for the Chief Executive, Chief
& Deputy Officers, with the Independent external assessor — Mr Penn
who was in attendance.

Mr Young commented that in respect of the background to the changes
proposed, the Committee would recall that at its previous meeting in
December 2010 there had been concerns expressed as regards the
current performance appraisal scheme having insufficient clarity in
relation to performance and outcomes. Members had commented on
the lack of sufficient transparency and little information provided on a
large number of posts, and that the award of increments appeared by
and large to be virtually automatic.




Page 64

MINUTES OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 14 APRIL 2011

In particular Mr Young referred the Committee to the table detailed at
para 7.2 which gave an analysis of increments awarded over the past 3
years with the scheme allowing for awards ranging from 0-4 increments
on either a consolidated or non consolidated basis. Mr Young advised
that generally there had been awards of between 0-2 incremental pay
points, with the majority of individuals receiving 1 increment.

Given the concerns expressed that the Committee were in effect being
presented with a fait acompli at the point of considering the proposed
increment awards Mr Young advised that the scheme was proposed to
be revised to have a more focused and transparent scrutiny of the
scheme with Chief and Deputy Chief Officers — approx 30 being subject
to in depth analysis and a 360 degree peer/management appraisal. The
existing scheme would apply to remaining senior officers. The terms of
reference of the new Corporate Committee would be amended to reflect
the proposed changes. As a result, the standards for awarding
increments would change with for standard performance 0 increments to
be awarded, for performance beyond targets 1 increment awarded, for
exceptional performance 2 increments awarded, and for poor
performance 0 increment awarded and formal procedural action. This
would represent a variation in the contracts of SM graded staff and
consultation would commence to seek this change.

Mr Young concluded that the proposed scheme was not one which
allowed for large bonuses being paid to individuals and indeed
individuals did their jobs because of a commitment to the work ethic and
not salary led. He also advised that the variation to the proposed
scheme affected both Mr Davies and himself any particular question that
could compromise either could be asked to Mr Penn.

The Committee then undertook a wide ranging discussion in relation to
the proposed changes to the performance appraisal scheme, the main
points being:-

e That the setting of performance targets was key in terms of being
able to assess performance, and that there needed to be some
consideration of who should be responsible for setting these and
where they should be signed off — and clarification sought and
given in relation to whether this was the function of the Cabinet
Member responsible for the service area, or by this Committee or
its successor body, that Cabinet members were involved in the
target setting together with individuals meeting with Chief
Executive/Director responsible, to set targets;

e that the table shown at para 7.2 was not entirely accurate in terms
of those 26 persons who did not receive an increment in that a
number of those within that figure had either commenced the
service with the Council after the appraisal year had commenced,
or had left the Council’ service during this period and comments in
response that there was no intention to mislead in terms of the
figures shown for O increments and that the tables also showed
that the vast majority of individuals had received 1 increment;

o reference to para 7.4 of the report in respect of this Committee




Page 65

MINUTES OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 14 APRIL 2011

Vi.

having discretion in terms of awarding increments and that there
had been no occasion where this Committee had actually refused
the awarding of an increment, and clarification that on previous
occasions the Committee had deferred consideration of the award
of increments pending further clarification/review of proposals;
clarification of the number of persons now to be assessed under
the proposed revised scheme and confirmation that there would
be a clearer and more in depth focus for approx 30 individuals as
opposed to 130, with the scheme’s implementation being subject
to staff side consultation and comment that the actual
performance appraisal scheme was not a contractual matter but
salaries were and therefore it was necessary to consult, and also
give notification of a variation of the performance appraisal
criteria;

comments from members that the successor Citee — the
Corporate Committee should have a clear role in terms of
approving of targets once they had been set through the already
established target setting route of CE/Director and Cabinet
member.

The Chair then summarised and it was:-
RESOLVED
That approval be given in principle to resolutions (i) to (iv) below noting

the need for some to be the subject of appropriate consultation and
notice to end the current performance appraisal scheme with staff;

that the analysis of the application of performance appraisal
for senior managers and Chief Officers in the Council, as
detailed in para. 7.2 of the report be noted;

that approval be given in principle to the changes to the
criteria for the award of incremental progression as detailed in
paragraph 7.6 of the report;

that approval be given in principle to changes to the scope of
the performance appraisal scheme to limit its application to
Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers;

that the changes to the methods of assessment and proposals
to amend appraisal documentation as detailed in para 7.8 of
the report be noted;

that it be noted that formal consultation would now commence
on the revisions to the performance appraisal scheme and that
any amendments to the proposals would be reported to the
successor body to the current Remuneration Committee, the
Corporate Committee, for consideration; and

that the successor body to the current Remuneration
Committee that the Corporate Committee, terms of reference
include responsibility for agreeing the finalised performance
targets for Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers on an
annual basis following the setting of the performance targets in
line with current practices of Chief Executive/Director and
Cabinet Member.




Page 66

MINUTES OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 14 APRIL 2011

RECO26.

ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED ITEMS OF BUSINESS THE CHAIR
CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT
Nil.

RECO27.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS
RESOLVED

That the press and public be excluded from the proceedings as Item 8
contains exempt information as defined in paras 1 & 2 of Section 100a of
the Local Government Act 1972; namely information relating to any
individual, and information which is likely to reveal the identity of an
individual

SUMMARY OF EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL PROCEEDINGS

RECO28.

EXEMPT MINUTES

Agreed the exempt minutes of the Remuneration Committee of 13
December 2011

RECO29.

ANY OTHER EXEMPT ITEMS OF BUSINESS THE CHAIR
CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT
Nil.

The meeting ended at 18.45hrs.

COUNCILLOR GEORGE MEEHAN

Chair




Page 67 Agenda ltem 6

The Corporate Committee Terms of Reference
The Corporate Committee has:-

a) All the functions listed below in b) and stated not to be the responsibility of the
Council’s Executive/Cabinet in Reg 2 and Schedule 1 of the Local Authorities
(functions and Responsibilities)(England) Regulations 2000 S.12853(as
amended or further amended in any statute or subordinate legislation).
References to paragraphs below are those in the appropriate Schedule of the
Regulations.

b) The following Schedule 1 Functions:

i) Paragraph C — Health and Safety at Work; all functions discharged otherwise
than in the Council’s capacity as employer.

ii) Paragraph D - Elections; all functions relating to Elections except the approval
of pilot schemes for local elections which is reserved for Full Council.

iii) Paragraph H - Pensions; Determining the Council’s policies as “Employing
Authority “ and determining the terms of release of Chief and Deputy Chief
Officers aged 50 or over and made redundant or retired early with a claim on the
pensions scheme. Exercising all the Council’s functions as Administering
Authority” and being responsible for the management and monitoring of the
Council’'s Pension Fund and the approval all relevant policies and statements.
This includes:

A) Selection, appointment and performance monitoring of investment managers,
AVC scheme providers custodian and other specialist advisers;

B) Formulation of investment socially responsible investment and governance
policies and maintaining a statement of investment principles;

C) Monitoring the Pension Fund Budget including Fund expenditure and actuarial
valuations; and

D) Agreeing the admission and terms of admission of other bodies into the
Council’s Pension Scheme,

Note: Whenever the Corporate Committee considers a report on a Pensions
matter, the Chair will make a short announcement at the beginning or at
other appropriate stage(s) in the meeting indicating whether the Committee
is operating in its capacity as “Employing Authority” or as “Administering
Authority”. When the Committee is operating in its capacity as
“Administering Authority” Members must have regard to their duty as
quasi-trustees to act in the best interests of the Pension Fund above all
other considerations. When the Committee meets in this capacity its
membership shall include as non voting members one representative of
each of these groups:(i)current pensioners,(ii) employees of the scheme,
and (iii)other admitted bodies.



Page 68

(iv) Paragraph | - Miscellaneous; all functions except those retained by full
Council in Article 4. The Committee’s functions include:

(A) All functions relating to public rights of way in Part 1 except the creation,
stopping up and diversion of highways , footpaths and bridleways in
connection with development control decisions which are delegated to the
Planning Sub —Committee;

(B) Making arrangements for proper administration of financial affairs under
section 151 Local Government Act 1972 but the appointment or dismissal of
the Chief Finance officer is to be in accordance with the Officer Employment
Procedure rules in Part 4

(C)Formulating the Treasury Management strategy statement and amendments
to it for recommendations to full Council through Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance.
Receiving quarterly monitoring reports and an out-turn report after the close of
the year on treasury management policies and practices.

(D)Approving statements under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 and
any amendment or re-enactment of the Regulations and considering the
external auditors report on issues arising from the audit of the accounts or any
other concerns relating to accounting policies;

(E) Making arrangements for appointing and dismissing senior officers(deputy
Chief Officers and above) by establishing Appointment /Dismissal Panels in
accordance with the Officer Employment Procedure rules in part 4 and
determining the terms and conditions of service of those staff below Senior
Management grades, including procedures for dismissal. The Committee’s
functions include monitoring the operation and effectiveness of the scheme for
the performance appraisal and remuneration of the Council’s senior managers
and chief officers. The Committee agrees the terms and conditions of
employment, the pay structure and remuneration for these senior posts;

(F) Authorising the making of payments or the provision of other benefits in cases
of maladministration;

(G)Making orders designating public places in order to confer power on the police
to prevent nuisance by the consumption of alcohol.

(H) Taking decisions relating to changes to the establishment which are not
covered by the Officer Scheme of Delegation.

c) The following “Local Choice” functions set out in Schedule of the above
regulations;-

i) Any function under a local Act other than a function specified or
referred to in Reg 2 or Schedule 1 or expressly delegated elsewhere in
this Constitution;

ii) The determination of an appeal against any decision made by or on
behalf of the authority;



Page 69

iii) Passing a resolution that Schedule 2 to the Noise and Statutory
Nuisance Act 1993 should apply to the Council’s area (consent to the
operation of loudspeakers).

The Committee has the following Audit Functions;

i) Providing assurance about the adequacy of the Council’s Risk
Management Framework and Policy and Monitoring the effectiveness
of systems for the management of risk across the Council and
compliance with them.

ii) Maintaining an overview of the Council’s Local Code of Corporate
Governance;

iii) Monitoring the effectiveness of Council policies on “Whistleblowing”
and Anti-Fraud and Corruption;

iv) Considering and recommending for adoption the Council’'s Annual
Governance Statement;

V) Approving the Annual Internal Audit Plan and the Strategic Audit Plan
and arrangements for provision of internal audit services to the Council
and considering reports on internal audit activity;

Vi) Receiving the Annual Audit Plan and the Annual Audit Letter from the
external auditor and making recommendations on the latter.
Considering arrangements for the appointment of the external auditor;

vii)  Commissioning work from the internal and external auditors and
receiving reports from the Head of Audit &Risk Management on any
matter ; and

viii)  Questioning officers and Cabinet Members on matters relevant to audit
and to financial and non —financial performance and making
recommendations on these matters to Cabinet and full Council.

iX) The Head of Audit’s Annual Report

The power to make recommendations to the Council on any of its functions
set out in Article 4, and the power to establish sub Committees to consider
and report on any such functions but this does not include recommendations
to amend the Council’s Constitution nor does it prevent the Council from
making decisions on any matter when necessary without a prior
recommendation from the Committee.

There is a Protocol outside this Constitution setting out how the Corporate
Committee is to operate. The Protocol shall be applied in a manner consistent
with Committee Procedure Rules in Part 4 and any issue on procedure at the
meeting shall be subject to the ruling of the Chair. The Protocol can be
amended by the written agreement of the Leader’s of the Political Groups on
the Council.



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 71

HARINGEY GOVERNANCE REVIEW

DRAFT PROTOCOL COVERING CORPORATE COMMITTEE

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 A key objective of Haringey’s Governance Review 2010/11 is to reduce the
number of Council Committees, to develop a more streamlined, focused and
transparent decision-making structure. A single Corporate Committee is
therefore being established, to undertake the remit currently covered by the
Audit, General Purposes, Pensions and Remuneration Committees.

1.2 The Terms of Reference for the Corporate Committee is stated in the Council’s
Constitution (Part 3 Section C). The purpose of this protocol is to set out in
detail the process by which the Corporate Committee will function.

1.3 This document will be subject to regular review along with other governance
arrangements, to ensure that it remains updated in the light of experience.

2 MEMBERSHIP AND CHAIR

2.1 The Corporate Committee shall consist of 7 members. The members and chair
of the Corporate Committee shall be elected and ratified each year at the
Annual Council Meeting.

2.2 The membership of the Committee shall include non-voting co-optees for
Pensions matters, when the Committee is acting as “Administering Authority”.

2.3 Members of the Committee shall be trained with regard to their statutory roles
on Pensions, Audit and Treasury Management.

3 RESPONSIBILITIES

The responsibilities of the Corporate Committee are fully detailed in Part 3 Section C
of the Council’s Constitution. An overview of those responsibilities is given below:

3.1 Pensions

3.1.1  “Employing Authority”

The Committee shall act as “Employing Authority” to determine the Council’s policies
on pensions.

3.1.2 “Administering Authority”

The Committee shall also undertake the Council’'s functions as “Administering

Authority”, being responsible for the management and monitoring of the Council’s

Pension Fund:

e To be responsible for the management of the Pension Fund’s investments
including the setting of investment strategy, selection and monitoring of fund
managers, and publication and maintenance of statutory policy statements;

e To receive triennial actuarial valuations, publish and maintain a Funding Strategy
Statement and monitor the funding level of the Pension Fund;

e To be responsible for approving the Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts,
receiving the external auditor’s annual report and regular reports on matters
relating to administration.



Page 72

3.2 Audit
The Committee shall approve and monitor the following, as part of their Audit
function:

The Council’s Risk Management Framework and Policy;

The Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance;

Council policies on “Whistleblowing” and Anti-Fraud and Corruption;

The Council’s Annual Governance Statement;

The Annual Internal Audit Plan and the Strategic Audit Plan;

The Annual Audit Plan and the Annual Audit Letter from the external auditor;
The Head of Audit's Annual Report.

3.3 General Purposes
The Committee shall undertake the following:

e o o o o o o

Functions relating to public rights of way, except those which are delegated to
the Planning Sub-Committee;

Making arrangements for proper administration of financial affairs;
Formulating the Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS);
Approving statements under The Accounts and Audit Regulations;

Agreeing the terms and conditions of major service restructures;

Functions relating to Health and Safety at work;

Authorising the making payments in cases of maladministration;

Functions relating to Elections.

3.4 Remuneration
The Committee shall be responsible for:

Making arrangements for appointing and dismissing senior officers;

Agreeing the terms and conditions of employment, the pay structure and the
remuneration for senior posts;

Agreeing the terms and conditions of employment of those staff below Senior
Management grades, including procedures for dismissal.

4 MEETING FREQUENCY AND FORMAT

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

It is intended that the Corporate Committee shall normally hold four scheduled
meetings each year.

The Chair of the Corporate Committee may call a special meeting in
accordance with the process in the Council’s Constitution (Part 4 Section B).

The work programme for the Corporate Committee shall be agreed between
the Chair of the Committee and senior officers, at the beginning of the civic
year.

It is intended that the agenda for each meeting will include items related to the
Committee’s responsibilities on Audit, General Purposes, Pensions and
Remuneration.

For items related to pensions, the chair shall announce whether the Committee
is acting as “Employing Authority” or “Administering Authority”. When acting as
“Administering Authority”, non-voting co-optees for Pensions shall be invited to
attend. These items shall be placed first on the meeting agenda.

Where the Committee needs to take decisions between scheduled meetings,
these shall be the responsibility of the Committee Chair in liaison with senior
officers.



Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



S Agenda ltem 7

Haringey Ccuncil
Agenda item:

Corporate Committee On 20 June 2011

Report Title. Quarterly Pension Fund update including Investment Strategy Review
Update

Report of Director of Corporate Resources

TP@W 1ol ] U

Signed:  Julie Parker

Contact Officer : Nicola Webb — Corporate Finance
Telephone 020 8489 3726

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Noting

1. Purpose of the report
1.1.  To report the following in respect of the quarter to 31t March 2011:
o Investment asset allocation and strategy
¢ Investment performance
* Responsible investment activity
e Budget management
e Late payment of contributions

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member
2.1 Not applicable.

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:
3.1.  Not applicable.

1 4. Recommendations
4.1 That the information provided in respect of the activity in the quarter to 31st
March 2011 is noted. i




Page 76

5. Reason for recommendations

5.1.

This report is for noting.

6. Other options considered

6.1. Not applicable.
7. Summary

7.1 The implementation of the revised investment strategy is underway with the
advertisement placed in the Official Journal of the European Union, so is on
target to meet the planned report back to Committee in September.

7.2 Investment performance in the quarter was on target with outperformance in
bonds, property and private equity outweighing underperformance in equities.

7.3 The budget was overspent by £8.2m due to lower dividend income than

anticipated, higher lump sums due to additional early retirements and higher
than average transfer values paid. TLC are now the only employer paying late,
despite monthly reminders of the statutory timescale.

8. Head of Legal Services Comments

8.1

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report.
There is a duty on an administering authority, where it has appointed an
investment manager, to keep their performance under review and to review
the investments made by that manager for the pension fund at least once
every 3 months. Members of the Committee should keep this duty in mind
when considering this report and have regard to advice given to them.

9. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

9.1.

There are no equalities issues arising from this report.

10. Consultation

10.1.

Not applicable.

11. Service Financial Comments ;
11.1  Performance of the Fund Managers continues to be carefully monitored in the

11.2

current market conditions. The investment strategy of the Fund has been
reviewed and the changes introduced will address the majority of these issues.

The budget was overspent by £8.2m due to a combination of higher lump
sums for those retiring early, a lack of recovery in dividend income during the
year and higher than average transfer values paid. The higher lump sums did
not arise until the final quarter of the year. Employer contributions to the Fund
are not affected by this overspend.




Page 77

12. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
None

13. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Northern Trust performance monitoring reports.
Fund Managers - Quarterly investment reports
Local Authority Pension Fund Forum bulletins

14. Iinvestment Update

14.1Fund Holdings at 31%t March 2011

Market Value % of Fund
£000

UK Equities 193,543 27.0%
held in individual shares 36,493
held in pooled funds 157,050
Overseas Equities 255,405 35.6%
held in individual shares 97,318
held in pooled funds 158,088 :
Bonds 127,266 17.7%
held in individual shares 27,296
held in pooled funds 99,970
Property 50,606 71%
Private Equity 24,221 3.4%
Cash : 66,188 9.2%
held by Fund Managers 4,770
held in-house 61,418
TOTAL 717,229

14.2 Update on investment strategy implementation

During 2010/11 Pensions Committee undertook a review of the Pension Fund
investment strategy and as a result decided to move to investing 70% of the Fund in
equities on a passive basis, 15% in index linked gilts also on a passive basis and to
retain the existing allocations of 10% to property and 5% to private equity.

It was reported to Pensions Committee in April 2011 that a European procurement
process was required to appoint fund managers to manage equities and bonds on a
passive basis. The advertisement has now been placed in the Official Journal of the
European Union with a view to appointing two fund managers. Aon Hewitt are
supporting officers in this process and a report recommending fund managers to
appoint will be brought to the next meeting of the Committee in September 2011.

In advance of these appointments, Pensions Committee agreed to make changes to
the bond mandates of the existing fund managers. It was agreed to move all of the



Page 78

UK gilt exposure and half of the Corporate Bond exposure to index linked gilts. This
has been carried out and Capital’'s bond portfolio is now entirely made up of index
linked gilts and Fidelity’s bond portfolio is 70% index linked gilts and 30% corporate
bonds.

15. Investment Performance Update: to 31t March 2011

15.1 Whole Fund

Return Benchmark Target (Under)/Out
Quarter 1.78 1.37 1.78 0
Year 8.07 8.60 10.24 (2.17)
Since 01/04/07 2.13 4.14 5.78 (3.65)

e Total Value at 31/03/11: £717.2m
¢ On target performance in quarter due to outperformance in both bond portfolios,
property and private equity.

15.2 Fidelity Equities

Return Benchmark Target (Under)/Out
Quarter 0.83 1.61 2.04 (1.21)
Year 6.34 7.51 9.21 (2.87)
Since 01/04/07 4.39 4.47 6.17 (1.78)

e Total Value at 31/03/11: £153.6m

» Outperformance in North American and Japanese equities was more than offset by
underperformance in Europe and the Pacific and an underweight position in
Emerging Markets.

15.3 Fidelity Bonds

Return Benchmark Target (Under)/Out
Quarter 0.85 0.08 0.23 0.62
Year ' 7.34 6.16 6.76 0.58
Since 01/04/07 7.51 5.99 6.59 0.92

o Total Value at 31/03/11: £83.0m
* Inthe quarter outperformance was seen in all categories, most particularly in- UK
gilts. '

15.4 Capital Equities

Return Benchmark Target (Under)/Out
Quarter 1.03 1.62 2.12 (1.09)
Year 8.61 7.71 9.71 (1.10)
Since 01/04/07 3.60 4.71 6.71 (3.11)

e Total Value at 31/03/11: £151.6m
* Outperformance in the UK and Japan was more than offset by underperformance
in other regions.



Page 79

15.5 Capital Bonds

Return Benchmark Target (Under)/Qut
Quarter 0.15 (0.36) (0.11) 0.26
Year 6.12 7.09 8.09 1.97
Since 01/04/07 5.15 5.71 6.71 1.56

» Total Value at 31/03/11: £44.2m
* The outperformance achieved was due to investment in corporate bonds.

15.6 Legal & General Equities

Quarter Year Since Inception
UK Fund 1.11 8.88 24.12
World Fund 2.18 8.16 25.47

e Total Value at 31/03/11: £148.6m
* Variation from benchmark limited to 0.06% in the quarter.

15.7 ING Real Estate

Return Benchmark Target (Under)/Out
Quarter 2.27 1.90 2.15 0.12
Year 6.01 9.09 10.09 (4.08)
Since 01/04/07 (6.72) (5.77) 4.77) (1.95)

e Total Value at 31/03/11: £50.6m

» Outperformance in the quarter due to an improvement in the performance of the
European holdings, which had been a drag on performance over the last year.

» The sale of the ING Real Estate team to CBRE Investors is anticipated to be
concluded in 3-6 months time. No further details are available yet.

15.8 Pantheon

Return Drawdowns in period % drawndown
Quarter 24.91 £1.56m '
Year 10.64 £8.66m
Since inception 1.28 £21.48m 44%

e Total Value at 31/03/11: £24.2m
e Majority of funds drawndown in the quarter were in relation to the US and

European funds.

15.9 In house cash

Value Average Average Return

Credit Rating | Maturity (days)
At 31/03/11 £61.4m AA - 76 0.74%
At 31/12/10 £62.2m AA 90 0.75%
At 30/09/10 £66.3m AA 85 0.65%
At 30/06/10 £66.5m AA+ 81 0.64%




Page 80

‘80UBUIBAOD

Buinosdwi uo uoneyNsuoD
s} Jo yelgns sy}

uo uoISSIWWOY) ueadoing
8y} 01 pspiwgns

usaqg sey asuodsal y

‘sa101j0d sybu

Jnoqe| mau jusws|dwi

0} ue|d 418y} passnosIp
pue ssaidx3 [BUOHEN YlM
juswabebus snoinaid dn
pPamojjo} [eJausr) B [ebaT

‘ueisyyezey ui 10108s
Buiuiw ayy ul A1sjes sy 0}
pJebas yum [elIN Jojeosy
pue sAwyezey| Buipnjoul
seluedwod Yim Jeuiwss
B ul yed »oo0} |enden

'saonoeld Aejes

PUE yyesy Jisy) o) uonelal
ul oid 4g yum juswebebus
pue sisAjeue Buinuipuod
usaq aney Ayepi4

Auanoe yuswabebuz Jayio

'S90UBJaYIP 8Y] UIRIUOD O]

soakojdws [eqolb pue gn
10} uonesusdwod ueipsw
8s0|2sIp 0} seiuedwod
ainbali 0} wayy abun

01 uoIssiwwo ) abueyoxy
¥ S81IN08g 8y} ‘1oyeinbal
SN 8y} 0} J8ys) e 0}
AioreuBis e si 44dv1 8yl

"aoueuLIopad

031 Yul| ou pue sdeo
sSnuoq JO 3oe| 8y} Inoge
SUJaOU0D 0] 8NP SeM SIy|
"S|0JJU0D) UOSUYO pue
[dAel] In] ‘uswsbeueiy
}ossy usapiaqgy Buipnjoul
saiuedwo? Jo Jaquinu

B Ul sa101j0d uoijessunwis.
Buluisouod s810A

uo paureisqe Jo jsurebe
Pa10oA |elausn) ¥ [eba]

‘Aoyiny

S92IMI8S [BloURUI

8y} Aq panss| spo) mau
sy} yuswedwy 03 buiuueld
a1am Asyl Moy JO aouUspIAS
99S 0] Usay atam Asy |
"se|01j0d uonessUNWSL
J1ayy 01 pJebau

yim spAoj] pue shejoleq
‘OGSH — s)ueq yn Jofew
8y} yum pabebus jeuden

‘aoueuopsd o3 pajejal
sem Aoljod uoijessunwal
SU} 1Byl paysiies aq pjnoo
Aayi 1Y) 0s sBunesw

8y1 JO aduenpe ul Ayjepi4
pabebus ssiuedwos
asau} |y "Ae|zeag

pue 000eqo] jeuaduw)
‘uiiuoT Joy Buipnjout
saio1j0d uonessunwal

JO Jaguwinu e uo pPajoA
Ayiepi4 Jepenb ayy Buung

SONSS| uollelaunway / 9JUBUIBAOL)

‘sulw 1addod psuue|d e
WO} 1Baiy) Japun Apease
BaJe ue susjealyl siyj
"BYSE|Y Ul aulw a|gged
pasodoud e Jan0 Ajsoyine
S, ) @s1o19x8 0} Aousby
U0I1198]04d [BIUSWIUOIIAUT
SN ay) Buibin uoeod
J0)S8AUI [BUOIIRUIBIUI

ue Jo ped si 44dv1 eyL

‘Auedwoo ayy Jo
spiepueis Ajajes g yiesy
pue joedwi |elUSWIUCHAUS

ay} anoidwit 0

padojsnap uasq sey 1.y}
ABsrens ayy passnosip
Aoyl -s82inosay elUEpOA
40 412010 Auliqeureisng
jo1yn peujodde Aimau ay)
yum prey sem Buneswi

"BOLBWY

yinog pue adoing

Ul S82JN0S 9|geurelsns
woJ} 824nos Asyi poom Jo
uoipodoud syy Buisesuous
ul ssauboud Jjpy) passnosip
Aeyl -Auedwod Buibexoed
pue Jyaded sy} ‘osug

BI01S Yim Jaw [ende)

‘suonels

Jamod pailj [eod Jo laquinu
e sejelodo yoiym ‘xeiq
Jenoped ui seiuedwod
ABisus uo ¢10g judyul

N 8yl ul paonposul 8q
"M yolym xey Jooj4 uogie)
ay1 Jo 10edw |enusiod

ay) Buiulwexs usseq arey
Aujept4 sspenb sy Buung

SONSS| [BJUSWUOAIAUT

d44dv1

jessuan) g jeba

leuoneuwsajuy jeuden

Auepid

LLOC UdIB 151 € papua sapenb ur AyAnoy Jusunsanul ajqisuodsay 91




Page 81

17. Budget Management - position at 315t March 2011

Budget Actual | Variance
£000 £000 £000
Contributions & Benefit related expenditure
Income
Employee Contributions 10,700 10,580 120
Employer Contributions 36,000 34,992 1,008
Transfer Values in 5,100 6,034 (934)
Total Income 51,800 51,606 194
Expenditure
Pensions & Benefits (30,000) | (32,240) 2,240
Transfer Values paid (5,300) (7,687) 2,387
Administrative Expenses (800) (688) (112)
Total Expenditure (36,100) | (40,615) 4,515
Net of contributions & benefits | 15,700] 10,991 | 4,709
Returns on investment
Net Investment Income 15,010 11,381 3,629
Investment Management Expenses (3,300) (3,200) (100)
Net Return on investment 11,710 8,181 3,529
Total 27,410 19,172 8,238

» Transfer values are unpredictable and vary considerably from year to year.

e Lump sum benefits were higher than anticipated due to early retirements resulting from

redundancies in the last quarter.

The budget for investment income was set on the expectation of an increase in dividend
income back to average levels, however dividends have remained at 2009/10 as the

economy is growing slowly.

18. Late Payment of Contributions

The table below shows the employer who paid contributions relating to January to March

2011 late.
Occasions Average Average monthly
late Number of contributions
days late
TLC 3 3 £6,500




Page 82



Page 83 Agenda ltem 8

Haringey Council
Agenda item:

Corporate Committee On 20 June 2011

Report Title. Pension Fund Governance Compliance Statement

Report of Director of Corporate Resources

T Rute

Signed : Julie Parker lD] 7 U/

Contact Officer : Nicola Webb - Corporate Finance
Telephone 020 8489 3726

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report
1.1. To consider an updated draft of the Pension Fund Governance Compliance
Statement in compliance with the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Administration) Regulations 2008.

1.2.  To consider the appointment of an independent adviser to the Committee in
relation to Pension Fund matters.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member
2.1 Not applicable.

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and / or other Strategies:
3.1.  Not applicable.




Page 84

4. Recommendations

4.1

42

4.3

That the revised Governance Compliance Statement be approved.

That the proposed appointment of an independent adviser to the
Committee on Pension Fund matters be approved.

That the proposal to engage Crispin Derby Limited to support the
appointment process be approved.

5. Reason for recommendations

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

To ensure that the Pension Fund has an up to date Governance Compliance
Statement in place in accordance with regulation 31 of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008.

An independent adviser on Pension Fund matters is recommended by the
Department of Communities and Local Government statutory guidance on
governance to support the Committee in challenging Pension Fund advisers
and fund managers.

Crispin Derby Limited arrange forums for all independent advisers supported
local authority pension funds and is therefore well placed to source an
appropriate adviser.

6. Other options considered

6.1.

Not applicable.

7. Summary

7.1

7.2

7.3

Regulation 31 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration)
Regulations 2008 requires that a Governance Compliance Statement is
published and kept up to date. The draft at Appendix A has been updated to
reflect the change to Corporate Committee. The Council has been assessed
to be fully compliant with the statutory guidance issued by the Department for
Communities and Local Government.

The independent adviser who served the Pensions Committee has resigned
from his post. The role of this adviser was to support the Committee in
challenging the advice it receives particularly in relation to investment matters.
Although it is not a requirement of the statutory guidance on governance
issued by Department of Communities and Local Government, it is a
recommendation.

Crispin Derby Limited organises regular forums for the independent advisers
who support local authority pension funds and uses this knowledge to support
local authorities source appropriate advisers. It is proposed Crispin Derby




Page 85

Limited is asked to source four or five potential independent advisers to the
Committee. It is proposed the appointment from this shortlist is delegated to
a interview panel to include the Chair of the Committee, officers and to be
supported by Crispin Derby Limited. The cost of this service to appoint an
adviser would be £5,500.

8. Head of Legal Services Comments

8.1  The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report.
Regulation 31 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration)
Regulations 2008 requires the Council as Administering Authority to make
such revisions as are appropriate to its governance compliance statement
following a change of delegation of the function of maintaining a pension fund
to another committee and also to state the extent to which it complies with
statutory guidance provided by the Secretary of State.

8.2  The appointment of the independent adviser will need to be compliant with
Contract Standing Orders i.e. a competitive process should be followed. The
approval for the award of contract to the adviser may be made by the Director
of Corporate Resources, provided that the value is within her delegated
authority threshold (see CSO 11.02). The threshold is currently set at
£250,000.

9. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments
9.1.  There are no equalities issues arising from this report.

10. Consultation
10.1. Not applicable.

11. Service Financial Comments
11.1 The proposed recruitment process for an independent adviser on Pension
Fund matters would cost £5,500 to mclude sourcing appropriate candidates
and supporting the interviews.

11.2 Officers have been advised that an independent adviser would be expected to
charge £15,000 per annum for attendance at four Committee meetings. This
is consuderably more than the previous independent adviser.

12. Use of appendices
12.1  Appendix A: Draft Governance Compliance Statement

13. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
13.1 Local Government Pension Scheme Governance Compliance Statements
Statutory Guidance - November 2008 pubhshed by Department for
Communities and Local Government.




Governance Compliance Statement

1

Page 86

Appendix A

Introduction

This Governance Compliance Statement document sets out how
governance of the Pension Fund operates in Haringey. It is prepared in
accordance with Regulation 31 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Administration) Regulations 2008 and the associated statutory guidance
issued by the Department for Communities and Local Government.

The objective of the Governance Compliance Statement is to make the
administration and stewardship of the scheme more transparent and
accountable to the stakeholders.

Council delegation

Haringey Council, in it's role as Administering Authority, has delegated
responsibility for administering the Local Government Pension Scheme to the
Corporate Committee. The terms of reference for the Committee were
adopted by the Council on 23® May 2011, are included in the Council’s
constitution and are set out in the section below:

Terms of reference

The terms of reference for Corporate Committee in relation to Pensions
Administering Authority functions are set out below:

“Exercising all the Council’s functions as “Administering Authority” and being
responsible for the management and monitoring of the Council’s Pension Fund
and the approval all relevant policies and statements. This includes:

(A) Selection, appointment and performance monitoring of investment
managers, AVC scheme providers, custodians and other specialist external
advisers;

(B) Formulation of investment, socially responsible investment and governance
policies and maintaining a statement of investment principles;

(C) Monitoring the Pension Fund Budget including Fund expenditure and
actuarial valuations; and

(D) Agreeing the admission and terms of admission of other bodies into the
Council’s Pension Scheme.”

Membership of Committee

The Committee’s membership is made up of ten elected members of Haringey
Council and three members representing Scheduled & Admitted Bodies, Active
Members and Pensioners.

Compliance with statutory guidance
The Council is fully compliant with the statutory guidance issued by the

Department for Communities and Local Government in 2008. Appendix 1
details this compliance in each area of the guidance.



Page 87

'S)ybL BuoA InoyIM 10 yym ‘sseso.d Buiyeww UoIsIosp ayi o1 81nqriauod o) Ayunpioddo jing usalb aie pue Buiuren
‘sbuliesiu pue sieded 0] ss9008 JO sulis} ul Ajjenba pajeai) aie Aay) ‘saniwiwos A1epuodss Jo uew e uo Us siequisw Aej ssoym jeyy (g

‘(s1seq o0y-pe ue uo) siosinpe psdxe (n

pue ‘sianiesqo jeuoissajoud juspuadspu (i

(stequiew swisyos Jsuoisuad pue pa.iajsp Buipnoul) siequisw swsayos (n
‘(seipoq payjwpe ‘b9 ‘siskojdws sweyos-uou Buipnjouy) senuoyine Buifojdws (1

-:apnjoul
9S8y '8IMoniis 8spIuwoo Aiepuoodss 1o ujew ey) uyum pajussaidss aq 03 Ayunpoddo 84l psplojje aie siepjoyexers Aoy |e ey (e

uolnlejussaiday g

"‘sjqeolidde jou

8Je P pue O SUOKIBS 8l0jalayl ‘|Pued J0 88110 AIBpuUOsS OU S| 918y | 'SIBUOISUSd pue sisquisll 8AIOY ‘S8Ipog panILIpY B paNpPayog
Bunuesaidal sepiwwon sy} UO sisqusW aAleIUasaIdal 991U} 81k 818U} ‘SISqISLL PB1OBIS O} UOIIPPE U| "JIWS. S jo yed aue syesse puny

J0 Juswsbeuew o1681eNS PUB SIBUS] JO UOIBIISIUILIPE JBY) JB|O a8 suoIsuad Jo 1oedsal Ul 881D 8jeI0dio)) 10y 30U JO SWIB) By |

uendwod Ajn4

uonisod Asbuieq

Joued 4o eanIWWOo AlepUOIES 8y] wouy
J8quisLll g 10} paledojie s 98NILULLIOD Ufew 8} UO 1Bss 8UO Jses| 1 ‘Daysi|qe}se ussq sey jaued 1o danILWoo Aiepuoodes e ateym jeyy  (p

S19A8] Y10q SSOIOB UOREDIUNLILIOD &AJO8)Je SaINSUS 8injonils ey} ‘paysliqelss useq sey joued Jo 980D Alepuooas e aieym jeyy (o
‘99O UleL 8Y] JO XI0M By} UIdiopun O} Pays|iqeIse 8epiLuLLI0d AIBpU0DSS 1o urew sy Jeyre Jo sisquusw a1 (Siequusy
pa.isjep pue seuojsuad Bulpnjoul) sisquusw swWayos pue ssipoq paniwpe ‘siefojdwe s457 bunedionied jo SeAnejusseldal ey (g

ounoo bunuiodde syy Aq paysigelse
SSWIWIOD UlewW 8yl yym sise. Aues)o sjesse puny jo Juswebeuew oibsiens pue SHysusq jo uopensiuupe ey jo Juswisbeuew sy (e

ainonng 'y

aouepiny Aioinielg yum souendwoy | xipuaddy



Page 88

"Bunoa ueyl Jsyres ‘snsussuod Aq peyoea.
ase Ayiofew sy} 1eul yoNns a1e SUOISIOAP Y} JO 8INJU BY) PUB S8JILULLIOD BY) JO SUOISSNOSIP (I8 Ul Ajiny s1ediomed o) 8|ge 8.k siaquisw
SAlielUSSalday "9]0A 0} paliuLed ale 830D Sy JO SISqUIBLL Pa}osie AJUO PUE INO 19s ALS|D S| s1ybu Bunon BuipseBeal Aojod sy

Jueydwos Ajing

uonsod Asbuiieq

‘ "SEONIWIWOD SJHT ulew uo pejussaidal dnoib io Apoq yoes oy sjybu
m:.:o\,m:ﬁ:&xm“ocgck:o.cmo.\u_.am:\msmc.ﬁEoEu:@QOcgncmgm&o&&c@gmc.ao\,comm.:.:oﬁzm m:.t&m.\EEbmR:n.s.ﬁ::o\G.aonﬁ

Bunoa g

"S99I B} JO SI9QIBL MaU [[e 0} paiayo Bulures) uononpuy
Aq pejuswelddns st iy 'suolsusd 0} UOHE[8] Ul 89IILILIOYD Y} JO UOROUN) PUE 8]0 8} INO S18S 98I0 B} Joy 9ousiajel JO SWIL) 8y |

‘ueldwod Ajjn4

UoNSod ASbUneH

"BANIUIUIOD A1epuooes
40 urew e Jayiie uo wioped o} painbal ale Asy) uonoun) pue sjo. ‘SNEIS 8y] JO 8leme Ajjny spew aie SiequisW [sued 10 88109 1By |

ssaquisw Ae| Jo 8101 pue UONYBISS "D

'siaquusw ps1osie yum Bunooy fenbe ue uo Bujures pue sbunesw ‘siaded |je 0} sseooe SARY ssWIWo)
8yl JO siequuaw sAnejussaldal Iy  eRlIWWO) 8yl AQ pasnbas se pusie siesiApe pedxs pue uapuadapu| "sIsuUOISUSY PUB SISqLUSL
BAIOY ‘S8IPOg PaNIWPY @ PaINPayos Buljussaidas seiWIIO) Sy} UO SIBquIsW aAlRIussaidal 9a1y) ale aJ13y} ‘siaguisw pelosle 0} UonIPPE Uj

edwod Ajn4

uomyisod Asbunen




Page 89

‘syuswebueLe soueuwanob ay; ul papnjoul
aJe siequisw Ae| pue 89)ILUWOD A1BPpUOISS OU S! aJay} se s|geolidde jou aJe o pue q suonoes siseq Auspenb e uo sjesw aVNWWWOD 8y

"juedwod Ajjn4

uonisod ASbunen

‘Pajussaidel eq ueo sispjoyeels Asy jo S1s8.48)U1 83U} YoIym Aq spuswebur.ie esoy)
40 8pisino wnioj e epiroid ‘syuswebueLre souewIBAOD [euLio) J18Y] Ul siequusu Aej 8pnjour Jou op oym sanLIoyIne buusisiunpe ey (o

'SNS S8RIUILLIOD Ul
U3 UBYM S8IBD BU] LNM PBSILOIYDIUAS S| pUE JeaA B 80im} 1SBS] JE J9auL [ourd 10 9a1IuLLI0D AIBpUCDSS s Aioyine Bupssiuwpe ue ey (g

“Auspienb jsee) 1e 198w SeENILWIOD 10 SEILILIOD UBW sAwoyine Bupeysiuiwpe ue jey; (e

(wnionb/Aouanbayy) sbunaspyy "4

'swinioj A1lepuooss Jo sjpued AIOSIAPE ‘S8e1IWILIOD-gNs ou e alay) Bujures oy sseooe
[enbe aABY S8RIIWIOY BY JO SIEQUISW [y "S8IILIOD B} JO SI8qISU Pe103) 10} sesuadxa Jo JuswesINquiIs uo Aojjod Jeso & si sley |

‘Jueldwos Ayn4

uonsod Asbuien

‘winioj Aiepuooes
40 wioj Jsyjo Aue Jo sjpued Aiosinpe 'S88IILI0D-qNS ‘SSSIILILLIOD JO SioquIBW le o} Ajrenbe ssydde 1 ‘sysixe Adljod e yons aseym ey 1 (g

'§58201d BUulsfeLL-UOISIo8p 8y} Ul POAJOAU] SIequisLl JO 108dSa) Uf sesuadxe J0 Juswssinquutes pue swy Aupoey ‘Buiuresn

uo Aojjod tesyo e sy aisy) ‘Auoyine Buusisiuiwpe ayy Aq uexe; ese suols|oep pejejes pue Aioynies yoiym ui Aem ey o} uonelas ur ey (e

sasuadx3 ‘swn Apjioey ‘Buues 13




Page 90

"BUSQaM S,[IoUNOY By} Uo paysiignd pue puny Uoisusd ey ul siekojdws | 01 Pale[noIIo st juswisielg aouelduion 9oUBUIBAOY) BY |
"ueldwod Ajn4

uonisod AbuneH

, "PaLIBAOD SI 8wsYyos 8y} yoiym ur Aem
U} UJ }S8183UI UB YNM S18pjoyae]s By} Aem B yons ul suswabue.ie eoueuIanob Jiay; Jo s|ielep paysignd eAey seiLoyine Bus)siuiwpe 18y |

Anongngd -

‘Bunsbpnq
PUE UoISSIWPE ‘UoneJisiulupe ‘Bulpuny ‘JuswWIsaAUl - sanss| suoisuad Jo aBuel apIM By} 8PNIOUl 90UBIBYBI JO SULISY S,891WWOoN) 8y |

‘uendwod Ajjng

Uonisod ASDUITeH

‘Sjuswiebue.lle 8ouBUIBAOD Uiay] JO 8d0oS 8y} UIYlIM SBNSS] 8wWwsyos Jspim Buliq o} sdajs uaxe] eAey sajoyne buusysiuiwipe ey |

2doog 'H

"SIAPE pUE sjuswnoop ‘sieded [je 0} $s800E [enbe aABY 890D BU) JO SIOGUISW |y

uendwod Ajing

UOMSOd ASDUEH

BOPIILLIOD UlEL BY} JO SBUesL Je PalspISUOD 8q 0} S|fe} 1By} 8IIAPE PUE SIUBWINIOP ‘Sieded 881w
0} §58098 [Enbs 8AeY sjoukd JO SeaNILILIOD AIBPUOISS PUE UfBW JO SISQLIBL JiB ‘UOIN}ISUOD S,[IUN0Y 8y} Ul Sejni Aue o) 108[gns 1Y)

SS900Y D)




Page 91 Agenda ltem 10

Haringey Council

Agenda ltem

Corporate Committee On 20th June 2011

Report title: Grants Report 2009/10

Report of: Director of Corporate Resources

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose

1.1To report to the committee the outcomes of the annual grant work by Grant Thornton
and to obtain approval for the action plan resulting from the report of the auditors.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Committee agrees the management responses contained in the action plan.

Report authorised by: Julie Parker — Director of Corporate Resources

-2 io/b(ll |

Contact officer: Kevin Bartle — Lead Finance Officer
Telephone 020 8489 5972

lofle



Page 92

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The attached report from Grant Thornton details the Council's performance in relation
to Grant Thornton’s certification of external grant claims for the financial year 2009/10.
The accompanying action plan from the auditors contains the Council's response and
deadline dates for action.

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

4.1 None.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Grant Thornton Report: London Borough of Haringey Certification work report 2009/10

6.1

6.2

6.3

71

Background

Each year the Council is required to obtain certification of a number of its
external grant claims by the council’s external auditors Grant Thornton. The
attached report from Grant Thornfon details their findings from these
certifications and provides details of the Council's overall performance in
relation to grant claims.

As can be seen from section 2.3 of the Grant Thornton report the Council’'s
performance in relation to grants has remained consistent in 2009/10, when
compared to 2008/09, in all areas except for number of claims amended. In
addition the table in Appendix C details the level of fees charged for this work.

However there are still areas where further improvements are required,
particularly in relation to the Housing and Council Tax Benefit and reducing
amendments to claims and the action plan is intended to bring about the
required improvements.

Action Pian arising from Grants Report 2009/10
The action plan contained within the auditors’ report and included at the end of
this report as Appendix B has the Council's responses included, along with key

actions, responsibilities and target dates. The action plan will be monitored
over the coming months in conjunction with the auditors.

2ol 16




1.2

- 7.3

74

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

Page 93

In respect of the Housing and Council Tax Benefit Claim, and in addition to the
points set out in the Action Plan at Appendix B, a further detailed specific
targeted improvement plan is attached as Appendix A.

This Quality Strategy update sets out the actions that have, and are being
taken, to address the concerns raised from the external audit work.

Recent work by Intermal Audit on 2010/11 claims is showing a significant
reduction in the level of errors which indicates that the actions put in place are
having an impact. External Audit are in the process of undertaking their testing
of the 2010/11 claim.

Financial Implications

There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in
this report. However if improvements to the grants processes and certification
continue to occur there is scope for further savings to be made on the fees
charged to the Council for this work. There are, however, risks in respect of the
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit subsidy position in respect of that
ctaim.

Recommendations

That the Committee agrees the management responses contained in the
action plan.

Head of Legal Services comments

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report
and has no specific comment to make.

Jofle



Page 94



Page 95

Appendix A
Haringey Benefits and Local Taxation Service

Quality Strateqy Update

1 Background

1.1 Following on from the HB COUNT audit of 2008/2009, the Benefits and
Local Taxation Service recognised that a more robust strategy for data
quality assurance needed to be introduced.

1.2 In the summer of 2009/2010, new working processes were introduced,
an improved training strategy was agreed and an enhanced Quality
Assurance process put in place. The details of the measures introduced
were supplied to the Department of Work and Pensions.

1.3 The following report is intended to update on progress against the

measures that were introduced, as well as inform of further enhanced
measures that have been introduced.

2 Quality Assurance Team

2.1 The Quality Assurance Team, established in April 2010, continue to
review a percentage of all assessments made every month. The
percentage reviewed ranges from 4% to 10% of all assessments made
in any given month.

2.2 The terms of reference for the team are:

e Maintaining a record of all errors;

* Monitoring the correction of the errors to ensure all identified errors
are corrected;

¢ Reporting trends for discussion at the monthly Benefit Management
Team Meeting; and

s Producing a monthly report to the Deputy Head of Benefits and
Local Taxation, detailing the following:

¢ Error types
e (Causes of errors
e Whois making the errors

o Recommendations for remedial action



Page 96

2.3 The decisions taken for remedial action can vary from;

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

¢ Incorporating common areas of error into the BLT Training Plan;
e Setting a test for all staff — and taking action based on the results;
» Re release or amendment of Policy and Procedure Notes;

e Group briefings to all staff;

e Error feedback at 121’s and Appraisals; and

* Focussed checking for subsidy risk areas

The error rate trend has been continually positive since April 2010. Error
rates have dropped from early highs of 7% in April 2010 to an average
of 3.36% up to February 2011,

The Quality Assurance Team also review key subsidy risk areas and
take action to ensure that correct levels of subsidy are claimed where
appropriate.

Following the 2008/2009 BENO1 audit, three key areas of risk were
identified — claim start dates, Single Person Discount awards and
earned income calculations,

The QA Team carried out the following measures to correct any
potential errors in 2009/2010.

An in-house report was designed to monitor the link between Council
Tax and HB Accounts to ensure Single Person Discounts are awarded
or removed as applicable. This is monitored on a daily basis.

A significant percentage of all assessments made in 2009/2010 were
rechecked using a risk based approach, based on the intelligence
gleaned from our QA Software (RBS). The risk based approach was
that 100% of assessments were checked from Officers with known
higher error rates, through to 1% re checks for Officers who continually
demonstrate high quality assessments.

2.10 Eamed income assessments, we reviewed using this risk based

approach.

3 Training for New Starters

3.1

3.2

The training policy was revised for new starters mid way through
2010/2011. Previously, new starters would receive three weeks training
and then be released into the live assessment environment.

New starters are now subject to a six week training programme with
supervised claims assessment in the classroom at the end of the



Page 97

training session - prior to release onto the teams. New starters are not
released from the training environment until they can demonstrate they
are assessing claims correctly. Once on the teams, new starters also
receive further support from their Team Leaders.

4 Refresher Training

4.1 A programme of refresher training was identified and delivered across
2010/2011 in the following areas - all identified to be key risk areas;

Awards of Single Person Discount;
Persons from Abroad;

Enhanced Persons from abroad training for Team Leaders and
Persons from abroad champions on the teams;

Effective dates for Change of Circumstances claims;
A two day overpayment refresher course;

Registering claims, including start dates, end dates and claim
dates;

Self Employed assessment; and

Earned Income Assessment.

5 Quick Guide Laminates

5.1 Desk aids/quick guide laminates in key areas of data quality have been
introduced. This ensures that the relevant information is readily
available to assessors at all times.

5.2 The quick guide laminates issued were:

Updated quick reference to start and end dates and claim dates
guide;

How to record the data for NI 181 - to ensure the integrity of our NI
181 BVPI; and

Change of Circumstances effective dates.

6 Testing of staff — Assessment Champions

6.1 Staff are tested periodically. Where a key area of risk is identified, all
staff are given a test in that area in a strictly controlled environment. The
tests are marked and appropriate action taken based on the results.
Staff that performed well in a test are put forward as a ‘champion’ of
that particular area of assessment.



6.2

6.3

Page 98

Staff that performed pootly are given further training and have their
assessments checked by the ‘champions’ before the final calculation of
a claim takes place.

Briefings and retraining sessions also take place and attendance at
refresher courses is dependant on an individual's test resuits.

7 Capability at Work

7.1

7.2

7.3

Capability action is taken to address poor performance, both with
productivity and with quality of work.

Particular attention is paid to staff throughout their probationary
periods.

‘home working’ staff are required to return to the office if their quality of
work is not to a sufficient standard.

8 Quality and Accuracy Awareness

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

A mandatory Quality and Accuracy Awareness workshop was held by
the Deputy Head of Benefits and Local Taxation in July 2010. This
workshop focussed on the results of the 2008/2009 BENO1 audit, and
raised staff awareness of the financial impact of poor quality
assessment work, to the Council and to our claimants.

This workshop received positive feedback from all staff and over 95%
of staff said that they found the workshop to be very benéeficial to their
development and knowledge base. Staff actively participated in the
group discussions and offered positive suggestions for improvement,
many of which have now been implemented.

Staff awareness was raised of the financial implications of Local
Authority Error (LAE) overpayments, both in terms of risk to subsidy and
to our ability to recover such overpayments.

Staff were offered the opportunity to suggest ways in which the service
could further prevent Local Authority Error overpayments a number
have been implemented. Local Authority Error overpayments have
significantly reduced since this workshop.

Enhanced monitoring of LAE overpayments and staff are kept up to
date with progress on a weekly basis. Significant improvement has
been made in this area and the claim is now comfortably short of the
lower LAE overpayment threshold at the end of 2010/2011. This has
significantly reduced our risk of subsidy loss for the 2010/2011 year.

9 DWP Performance Development Team (PDT)

9.1

In 2010/2011 the help of the DWP PDT was enlisted. The scope of the
project was to review ‘new claims’ and ‘changes’ processes and look



Page 99

for areas where improvement could be made with processing times
and quality of work.

9.2 The PDT team spent a month with the service, holding workshops and
interviews with staff from both Customer Services and from the Benefits
Service. A ‘day in the life of’ a ‘new claim’ and a ‘change in
circumstance’ were mapped and areas of delay, hand off and
duplication were highlighted. Solutions were agreed to eliminate such
delays. The mapping was undertaken from a customer’s point of view,
focussing on ‘value adding work' that we do and with a view to
eliminating ‘failure demand’ from customers at our Customer Services
Centres.

9.3 Using the findings from this mapping exercise, new processes were
mapped and agreed. The main headline from this exercise was to
support the decision to move HB expertise to the front line, thus
ensuring we get assessments ‘right first time' in the presence of the
customer, preventing hand off and duplication of effort.

10 Getting it ‘Right First Time’

10.1 e-benefits continues to be a major success for the service, with a
significant majority of our claims now received this way.

10.2 Before e-benefits were introduced, claims submitted through our
Customer Service Centres showed a high percentage error rate,
requiring the Council to write to the customer for further information
which could have been gathered when the Customer was present at the
offices.

10.3 The use of the e-benefits intelligent claim form has eliminated
unnecessary questions when claiming benefit and automatically informs
a council officer what evidence is required to validate a claim. In some
instances a 24 page application form can be reduced to just two pages.

10.4 An appointment is offered to customers to bring back their information
on a specific date where an officer will be on hand to calculate their
claim.

10.5 Following on from the DWP PDT mapping exercise, this service will be
expanded to all claimants. Analysis has been completed on the reasons
why customers contact us and the level of personal callers we received.
Officers from the Benefits Service are being merged with Customer
Services to assist in providing more support to the volume of customers
received relative to the Benefits Service.

10.6 The purpose of this strategy is twofold. An officer will be able to ask the
right questions of the claimant where required, thus minimising the
chances of error an in the calculation of the claim, and secondly a



Page 100

satisfied customer will be able to walk out of the office knowing that
their claim has been assessed and fully understand their entitlement.

11 Enhancements to the ‘Control and exception report’
function

11.1 Responsibility for ‘control and ‘exception reports’ is currently shared
between staff on the processing teams and officers on the Quality
Assurance Team. Following on from previous HB audits it has been
recognised that there is a need to further enhance monitoring of
exception and control reports.

11.2 As part of the BLT Customer Services restructure, additional resource
will be allocated to the ‘control and exception’ aspect of benefits
administration, thus enhancing the integrity of the work undertaken.

11.3 A full review of all exception reports took place to determine those
reports that provide the best value and facilitate data cleansing and
housekeeping where required.

11.4 A portfolio of reports have been developed that will be used to
supplement the work undertaken within the quality assurance
framework.

12 Internal Audit 2010/2011

12.1 The Housing Benefit Internal Audit report for 2010/2011 verified that the
required standards were being conformed with.

12.2 The service is under regular scrutiny by internal audit partners under the
Audit Framework. Assessments are undertaken on the overall security
and management control over the IT application environment for
Benefits.

12.3 The key areas covered are Access Controls, Input Controls, Output
Controls, Processing, Audit and Management Trails and Database
Administration and Maintenance.

12.4 The latest HB Audit, finalised in February 2011 states that the service
has ‘substantial’ controls in place in all aspects of HB Administration,
with just three Priority 2 recommendations and two Priority 3
recommendations requiring action. No Priority 1 recommendations were
raised.

13 Training and Performance Improvement Team

13.1 There is dedicated Training and Performance improvement team. All
DWP circulars, guidance manuals and appropriate toolkits are
maintained by this team and made available on our intranet ‘Harinet’



Page 101

site. There is a full in-house internet based library of all relevant policy,
procedures and system and information notes.

13.2 Each month a new ‘end of month’ information note is circulated which
informs all staff of the latest relevant information and LHA rates etc. A
full review of our Harinet resource pages has taken place, thus ensuring
that the site remains user friendly and information is easy to access.

14 New for 2011/2012

14.1 The above measures will all remain in place for the 2011/2012 year, but
following on from the HB audit report findings for 2009/2010, the
following additional measures have been introduced.

15 Data Cleansing

15.1 The auditors identified a problem relating to Child Benefit allowance
fields. The Northgate benefits sofiware will automatically allocate the
correct amount of child benefit to be used in the relevant year if this
field is left blank. However, the Northgate system allows officers to
manually enter data into these fields.

15.2 This will produce the correct allowance for the relevant year but, if the
amount of Child Benefit is hard coded in the allowance field by an
officer, the Child Benefit will not automatically up rate in the following
year.

15.3 Although Child Benefit is no longer taken into account in terms of
benefit assessment, the service has submitted an enhancement request
to software suppliers Northgate to ‘lock’ this area so that Officers
cannot enter data into the field.

15.4 The auditors also identified some cases where the child benefit amount
entered did not match the number of dependants in the property.

15.5 All possible affected cases have been reviewed and corrected if
appropriate through a data cleansing programme.

156.6 Eamed income cases from 2010/2011 continue to be re checked for
accuracy and the results fed back to staff as it is still considered to be a
risk area due to the nature of assessment and the lack of consistency in
payslips submitted by claimants.

15.7 A review of tax credit assessments on Housing Benefit claims in
2011/2012 will be undertaken.

16 Risk Based Review Programme
16.1 Although it is not a mandatory requirement of the Department for Work

and Pensions to review Housing Benefit cases on a regular basis, both
audit findings from the HB claim of 2009/2010 and the work undertaken



Page 102

by Internal Audit in their Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit Grant
Claim Audit 2010/2011 have highlighted the need to review Housing
Benefit cases on a more regular basis.

16.2 In June 2011, a programme of risk based reviews for high risk claims
will be introduced. The review will focus on claims that have been in
receipt of Housing and Council Tax Benefit for a considerable period of
time without changes being reported. We will also focus on key income
types that are regularly subject to change.

17 Input Sheets

17.1 Some of the errors identified in the 2009/2010 HB claim audit appear to
be ‘input’ errors rather than officer knowledge. It has been recognised
that there is scope for error when transferring data from the Document
Management System to the core benefits application, when having to
‘toggle’ between the two applications using the application toolbar.

17.2 An input sheet is now required. All the important data must be recorded
on this sheet before using it to transfer the data onto the benefits
system.

18 Team Leader Assessment Sign off

18.1 The assessment of earned income continues to be a risk area in terms
of error. From 2011/2012, all Housing Benefit claims with earned
income MUST be checked and signed off as accurate by a Team
Leader before the assessment of benefit is calculated.

18.2 This measure takes time and presents the service with challenges in
terms of resource, but it has been deemed to be a necessary action
until the service can be confident that all earned income cases are
being assessed correctly.

19 Officer Workload Review

19.1 Where significant errors are being made by any individual officer on any
particular aspect of benefit assessment, that particular officer has been
removed from such tasks until the officer has proved themselves to be
competent in that particular area of work.

20 internal Audit — Work on 2010/11 and 2011/12

20.1 Following the conclusion of the Internal Audit review of claim
assessment for 2010/2011, Internal Audit will complete a further review
of a random sample of 20 cases from each of the four main benefit
areas covering the 2011/12 financial year in order to assist BLT
management in their quality assurance reviews.



Page 103

20.2 The results of the intemal audit testing on 2010/11 claims (using the
same methodology that of external audit) shows a significant reduction
in the number of errors. This is giving reassurance that the measures
that have been put in place are having an impact. The further work
planned in 2011/12 will assist management further in being satisfied the
measures are working or if further action is needed.



Page 104



Page 105

Li°e5

‘Burobugy

‘uonexe |
eoo” pue syjeusg jo pesH Aindaq ‘sypebbig ue)

'sisieq

BuloBuo ue uo pamaiaal aq ||Im saseo g| 0} piebal
yim elep ay| "paanbal aisym pajoaliod puB pamatasi
uaaq Apealje asey sased {g)) Hoddng swooau| uoN Iy

‘paaiby

‘Buebug

‘uoljexe )

|eso] pue siyeuag jo pesH Andag aypebbig ve| ¢

‘Koyjod juswianol ul sebueya seyuny

Aue 10 2SED U) 2)RINI0E S| PAY LORELLLOJ ||B 2INSUS (1I9UN02) ay) Jey) Juepodu)
$1 1 "1eASMOH "AjuoLd MO| SPBLL USaq SEBY LOREPUSLILINDS] SIY) 'papsebaisip
81 sanjeA Jisuaq pIyd Agasaym ‘Aoljod syyeuaq ul eBueyd syj o) sng

‘passa00id Ajoau100 aie sajepdn oljewoine aInsua
0] PUB JUBLIEY 2Y] AQ PaAIDOaL SIUNOLWE |BNIDE UNM 2Ul) Ul 818 SadUe|eq 1By}
a1nsua 0) saInBly sWoowl JBUBG PIIYD ||B M1l Ajlestpourad pinoys [I9Unod aut

BwWwByos Jyauaqg
X2} jIounoo pue Buisnoy

‘AIessaoaU ale saInpasoid 1ouod Ajenb Jayung §i SURLIR)SH O} UOHESIND
01/600Z a3 Buunp payBiybly sanss| au) 0) pSpIEME S| UOREIAPISUOD
feuonIppE JeU) P "UOREdWIRY BO/00Z Yl Jale paonpollu) seInpaoosd

SLBYIS JyBuaq
xe} jlounoo pue Buisnoy

‘pealby ybiy Jonuos Ayjenb sy} Jusws|dwl 0] SNUUOD IOUROD) U] JBY3 PAPUBLLILIOISL §) 3
‘BuioBug
‘uonexe |
12007 pue sjyauag jo peeH Ajndag ‘eyipebsig ue|
‘1 10Z aun{ Woyy aouaWWoo o} pawwelboid
S SUWNEIO JyBu3aq [|e Jo swweiBosd maing) paseq s v
*SI0LS SH3EW 0} ANUIJUOD OUM SSOU} J0}
pauueld s| uoyoe Aliqedes Jospue Buuies '
Jouyung "sejel Joua ybiy yiwm SI0O (IB 10§ 1LOZ/OLOT ‘aun
s oy) uy Bursue
ut uayepspun seam awwelboid Buiuie au jueoyiubis v SaNss| JEJILUIS PIOAR 0} Seinpaoold malaal [EUORIDPE JO uoneluswWaldw) auy}
pue slendoidde se susoo o) Buiuien jo uoisiacid 10} 3G PINOM LOREPUSWILICISI
‘90|AIeS W "WEs) uoneEXe | [BD0T PUB SleUeg oY) LiYLm PasSNISIP PUB PEMIIASI
SeUag BY] Ul YBIS JO 18quIsil A1aas pajeuq Apealle S0 YJOM UOHEIYILST 2U] WO PIUNIUAP] SaNss] SY) JBUE PAPUBLLILLOISI S}
sey uopexej |e307 pue sjyauag Jo pesH Aindeq ayy
‘anoge v xipuadde ul pasojosIp se ‘'suosesl awayos Jyauaq
‘paaiby ubiy Jo Jequinu e Joj paenb sem Apisgns yysuaq xe (1I9UNo9 pue Buisnoy sy Xe} {1ounos pue Suisnoy

SUONEPUBLWIWODS) JIpnE Wol Buninsal ueld uoloy — g xipuaddy



Page 106



Page 107

Li09

—

LL/0102
WIED ©4Q JO UOISSILIGNS :djep uonejusLwaidw|

§OOV ~ eolielld J0 pesH L@ Jqisuodsay

1 HOLOT 104 sunjeu Siy) JO SwieD ou sle alay
se ‘Jeak siy] 9NsSS) uB aq JoU PINOYS Sy} ‘JIAIMOH
*AjuBnosoy) paxoays ale swiep |auuosiad adlnes

-x@ aunny Aug Jey) aINsua |Im Jlounod ay] paalby

Mo

‘e el ay) uo papnpul
Buiaq Jueib ay} 0} Joud JaLU 21 ‘SUCIEIO|R |SUUOSIST SDIAIDS-XS SIUEISUI
104 *SUOIEso|Ie el oyoads 10) BIISIUD SU) JBY} SINSUD PINOYS JIDUNOYD 3y

selIoe) Pe|qesiq

uinjey ejeq eseq s 894 3N [2lep uonejualus|duy
s13(0)4 - SoUBUI O PeaH 1200 a|qisuodsay

"008' L3 Jo Apisans ui uonanpal
E SEM SJUSLLPUBLUE JOUIW |IE jo oedul ay] "Z|0T judy
151 WOY 1o8ys YlIM Sasead Woyshs Apisqns vaH syl

wnipaly

‘10 au3 Aq pannbar se Jeak yoea pajajdwod

s1 $$800id SIY) JBY) SINSUS PINOYS JIOUNOS) BUY] "IN}l papuaLe 3y ojul
pajesodioau; pue jsanbal IR0 Je WNja) 0L/600Z 9Y) 10} PAEINOIED SEM BIEP SIUL
‘19uUNoD 3y Aq suop usaq Ajsnoiaald Jou sey sy . 'Plos Bulaq asojeq vdH )
Ul SBM I JESA DY) Ut sAEp Auewu moy o} Buipioooe pajybiam aq pinoys a|qealsoas
aloou 3y} ‘{1esk Jey) o) udy | aouws jo pasodsip uaaq sey Buliemp e a1aum,
a1 Ajjeam abesane ay; Hugenojes ul ey ake sjuswannbal (9 aus jo ped

wnjal
ejep aseq Apisqns vuH

wmay ejeq aseg s 804 IXeN ejep uonejusadu)
spsloig - soUBUL 1O PES L8O Sqisuodsay
008" 13 Jo Apisgns ul uononpay

B SEM SjusLUpuaWE Joullw |jg jo pedul ay) Z1oZ Wdy
15| Wou) 1098 yUm SaSead WaJsAs APisqns WHH syl

wnipapy

‘eiep Buipuejs

Y1 JO SHIBYD SSBUS|BUOSED. SPNJDUI 0) PUB ‘UOISSILLIGNS JeIp 8y) Jeye spewl
2q 0} paau yaym sabueyo JO Jaqunu 8y sspuUIW pue $Sa20)d MaIAS) JSNqOs
e ajelado o} JIoUNoY) Ay} o) AW} mojje o} 9|gissod se Aes se pajidwod S| wied

8} jet)) papuatuiodal st '01/600Z PUE 60/8002 UseMieq sjuslusaoll sy} .

0} spJefal yyw passaooid aq o} pauinbel alem sjuswsnipe Jo Jaquinu abie| v

winyas
elep aseq ApIsans YuH

Buobu

‘uonexet
|e207 pue sjyauag Jo peaH Aindaq 'ayipeBBIg ue|

‘giSeq BUIOBUO LR UG POMSIAYS 9 |lim $SOSED
g} 0} prebal ypm ejep ay) “pennbas asoym pajpouos
PUE PaM3IAD) USAq APBSJIB SARY $358D S| UON iV

‘IO SJUBWIBD YoBd
10} UOITBULLIOJU] SIBINIDE PIOY [IDUNOs ay) Jey) Jepodull i it ‘sAoge Se ‘Jaasmoy
‘Asoud mo] epew uaaq sey siy) papiebausip Suiag spausq pIyo o} ang

‘aa.Be 0) om) BU) 10) PRIDAUXS A PINOM }| "UCIBULOJW PIOYISNOY
piomy ay3 Jad se sjuspuadap JO JaqLINU YY) PUB SJUNOLLE ALUOOUI JYaUdq
PIYS 1O Jequinu ay) usemiaq paje|dwos eq 0] PepusLLILLIcDa) 8J8 SUDHENIUCISY

SWaYIS Jyausq
X&) Iounoo pue Buisnoy




Page 108



Page 109

Lot

pajustusjdw Apesaspy :sjep uopejuswa)dust
sabeuey asueul4 179 D810 s|qisuodsay

‘UoNEN9jED SY) Ul pepnjoul 8q pinoys

Ho-2jum pasuoyIne Aluo Jey) sBpamouy oy Uc paseq
sem pue Jaqueidag ui Jaje| Ipny 0} Joud ‘LUoISSItUGhS
1eubLO 8y} JO SABD UIY)M SPEW UOIDSLI0Y B} Pue
$180140 S,19UN07) By} A paynuspl useq Apesse pey
UONDALIOD SilL "SIO-5)lM PASLIoYINe JO} pasn ainby
PajoaIcd & 10al}al 0) 01/600Z 10} by uoloal|oD

U1 $35507 HANN 2Y) O} SpEW SEM JUSLLIPUAWE UY

*UOEPUBLILLCOS) S} SSIOU [IUNOT) DY L

wnipapy

‘suonesuoyne
Ho-ajum Butpoddns ayy 0 Aoexa pasibe aie wig SU3 U1 PAPH[OLI PUE Yo
LDYUM SIUNOWE J[B JBY) 2JNSUa O] |IDUNOY) B} J0) pasodold S UOREPUBLLILICIS Y

uinjal sayel
DNSALLOR-UOU [eLOlEN




Page 110



Page 111

o Grant Thornton

London Borough of Haringey

Certification work report 2009/10

June 2011



Page 112

Contents

1

Introduction and approach

2 Results of our certification work

Appendices

A Details of claims and returns certified for 2009/10
B Action plan

C Certification work fees

13
17



Page 113

London Borough of Haringey 1
Certification work report 2009/10

1 Introduction and approach

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

Introduction

Various grant-paying bodies require external certification of claims for grant or subsidy and
returns of financial information. As the external auditor of London Borough of Haringey
(the Council), Grant Thornton undertakes certification work at the Council, acting as an
agent of the Audit Commission.

The Audit Commission makes certification arrangements with grant-paying bodies, this
includes confirming which claims and returns require certification and issuing certification
instructions. These instructions are tailored to each scheme and they cleatly set out the
specific procedures to be applied in examining a claim or return. The Audit Commission
agrees the deadline for submission of each claim by authorities and the deadline for
certification by auditors.

Certification arrangements
The Audit Commission's certification arrangements are designed to be proportionate to the
claim or return: The arrangements for 2009 /10 were:

° for claims and returns below £125,000, certification by us is not required, regardless
of any statutory certification requirement or any certification requirement set out in
grant terms and conditions;

. for claims and returns above £125,000 and below £500,000, we are requited to
perform limited tests to agree entries on the claim or return to underlying records,
but were not required to undertake any testing of the eligibility of expenditure or
data; and

° for claims and returns over £500,000, we are required to assess the control
environment for the preparation of the claim or return and decide whether or not to
place reliance on it. Where reliance is placed on the control environment, we are
required to undertake limited tests to agree entries on the claim or return to
underlying records but not to undertake any testing of the eligibility of expenditure
or data. Where reliance is not placed on the control environment, we are required
to undertake all the tests in the relevant certification instruction and use our
assessment of the control environment to inform decisions on the level of testing
required.

In determining whether we place reliance on the control environment, we consider other
work we have undertaken on the Council's financial ledger and any other relevant systems,
and make appropriate use of relevant internal audit work.

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 114

London Borough of Haringey 2
Certification work report 2009/10

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Our certificate

Following our work on each claim or return, we issue our certificate. The wording of this
depends on the level of work performed as set out above, stating either the claim or return
is in accordance with the underlying records, or the claim or return is fairly stated and in
accordance with the relevant terms and conditions. Our certificate also states that the claim
has been certified:

° without qualification;

o without qualification but with agreed amendments incorporated by the authority; or

o with a qualification letter (with or without agreed amendments incorporated by the
authority).

Where a claim is qualified because the authority has not complied with the strict
requirements set out in the certification instruction, there is a risk that grant-paying bodies
will retain funding claimed by the authority or, claw back funding which has already been
provided or has not been returned. In addition, where claims or returns require amendment
or are qualified, this increases the time taken to undertake this work, which impacts on the
certification fee.

Housing and Council Tax Benefits

The Housing and Council Tax Benefits claim is by far the most complex in local
government. It should also be noted that the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP)
take a very robust view about any errors identified during the audit process. DWP use an
extrapolation process for assessing the overall impact of errors that is reflective of their
requirements, rather than the overall judgement used by accountants and auditors in
considering the accuracy of numbers produced by councils. There is no concept of
materiality in assessing errors under the audit regime which governs our work on this claim.

The Council has been challenged by sustained weaknesses in the accuracy of its Housing
and Council Tax benefit claims processing. A complex socio-economic profile and a highly
transient benefits clientele means that Haringey has benefit challenges akin to inner London
boroughs such as Hackney and Southwark. Our work in 2009/10 and eatlier years suggest
that although management has recognised weaknesses and made changes, particularly in
training and checks of work, the outcome of our audit does not reflect well on the Council’s
performance relative to other councils. Key points to note are:

e we issued a heavily qualified audit report 3 months after the Department for Work and
Pensions (DWP) deadline;

e the costs of the audit were significantly higher than budgeted;

e the level of errors in cases tested in accordance with Audit Commission procedures was
very high casting some doubt as to the validity and accuracy of payments made to
claimants, which may involve both under and overpayments;

e the DWP has responded to our qualification letter and requires us to do further testing
on the claim. The Council is in the process of undertaking work regarding incorrect
Child Benefit and Child Benefit income being inconsistent with houschold dependent
information. We will be testing this work at the beginning of June and will report back
to the DWP by 16 June 2011; and

e depending on the outcome of this testing the Council risks losing subsidy in respect of
its 2009/10 claim.

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 115

London Borough of Haringey 3
Certification work report 2009/10

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

It is important that the Council continues to commit the necessary time to mitigate risks of
losing subsidy for 2009/10 and further issues with error levels for the current and future
years.

In order to put Haringey's performance into context, the Council has undertaken a
benchmarking exercise. The Council contacted other London boroughs and enquired as to
the detail of their qualification letters. 16 London boroughs confirmed that their claims had
been qualified, and 13 of the boroughs provided the Council with copies of their
qualification letters. Although the data compiled is anonymous on the request of the
boroughs participating, we are assured by the Council that qualification letters were obtained
for Hackney and Southwark, two boroughs that we would consider to be demographically
comparable to Haringey.

The Council's analysis shows that, of the 14 boroughs, Haringey had the fifth highest total
number of errors identified, being 53 errors. The number of errors noted at each borough
ranged from 2 to 463. The benchmarking information that has been compiled illustrates the
complexity of the claim, and the wide range of errors made at each borough. However, it
should be noted that other than for Haringey, which has a caseload of over 35,000
claimants, we do not know the caseload for each borough in question, or the number of
cases ultimately tested at each.

The Audit Commission's report 'Local government claims and returns' (July 2010) states
that in 2008/09, 60% of all Housing Benefit claims were qualified, with 85% being qualified,
amended or both. This performance covers all councils administering the Housing and
Council Tax Benefit scheme, whether it is a relatively small District Council or a more
demographically complex metropolitan borough council or London borough.

The Council should continue to strive to achieve an unqualified claim in future years. The
Council is committed to addressing the weaknesses noted and Internal Audit have already
carried out significant testing on the 2010/11 housing benefit claim which indicates that
progress has been made. However, significant progress is still needed if the error rate is to
be as low as possible for the number of transactions being processed, albeit without the cost
of facilitating this outweighing the benefit.

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 116

London Borough of Haringey 4
Certification work report 2009/10

2 Results of our certification work

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Overall messages

For the financial year 2009/10, we have certified 13 claims and returns for the Council,
which amounted to £395,040,749.34. This represents both funding claimed by the Council
and returned to grant-paying bodies, as well as other financial information. Of these 13
claims, 12 were certified on behalf of the Audit Commission and 1 was certified under a
tripartite agreement with the London Development Agency. Permission to certify this
additional claim was granted by the Audit Commission.

The Council's performance in preparing claims and returns is summarised in the table
below.

Exhibit One: Performance against key certification targets

Performance measure 2009/10 2008/09
Without qualification or amendment 5 8
Without qualification but amended 7 5
Qualified 1 1
Total 13 14

The analysis of performance against targets shows that:

¢ Only one claim was qualified, the BENO1 Housing and Council Tax Benefit claim. This
is consistent with the prior year and reflects the problems which exist within the
Council's assessment of Housing and Council Tax Benefit cases and the inherent
complexity of the scheme.

e The number of amended claims has risen from 5 in 2008/09 to 7 in 2009/10. As fewer
claims were submitted in 2009/10 this reflects a deterioration in the Council's
performance (58% in 2009/10 against 36% in the prior year).

e A reduced number of claims were submitted without qualification or amendment, 5
against 8 in 2008/09. Due to the lower number of claims submitted this is, in effect,
relatively consistent with the prior year.

Details on the certification of all claims and returns are included at appendix A. Where we
have concluded that an item is significant, further details are included below within section 2
of this report.

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 117

London Borough of Haringey 5
Certification work report 2009/10

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Where claims and returns have been amended or qualified and we have identified
opportunities for improvement in the compilation in future years, we have made
recommendations to support the Council's continuous improvement. These are included in
the action plan at appendix B.

The Council's and our performance in meeting deadlines related to the certification of
claims and returns is summarised below.

Exhibit Two: Performance against deadlines

Deadline 2009/10 2008/09
Total Number of Claims 13 14
Submitted by deadline 13 14
Certified by deadline 12 14

The Council has maintained its ability to submit claims and returns to us within the required
deadlines. This has enabled us to meet all but one of the certification deadlines in 2009/10.

The deadline for the BENO01 Housing and Council Tax Benefit subsidy was missed due to
the significant number of errors identified during our initial testing, which required
additional testing to be completed. Further details of our work on this claim have been
included under the significant issues section below.

Certification work fees

Each year the Audit Commission sets a schedule of houtly rates for different levels of staff,
for work relating to the certification of grant claims and returns. When billing the Council
for this work, we are required to use these rates. They are shown in the table below.

Exhibit Three: Hourly rates for certifying claims and returns for 2009-10

Role 2009/10 2008/09
Engagement lead £380 £365
Manager £210 £200
Senior auditor £135 £130
Other staff £105 £100

Our fee for certification work at the Council in 2009/10 was £142,032, compared to
£108,723 for 2008/09. Our fee is significantly in excess of our initial estimate of £90,000.

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved




Page 118

London Borough of Haringey 6
Certification work report 2009/10

2.11

2.12

2.13

This is primarily due to the additional work required in auditing the BENO1 claim, as
described below. Details of our fee by claim and return and how this compares to last year
are included at appendix A.

Significant issues
The following significant issues were identified during performance of our certification
work.

BENO01 Housing and Council Tax Benefit

The Council has been challenged by sustained weaknesses in the accuracy of its Housing
and Council Tax benefit claims processing. A complex socio-economic profile and a highly
transient benefits clientele means that Haringey has benefit challenges akin to inner London
boroughs such as Hackney and Southwark. Our work in 2009/10 and eatlier years suggest
that although management has recognised weaknesses and made changes, particularly in
training and checks of work, the outcome of our audit does not reflect well on the Council’s
performance relative to other councils. Key points to note are:

e we issued a heavily qualified audit report 3 months after the Department for Work and
Pensions (DWP) deadline;

e the costs of the audit were significantly higher than budgeted;

e the level of errors in cases tested in accordance with Audit Commission procedures was
very high casting some doubt as to the validity and accuracy of payments made to
claimants, which may involve both under and overpayments;

e the DWP has responded to our qualification letter and requires us to do further testing
on the claim. The Council is in the process of undertaking work regarding incorrect
Child Benefit and Child Benefit income being inconsistent with household dependent
information. We will be testing this work at the beginning of June and will report back
to the DWP by 16 June 2011; and

e depending on the outcome of this testing the Council risks losing subsidy in respect of
its 2009/10 claim.

Some of the specific issues with the audit of the claim were:

e Testing of the initial sample of 80 benefit cases found errors in 18 cases, 9 of which
were overpayments and, consequently, required further testing. As the underpayments
did not result in a loss of subsidy to the Council no further testing was required by the
DWP, however it has mandated that underpayments will be subject to additional testing
in 2010/11. This presents an additional risk for the Council for future claims.

e It was identified that the Council had manually amended the child benefit income
attributable to claimants. As a result it was not being automatically updated for annual
changes in value, which led to child benefit being incorrect. The Council has agreed to
review and amend all cases identified where child benetit income is incorrect. New
regulations came into force on 224 November 2009 meaning that child benefit is now
disregarded when calculating housing benefit. Therefore the problem identified will not
be an issue in future subsidy claims. The Council has also submitted an enhancement
request to its housing benefit software suppliers Northgate to lock' the override field, so
that this issue could not be repeated should child benefit become patt of the assessment
again in the future.

e A further issue was identified whereby the number of dependents included in the
household information for each claimant on Iworld, the Council’s housing and council
tax benefit system, did not agree to the number of child benefit income lines included in
the benefit entitlement calculation. This resulted in underpayments and overpayments to
the claimants’ benefit. The Council has agreed to review and amend all cases identified

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 119

London Borough of Haringey 7
Certification work report 2009/10

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

where the number of dependents does not agree to the number of child benefit lines. As
for the previous point, new regulations came into force on 2°d November 2009 meaning
that child benefit is now disregarded when calculating housing benefit. Therefore the
problem identified will not be an issue in future subsidy claims.

e Other issues identified included instances where earned income had been incorrectly
calculated, and tax credits, incapacity benefits and income support had not been
correctly updated for changes notified to the Council by other government departments.

The Council had experienced difficulties with this claim in 2008/09 and had implemented
new policies and procedures in order to minimise the risk of errors arising. Due to the fact
that these measures were introduced during 2009/10 and the volume of etrors identified
from the 2009/10 cettification, it is difficult at this stage to determine how effective these
measures were.

At the request of the Director of Corporate Resources, internal audit have undertaken
substantive testing of the 2010/11 housing benefit claim to provide assurance that the
assessment process is improving. They followed the Audit Commission prescribed
methodology, testing a sample of 20 cases from each of the following four categories: HRA
rent rebates, Non HRA rent rebates, Rent Allowances and Council Tax Benefit.

Across the sample of 81 cases (one extra Rent Allowance case tested), internal audit found
errors within the assessment of 8 cases. A further 4 cases were identified where the
claimants' situation had been subject to a foreseeable change, but no review had been
undertaken to process these changes in circumstance. Although not a mandatory
requirement of the DWP, periodic risk-based claim reviews would highlight such cases and
would give the Council opportunity to amend the claims accordingly. Internal audit should
include this recommendation within their final report. We have been advised that the service
will be introducing a risk based review programme from June 2011.

The number of errors identified in the initial 81 cases was fewer than in 2009/10, when 17
errors were identified within the initial sample of 80 cases. The main reason for this
improvement is that earned income had been assessed correctly for all 81 cases tested,
whereas in 2009/10 we found 8 errors of this kind within our initial sample. This implies
that the enhanced procedures adopted by the Benefit and Local Taxation Quality Assurance
team are leading to the desired results.

It is important that the Council continues to commit the necessary time to mitigate risks of
lost subsidy for 2009/10 and further issues with error levels for the current and future years.

HOU02 Housing Subsidy Base Data Return

It was necessary to process a large number of adjustments for the movements between
2008/09 and 2009/10 as a result of errors noted by our testing. A recommendation has
been raised for the claim to be compiled as early as possible to allow time for the Council to
adopt a robust review process and minimise the number of changes required following the
draft submission.

Our testing also found that the Council had not previously calculated the average weekly
rent by using a weighted income receivable amount for dwellings which were sold after 1
April. A recommendation has been proposed for the Council to complete this process each
year and ensure correct calculation of this amount.

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 120

London Borough of Haringey 8
Certification work report 2009/10

2.21

2.22

HOU21 Disabled Facilities Grant

The Council had included £19,000 relating to a disabled facilities award for ex-armed forces
personnel. However, our work determined that the individual the payment was allocated to
was not eligible, as per the relevant criteria. As such, an amendment was made to the claim
form to show the Council was due to repay the £19,000. In light of this finding a
recommendation has been proposed for the Council to minimise similar issues arising in
future claims.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council's grant claim co-ordinator, John
Holden, and officers for their assistance and co-operation during the course of the
certification process.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

June 2011

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved



Page 121

panasal S)YBL Iy “d 77 YN UOUIoY L Jueld LL0Z ®

"$95€D
JO Joqunu & Ul 90UapIAd Junioddns 01 9933e JoU pIp sjunowe Iyouaq Aededour pue SIPaId Xe], e

‘syuowided 1JoURq JO JUSWAILISIOPUN
PUE I9A0 913 O3 PI] Sey] SIY T, *9975€ 959} I8} ISED OU} 9 P[NOYS I "SIUI[ SWOIUT IJOUdq
PIIY2 JO I2qWNU 9} 01 SV JUIPUdop JO JOqUINU JUSIIJJIP B PEY OS[E $ISED JO JOqUINU 9558[

e
JO JoqUUINU 933¢[ & UT PIIeIS JOPUN JO JIAO FUII] SWOIUL UT SUNNSII ON[eA UL $a8ueyd Juanbasqns
303 parepdn A[eonewoint Suroq SIUNOWE dWOITT IJOUdq P[IYD 5ot pajuaadid Apuanbosuod

Sey pue $ISED JO JOqUUINU 937¢[ € UT PaIsn(pe A[[enuewy usaq Sey SWOdUT IJoUdq PIY) e

JuBWre
o Aq papraoid 20UoprAd 93 01 9933k JOU OP YIIYM ‘SaIEp PUD JurwEd Jo uonedrdde 1005500U] e

JUBWITE[D 9U) YIIA JUSPISIT St PIYD 913 10U JO 3oy vodn juspuadap ‘papnpour
U29q 9ALY P[NOYS SWOJUT 91f3 FO 9sUdxX0 913 A[UO - UBORL[NIEd JFIUI] JWES I UL P[IYD dWES
91 JOJ PIPN[IUT U] IABY SWODUI IFIU] PIYd Pue siuswied 90ULUIUTEW P[IYD 2IOYM SISE) o

"Po1S3] S9SED 93 JO SWOS UO aWOIUT Pauies JO UONE[MI[EI 1091100UT °

(ToNdD
HoPq waYdS
pouTe[dxo 9501} PUE 7 UONDIS UT POUONTIW SIOFFO 913 03 anp payenb sem wiroy wirep oy A[euonippy porgenb -
‘uonewIoyur aep 03 dn sxouwr 10§ pue X®] [[2UN0D
91ep UOISSIWINS [EUISLIO 9U3 J91JE WI0] Wred a3 Sunepdn [DUNOY) oY) 01 anp PIPUIWE SEA WIE[D YT, popuowry 10SL19°28C pute Sursnofy
uIn3o¥
Arewrwung 91e2hNIdD) () anrep PR

01/600C 03 PRI SUINIOI PUE SWIE[D JO S[IEId( VY

Vv Xipuaddy

6

01/600g 110da1 Y10Mm uonedyIa)
Aabuiiey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 122

pansasal sIyBU |Iy "dT MN UoUIoY L JUeID |LL0Z ®

JUSWPUIWE
30 )
uonesgmenb (10NOH
"SUONIPUOD PUE SWIS) JUELIS 9U) YIIA 9DULBPIOIIE UT PUL PIels A[HIE] Sem Wre[d oy T, NOYITA\ SOCYEH LT Aprsqns vy H
‘pareIssiu ( )
Suraq Y20[q 9NUIADI SIATDY) SUIP[IYD) 1FLIG 2ING, dU) 03 NP 2IMIPUIdXDd dNTIAIF JO JUIWILISIOPUN C00AH
O} PUSWE 0 SeA SIU T, "WONEINID 01 JorFrd w0y wre[d oy} 03 paymbar sem JUSWPUIWE U papuowry GE6'8FFCT 1335 9INg
“panrqns uddq pey
Wre[d 9U3 ¥91J¢ J[e[IeAL dWEIIq YITYM UONEWIOJul 23ep 03 dn ojows 30J $150d [€39] Jo Sunepd) e
*JOJI0 B[NWIFOJ
€ 0] aNP PIE[NOI[Ld API2IFOOUT U22q PeY YITYA SISO JUIWIA0IJWT JO IN[BA I} JO UONIIIIO) (00eLI0)
*SSUI[MP 39130 JO [esodsIp pue sa8es1row ¢ 1Y JO SUIPUNOT J09FF00UT JOJ JUUNsSnN(py s1dia0a1
“pue[ Sursnoy U 359391uT Jo0 AUt Jo [esodsip ay3 ur 30339 [eorydesdody v jo Juswpuowy e wdﬁ&wu
jesateli|
"TONEIYNIID 01 J01Fd WIE[d 9} 01 IPEUWT 2FIM SIUIWPUIWE SUIMO[[OF Y], papuatwry 98'86ETHFT Jo 8uroo

"A[918IM00E 230W $I0II
211 JO 1UAIXD o) 9)e[odenxa 01 s Pa[qeua yarym ‘paimbox Suraq Supsal [BUONIPPE 01 PI 2A0qE oY T,

‘S9SeId ﬁ—OQQSm QWOdUI JO Joquunu © JOJ 91eINIOTUT 9JoM SIIEP PUS PUL 1JelS YT,

v xipuaddy

ol

01/6002 Modai yiom uoneayiia)
Aabuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo-




Page 123

panasal S)YBL Iy “d 77 YN UOUIoY L Jueld LL0Z ®

*STU} JOJ PIPUSWE SEA WIOJ WIe[d oy T, Tunouwre a3 3deq Aed 01 paymbox seam [1oUno7) oy Yons se “erroirrd (lznon
Arqidrpo Jueaspes oy 3od se quess e yons 103 AJienb 10U prp pade[RF JUNOWE S YIIYM 01 [ENPIATPUT SOnIOEJ
oy T, ‘euuosiad ATeruu X 303 JUex3 SONI[IOE] PI[qEsIp & 01 SUneI (0061 F PAWIE[ Pey [PUNo7) YT, papuswry 000°6 L parqesiq

‘PopRPUL
o¥om SSUIPMP 1UBAI[DF [[e onsua 01 pue ‘f1xodoxd pasodsip e Jo uorsnpur oY1 Surpnur
999yspeards UONE[MI[Ed S} UT SIODEINIOEUT 01 NP VONL[NI[ED JUF A[Yo2M dU) 01 JUSWPUIWY e
TPUN0Y) 9 Aq P[OY UONEWIOJUT PAAMIUDF 01 9NP JUF A[ooM 9FeI0AE 01 Juounsn(py
*S[21S0Y PIPN[IUT APIIIFOIUT PEY YDIYM SIUI[[2MP PIOA UO SSOJ 1UDF JO UONBIN]Y @
‘syuax £139doxd proa papnppxa Ap023300UT Py YOIYM TOHE[NI[ED JUIT [E10) U3 JO UOISIADY e
“MO[e3uUng © st passe[d £[1993700UT FUISq SUI[PMP 9U3 UT PI[NSIT YOIGM
UONEIYISSL[D93 [BULSIIO 9} UT JOXID 01 9Np JL[J 9SI WNIPIW 0} MO[E3UN( © JO UONLIYISSLOY o
“f130doxd parzaauod auo JoJ vonenfea oy Jo Supepd) e
"21¥1S PISIAI IR}
UT U3NI9F 91} UT PopPN[IUT A[1993300 U29q pey sopFodord palroAuod 993) 9INsuD 0] SIUSWPUIWY e (cQonOH)
"PAPNIX TA2q Pey YIIYM ‘(0] /600T BT PIOs sem yarym £179doxd ouo Jo Juowelsupy e Uimod
©IEp 98Eq
:OPEW 9J0M SIUDWPUIWE SUIMO[[O] 93 PIYNIID 9 0 UINIDI Y} JO,] papuowry v/u Aprsqns vyH
uIn3ax
Arewruung 91e01NId) () anpep O T

Vv Xipuaddy

LE

01/600g 110da1 Y10Mm uonedyIa)
Aabuiiey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 124

panasal S)YBL Iy “d 77 YN UOUIoY L Jueld LL0Z ®

vE 6vL0Y0°56€ [er0],
(1€9W
swrerd
*SUONIPUOD PUE SWIA) JULI3 9 A1 2OULPIOIIE UT PUE PILIS A[ITEJ 9F9M SWIL[d 9953 JOYI0 YT, :
oreredas
“[PUNO7) U3 01 NP IDUE[E] Y PAONPIF SIYI ‘PIPUAWE 2DU() [IDUNOT) Y1 01 NP IDUE[E] popuowe - JWWEISOI]
913 JO UODENO[ED I} UT JOIID Uk 01 NP 93P9[J UOPUO| PFION A'I(] 22 03 Pasmbox seam Juswpuawe uy wrep 2u() 0ST°0SS‘T 9[3uIg
juowpuowe

0 (€09W
uopneoyenb SONIUNWITIOD
'SUONIPUOd put swiIal MQN.HM 9Ul YIm 90UepPIOdI3E Ul pUt Pajels \ﬁ.ﬁd.w Sem wWrep 9y g, MOYIr X\ OOOAPmm‘J\ JOJ Teop MoN]

“[[99 ST} WOIJ PIAOWIT 9JOFIIIYI SeM I UL PIPN[OUT SEA 1 [[92 93 J0J Pasmbox se 7eak

Jo1rd o3 J0U pUE FroA JUSFIND o1 FOJ A[[eNnIdE SeM WIOJ WIE[d 93 U POPN[OUT JUNOWE PUNJOI Yy

TOOYDS 9UO Je pasn Eoum%m Amozm&

[[o3fed o3 YA JOIID UE JO INSIT € 9 O} PUNOJ SeM PUE SN 01 PIPYHOU SEA SIU T, “SUDUIWWOD
sFom Jno 03 Jorxd Arefes £501nqrRIUOD JO onfeA 9Y) UT FOIIO Ut POIRUIPT OUNOD) OUT, e Uil
. . . T suorsuad
:SUOSEIT SUIMO[[OF 93 JOJ Surpuawre paymbox uimiox yorsuad sFoydea) oy T, popuowy LS 8EH 6SL9T SIYILI],
(ovD
"‘TONII0d TInjax Sajer
UT $9SSO[ JO UONE[NI[Ed 9 0Jul paj Apuanbosqns yorym ‘sjjo-omim 1ea£ 1017d JOJ JUNOWE 91BINIIEUT U onsawop
PopN[2ul PeY [I2UNO07) 94 ], "UONII[O UT SISSO[ JO UONE[NI[ED 1991F0DUT I3 JOJ PIPUIWE SeM UIMIDI oY T, popuowry 16° 0028V HS -UoU [BUONEN]

uIn3ax
Arewrwung 91e2hNIdD) () anrep O

Vv Xipuaddy

cl

01/600g 110da1 Y10Mm uonedyIa)
Aabuiiey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 125

panasal S)YBL Iy “d 77 YN UOUIoY L Jueld LL0Z ®

‘Buro3u(

“UONEXE ], [L00]
pue sygouag jo peaty Lnda(q oypeddrg ue|

*A3ess200U 23€ soinpadord [onuod Aenb ropIng J1

QUTWIIAP 01 TORELIFNIND ()] /600 2Y? SULMp paySIysry sanssy
o2 01 popIeME ST TONEBIIPISUOD [BUONIPPE 1B PUE ‘UONEIYNIID
60/800¢ 2 ¥ padnponul sarnpadoid Jonuod Lenb

QWAYIS 11JoUa(q X¥)

"pa2sdy ysryg oy Jusw[dWwI 01 ANURUVOD [PUNOT) Y} JLY} PIPUIWWOIITF ST 1] [PUNOD put SUISNOF]
‘Buro8u()
“UONEXE ], [L00]
pue s1gouag Jo peat] Lnda( Ox1pessig ue]
"110g dun{ wouy
22UIWWOd 0) pawresdord ST Swrep 1Jouaq
ITe 3o owwerdord MITAdT PIseq JSIF Y
*SJOT19 9YPW 01 INUNTOD OYM 9SO} JOF
pauurid st uopav ppqedes Jo/pue *93MINg U U SUISIIE SINSST
Sururer) oI, "$9IeT JOTIO YSIY PIM o ;
JE[IUWIS PIOAE 01 $9INPad03d Md[AdI [EUONIPPE JO uoneiudwadwr
STOLJO [[e 40§ 110Z/010T Ul Ua3esiapun
o pue arerrdordde se syoo1z0 01 SutuTen Jo vorsiaoxd
sea owwersord SUTuTeR 93 JULdYIUSTS
o T 703 9q P[NOA UOHEPUIWIWOIIT Y "WEI) UOHEXE ], [LI0 PUE
*90TATOG SIFIUIE U UT JJEIS JO $IJOUIE Y} UMM PISSNISIP PUE PIMIIADF 9 JFOM UONEIYNIID
FOQUIDW ATIAD PIJOIIQ APEII[E Sey UONEXE], SU) WOIJ PIYIUSPT SINSST Y JLY} PIPUIWWOIIT ST 3]
[¥20°] PUE $35jouag] O peoH ando 2y L *oa0qe 'y xipuadde ur paso[IsIp se ‘suoseas Jo Jaquunu QWIS IJOU( Xb)
“paoIdy ysryg © 303 paygrenb sea Aprsqns 13ouaq Xel [PUNOD pue JUrsnoy oy J, [PUNOd pue JUISNOF]
s[re1ap uopejuswadur
Luoug UONEPUSWIIOdIY UInIdI JO Wre[)

2@ asuodsar yuswadeuey

g xipuaddy

€l

uerd vonoy g

01/600g 110da1 }10Mm uonedyIaY
Aabuiiey jo ybnoiog uopuo




panasal S)YBL Iy “d 77 YN UOUIoY L Jueld LL0Z ®

urodu()

‘gonexe T, 18207

. "9WODUT S JULWIE[D U2 J0J UONEWIFOJUT 9JBINIIL
pue sygouag Jo peat] Anda(q Oxipessig ue] : : : :

PIoY [uno7) oy 18y Jueazodur st Iy 9A0qe se Foramor] ‘Amonrd
'sIseq SuT03Uo MO[ 9PBW U29q SBY ST} POPIEIISIP FUTaq SIJouaq PIIyd 03 an(]

UE UO PIMIIADF 9( [[IA SISED Q] OF PFe3aT
A eIep O], "PaFmbar oxoym pa10aszod pue
PoM91AF U99q APEII[E DALY SOSED ST UON] [V

*9913¢ 01 0M] 913 0§ Pa3dadxa oq
P[NOA 1 "UODEWIOFUI P[OYasnOY PHoM] a3 3od se syuopuadop

Page 126

JO JOQqINU 91} PUE SIUNOWE JWODUT IJOUdq P[IYD JO Foquiny SWIAYDS IJOUI XE)
“pooIdy MO o) U9aM19q PI2[dwod 9q 03 PIPUIWIWOIIT 9T SUOHEIIDUOINY [Punoos pue Susnoy | 4
‘Buto3u( *forj0d JudWIUIOAOT

ur mDMGNQU MD%MSM Aue MO 9SED UT 918INII¥ ST MUMDQ QOUNE.HOMQM

[[e 23nsu2 [rPUN07) a1 Jet 3ueszodwr st 31 ‘Foramop] “Lmrornrd
O] OPEW U2 SBY UONEPUIWWOIIT ST ‘PIPIESIISIP 9TE Son[eA
*SISeq SUTOSUO Uk UO PIMIIAIT 9] [[I 1gauaq priyo Aqaroym ‘Aorjod sigouaq ur 93uryd a3 03 an(J

$9S€D QT O3 PFESr UM BIep 9y, “pormbaz
STOUM PIIIITIOD PUE PIMITAIT U] Apearfe
aaey sased (Q]) 3roddng swoouy UON [V

"UONEXL], [820]
pue s1gouag Jo peap] LAnda( Ox1pessig ue]

"passad0id Apoaizod
o7 sojepdn opEWOINE 2INSUD 0 PUE JUBWIED IY) A] PIATIIIF

SIUNOWE [eN3dE I SUI[ UT 9F€ S90UE[Eq 1Byl 2Jnsus O] wuwﬂmm 9WAYIS 11JoUa(q X
‘paaIsy MO SWODUT 1JaUaq PIYD [[& M1493 A[[edorporad pnoys [puno’) oy, [PUNnod pue 3uUISNOL] | ¢
s[re1ap uoneruswardur
: ; ‘ Aprourg UOTEPUSWIIOdIY uIN3dI J0 Wre[)

2@ asuodsar juswaSeue

g xipuaddy
01/600g 110da1 }10Mm uonedyIaY
vl Aabuiiey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 127

panasal S)YBL Iy “d 77 YN UOUIoY L Jueld LL0Z ®

uInIoy
eIB(] 9seq S Feak IxoN] :23ep voneuowadw]

$109(03
- 90URBUL] JO PEIH :FO0FO) o[qrsuodsoy

00817
JO ApISqns UT UONONPIJ B SEA SJUSWPUIWE
Jourw [re jo 3oedwr oy T, 'z 10z [Fdy 3] woij

‘1D oy £q pasmbos

se 7eaf yoro pa1o[dwod st $s900xd ST Je) 9INSUD P[NOYS
[PUNOY) YT, "UINIDF PIPUSWE o) 0JUT parerodioour pue 1sanbox
INO 1 UINIDI ()] /600 Y2 FOJ POIE[NOTELDd St LIEP SIY T, [IPUN0D)
oy £q auop voaq A[snorasid 10U sey S, ,"PIOS SURq 23039q
VY 9Y2 U sea 31 7624 913 Ut sAep Auews Moy 03 SUIpI0ddE
P2IYS1oM 9q P[NOYS I[qeAIIT dWOdUT 9 ‘(Fea4 Jetp jo) [ady

1 2ours Jo pasodsip Uoaq sey SUPMP B aFoym  JuaF A[oom

Tinior eiep

109359 I 895820 WwasAs Aprsqns VI YL wnpoy o8eroAe o) SUNEMOTEd UT 183 97€ SITIWIMbax 1) o1 Jo 1re ] aseq Aprsqns VY H
uImoy
eIE( 9seg s Feak 1XaN] 21ep voneuswa[dw]
“p3Ep UIPUEIS 9 JO
s12[0id SY09D $SIUI[BUOSEIT SPN[OUT 0} PUE ‘UOISSTIINS a.m% o) 1913
- 9IUVUL] JO PUOH HOILIO dlqisuodsoy OpEW 9q 0) PISU YOTYM muwcmsu jo Bo._e.sc S} ISTWIUTW PUE
00817 $52203d M01A93 315NqO3F B 232d0 01 [IPUNOT) Y} JOJ W MO[[E O
Jo AprSqnS UT UONONPIT B SEA SIUIWPUIWE orqrssod se Afrea se paprdwiod ST WIE[ 9y 1Ly} PIPUIWWOIIT ST I]
JouTw e Jo 30edwr oy T, 'z 10g [FdV 18] woxy "01/6002 PU% 60,/800¢ U29M19q SIUIWIAOW Y} O SPFEIT [oIm UInIax BIep
109359 I 895820 wsAs Aprsqns VI 9YL WIpIN passaooxd aq 01 parmbar orom syuoumsn(pe Jo JoqUINU 93Ie] Y aseq Aprsqns VY
s[re1ap uoneruswardur
Kuoug UONEPUSWIIIOdY wIN3dI J0 Wre[)

2@ asuodsar juswaSeue

g xipuaddy

<18

01/600g 110da1 }10Mm uonedyIaY
Aabuiiey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 128

panasal S)YBL Iy “d 77 YN UOUIoY L Jueld LL0Z ®

paruswoduwy £peaiyy :21ep voneiuowarduwy
JOSEURIA 90UBUL] /¢ :Foo1JO d[qisuodsoy

“UOTJE[NO[ED I} UT POPN[OUT
2q P[MOYS JJO-TIM PasEoyIne A[uo Jey)
98pa[mouy oy} uo paseq sem pue ‘Foquandog
ur 3o1¢] 1PNy 031 Jorxd ‘Torssruqgns

[BUIS1IO 91 JO SABP UIYIIM OPBW UOHDIIIFOD
SU3 PUE SI9OLJO S, [PUNOY) 9Y) AQ PIFHUPT
U29q Apeoi[e Py UONDIIIIOD SIY ], ‘SJJO-ITim
PISIIOYINE JOJ PIsn 9ING PIIDITI0D & 10IJOF
01 01 /600g ¥0F 9In31J BONII[OD) UT SISSO'T
MANN 92 01 OpeW Sem JUIWPUIWE Uy

‘suonespoyIne Jjo-rm gunyoddns oy 03
Apoexo Pooxde e WIE[D 913 UT POPNOUT PUE JJO UM SIUNOWE

Tinialt S91et dNsowop

“UOIEPUIWIODIT 9} $9J0U [PUNOT) YT, WNIpaA [[€ 382 230U 01 [IPUNO7) 9y} J0§ pasodord st uonepuIWWOddT Y -uou [eUoneN | §
11/010T wep
0),1(] o uorsstuqng :23ep voneiudwadw]
SOOV
— 90UBUL] JO P} :F9013 () d[qisuodsoy
"11/010C 30F 9IMBT ST} JO SWIL[D
OU 27€ 9J9U[} St ‘JEIA SI() aNSST UL 9q 10U
PINOYS ST} ‘FOAIMOL] "A[YSNOIOYI PIxdYD “Wre[d JUBI3 oY) UO PIPN[OUT JUraq 1UEI3 93 01 Jo1d
9JE SWIE[D [9UU0SIOd 91AFIS-X0 oFnIng JoW 9Fe ‘SUONEIO[[E [PUUO0SIId 9DTATIS-XO DDULISUT FOJ ‘SUONEIO[[E
AU YeU) 9INSUD [[IA [PUNOT) ST, “PI2I3Yy MO JUeI3 01§199ds J0J BIIOILID U JLLR 9INSUD P[NOYS [IDUNOT) YT, SonIIOey PI[qesI(] | L
s[re1ap uoneruswardur
Kuoug UOIEPUSWIWI0d3Y UIn1ax J0o Wiep)

2@ asuodsar juswaSeue

g xipuaddy

9l

01/600g 110da1 }10Mm uonedyIaY
Aabuiiey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 129

panasal S)YBL Iy “d 77 YN UOUIoY L Jueld LL0Z ®

“UORONPIJF SIYL
01 PAINQINTOD YDA J[PNE [BUINIUT JO JFOM I} UO 20ULI[aF 99¢[d

01 9[qe Os[e 27om M ‘93o7dwod 01 JUO[ S 93l 10U PIP UFNI9F 9T, 88/°L 0259 uInIax suorsuad SFoYdeIT,
'SJUNOJJ¢E Y] Sk W) WS 9] 1v TDuQMQEOU
ST UFNJ9F JT JUDIOIJO 9FOW UONEIYNIID oy 03 9dodg 1593

2IIXO UB POUTLIUOD UONINASU UONEIJNIID UOISSIWO.) Ipny 062°S $S1°L UINIOF S8BT ONSIWOP-UOU [EUONEN]
‘suoneue[dxo

puE 9ouapIAd Surpraord [puno’) o Ut sAB[Op 03 anp 993 JOYSIH ceTY 88¢°G SONI[I2B} PI[qesI(]
"01/600g BT WioF wrep oy} 01 pasmbox

SIUQWPUIWE JO JOQUINY 953¢[ O3 SIDI[JOF $I9J UT 9SBIIOU] G96°S 5206 UInI9¥ BIEp 9skq Aprsqns VY H

“wrepd 9y} 01 pasmbox syusunsn(pe Jo [9A9] 886C S0Sy Aprsqns VIH
TPUNON)

9{31 WOI} 90UapIA9 JOJ MCﬁﬂN\K/ O} anp m%d~®.@ SI09[JoF 98BaIOUT mmw.m wOmﬁm 1Jel1s 24ng

“3unsa) Ternpasoxd ur osEaIdUT UY cey'e €TEY $3d10097 [e31ded Sursnoy jo Suroog
"wrep (1/600g 22 03 vone[as ur pauwrojiad aq 01 pey

Jey} SUnNsS9) [EUONIPPE JO JUNOWE UT 9SEIIOUT I} $1DI[JOF 9SEIIOU] 812°G9 88648 SWIDS JJOUIQ Xb) [IOUNOD Pue SUISNOF]

S9dUELIEA JUBDITUSTS J0] uoneuedxy (%) 60/800Z 224 (& 01/600T 221 UINIdI JO WIE[D)

9 xipuaddy

JAS

$99J FIOM UOIBIYNIY) )

01/600g 110da1 }10Mm uonedyIaY
Aabuiiey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 130

panasal S)YBL Iy “d 77 YN UOUIoY L Jueld LL0Z ®

€TL80T

r\)44!

e,

'S[e10] WIred [enprarpur

oY) UIIIA TUAOYS Sem ()G F Jo 23y aaneredwod 0 /8007x

*0

00S¥

Sunzodos pue uonensUTWPE ‘SUTUUL]]

*9Z1S STU3 JO WIE[D & YIIM PIIEIDOSSE 9 A[[BWIOU

PINOA UBY) JUSWIAJOAUT JotlFed pue JoSeurws JUBDHTUSIS

orow parmbox JUIWNIO0P ST} JO JUIWIII3E PUE SUNJEIP

SUT, "UOITIOY ], JUEIC) PUE £oUd3y Juowdo[@Ad(] UOPUOT a1
‘FoUNO0N) 91 U29MID] JUIWIISE aredin € JOpPUN PayRIAd 9q O}
Py pue $$9503d TONEIYNIOD VOISSTIIWIO) PNy ) JO 9PISINO
SEA\ SWITED 93 JO SUO I} 108 O} £ PIsnEd ST 9SLIIOUT I,

G18°S

919°L

sure[d 21eredas § - SwWweIsoJ 9[3UIg

‘01,/600Z U GOREIHRIID JUIDGID 2IOW & 03 PAINGEIUOD
UYa1gm (/8007 UT JUOP YIOM U} WOIJ IJAUI] 01 B IIM A\

091

S06C

SONIUNUWIWOD JOJ [BIP MIN]

s9ouUeIeA JUedIugrs 10§ uoneuedxg

(%) 60/800z 221

(%) o1/600zZ 221

uIn3dz JO Wire[)

9 xipuaddy

8l

01/600g 110da1 }10Mm uonedyIaY
Aabuiiey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 131

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd (Grant Thornton
International’). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from
acting as a result of any material in this publication

© 2011 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 133 Agenda ltem 11

o Grant Thornton

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY

AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - JUNE 2011

Work Progress

2010/11 Our planning work for the 2010/11 accounts audit is underway and will be
Accounts audit | completed in June prior to the audit commencing at the beginning of July.
As in previous years the Council has agreed to give us early sight of the draft
accounts so that we can undertake a technical review and feedback
comments to the Council by 27" June. This will allow for any revisions to be
made prior to the Director of Corporate Resources signing off the draft
accounts on 30" June.

We have agreed our Audit Approach Memorandum with officers and it has
been published on the Council's website as a supporting working paper to
this Progress Update.

Upon completion of the audit we will document our findings in the ISA260
report to those charged with governance. This will be presented at the next
meeting of the Corporate Committee on 27% September.

2010 / 11 VFM Our 2010/11 Value for Money conclusion will be based upon two reporting
criteria specified by the Audit Commission being:

Criterion 1 - The Council has proper arrangements in place for securing
financial resilience

Criterion 2 - The Council has proper arrangements for challenging how
it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

To meet criterion 1 we are undertaking a review of the Council’s financial
resilience. We will bring this report to the next meeting of the Corporate
Committee on 27" September.

Our work to meet criterion 2 is underway, with specific pieces of work being
undertaken as follows:

e A review of the Council's progress with introducing Personal
Budgets to Adult Social Care users. A Personal Budget is an
allocation of money given to an adult social care user that gives them




Page 134

choice and control over the care they receive. We will present our
findings to the next meeting of the Corporate Committee on 27"
September.

e Follow up our 2009/10 review of Partnership Working in Haringey.
e Follow up our 2009/10 work on Workforce Management.

e Review progress in implementing actions from the Shared
Intelligence review of governance arrangements.

We will include summaries of each of these pieces of work within the
ISA260, which we will present to the next meeting of the Corporate
Committee on 27th September. Our Annual Audit Letter will contain a
more detailed section on each of these VEM reviews. This will be presented
to the December meeting of the Corporate Committee.

Grants claims
and returns

The 2009/10 grants report has been agreed with officers and is presented to
this meeting of the Corporate Committee.

certification
Housing The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) has responded to our
Benefits 2009/10 qualification letter regarding the Housing and Council Tax Benefit

subsidy claim. The Council has undertaken further work to respond to the
DWP's queries and we are in the process of checking that work so that we
can respond to the DWP by 18" June.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
June 2011

Page 2



Page 135

LLOC 3unr

wnpueFOwWRN yororddy pny s1unoddy

A98urIe[] jo ysnoiog uopuo]

uojuloy | Juelo) °



Page 136

| “Pon1asal sybu Iy g7 )N UojwIoyL WeID LL0Z ©

2onTWwwo”) 21e30d307) 01 Suniodoy .
uorurdo Jrpne Ut SUTUTWIN(T
UONEN[EAD [[BFOA0 SUTWIOJI o

arerdordde pue JuardyINs ST 20UIPIAD

JIPNE JOUPIYM UONELIIPISTOD OIUT SULHEI ‘SIUNOIIE 19[S
20UE[eq PUE 2FMIPUIAXD PUL SWOIUT [EIFIEW [[& SUIAJIIOA o
MOTADJ TeINAJeUE SUTWIOJIO o

SIUWIIEIS
[BI2ULUT 93 UT SINSST JINSO[ISIP [ELIOIBW SUIMIIAIY o

SOWITIJ JO 2PO) VAdIO
91 ISUTESE JIPNE [EUINUT JO SSOUIATIIIIIO ) JUISSISSY o

S[OTTOD PAIII[As JO $$9UIANIJFO Sunerodo oyl FunsaT, «
£3aens ypne aendordde

ue Supuowoduwr pue Surdo[oasp pue Ysir IIPNE JUISSISSY »
SIUDWIDIEIS [BIDULUTY o)
1oedwr Aoty oxoym T ] SUIPN[OUT S[OFITOD [EIOULUT [BUFIIUT

3O ToNEIUIWI[dWI PUL SSIUIANDIIJJO USISIP oY) SUIMITAIY o

JouIqen) 01 s330dox ddurWIIOIAd
91} JO MOTAIF B PUE JUIWISLULW [PIM STOISSNISTP
y3Snoryl [rouno’) 9y Jo JurpuelsIopun Jno sunepd() «

:sosdwod £391ems J1pne Jno Ayewrwns Uy

uonajdwor

‘wnpuesowow siy} 01 y xipuaddy ur payre1ap are ‘9ourur
a1esodsoD) Jo peol 91 pue s90IN0sIY 1er0dIo)) Jo J0103II(T Y}

IIM PI213e Sk ‘JIpne SJUNOddE [ENUUE JNO JO S[IeIdP [edNSLGO] YT,
sainpasoud

aAnuelsqng

s3urpury Jno Sunsodor uoym

pue 1pne no Suruue[d UoUYM SUONIESUEI JO AIerFolew o) JOPISUOD .
PUE {POAJOAUT JJEIS [[€ YA SI[IDWN 29I3E

puU® UIpne o1 JO 13¥IS AU I SISeq YSE [ENPIAIPUT U UO Jpne ino ue[d
ApuaroKye 3IpNE oY) 1ONPUOD PUE SAUIPEIP

JIPNE 199W M JBT} 2INSUD 0O WED) IDUEUY ) [PIM A[9SO JJOM o

I 94X\

Japuiwai yoeoidde Jipny

uonen|eAs
jo4u09

"93Bp 03 INO PILIFED JIOM JIPNE WIIIUL

JO SI[NS2F oY) WOFJ SYSTF 493 01 asuodsar 1o uo a3epdn ue se [jom st T 107
Axeniqo,1 UT panssT 11/(010g Ue[d PNy o ur Ino 19s st ‘gdeordde irpne
IN0 SUIPIEFOI [TBIDP [PTONIPPE 9P1a0id 01 PoPUAIUT ST WNPULIOWIW SIY T,
uoljonpoJjuj

Buluueld

yoeordde 3rpne sjunodde In()

wnpuelowsdpy yoeoiddy ypny sjunoday



Page 137

¢ ‘Ponesal sybu Iy g7 N UojwIoyL JUBID LL0Z @

Aynuopr

JYSTW 9SIOFOXD MITADF S[OFIVOD IATSUIXD 9FOW B I8} [OTIVOD [EUINUT UT
s1uowoAordwr o[qrssod [[e opn[IUT 01 FO ‘SINTIL[NFIII JIAYIO JO SUONELI[eJOP
Anuopr 01 ATressa00u vodn PRI 9q JOUTED YIOM INO FOAIMOH
‘sySnorgiyesm swaisks ‘gepdordde azoym ‘pue ‘sornpasord uonearasqo
pue £xmbur Jo uoneuIqUOd € YSNOIY SIYI OP [[IA )\ "PIPUIUT St
paruswdwr Uoaq 9ABY S[OTITOD Y3 FOYIIYM SSIsSt 01 Parmbar os[e o3 9\

*STUQWIDIEIS [BIOULUT 913 JO SBIJE ISIF YSIY oY) UO MIIAIF [OFTOD FNO

SNOOJ (1A 24 9F0JOIOY T, “IUIWIDILISSTW [LIFIIBW O) PEI] P[NOD JLL) SSOUYEIM
JO seare AJnuopr 01 $$9203d Sunsodos [EIOULUY 91} FOAO SJOTITOD [EUFNUT

JO SSOUDANDIJJO USISOP 93 21BN[BAD IM I} 23nbox sprepuels Sunpny

$]041U09 |euJalu]

“JUOWISSISSE ISIF [OTITVOD O} PUE SI[ILD TONILSUER
JULDPTUSTS o1} UT pasn ] JO Lrxo[dwod 9y UO paseq sem ST UIpne o)
Supmp syoquow wed) (QY],) SIITATIG STy AF0[OUYII], PIAJOAUT 9ABY A\

*Jo8pa[ [eIoU3

o Sunroddns Juowuoaud (1) A30[0UY29) TONELWIOFUT 93 UT S[OFIVOD
[BUIOIUT § [IDUNOT) 91} JO MITAJT ® s23mbaz yoreosdde no LSurprodoy
"SUONOESUEN JO Joquunu 237¢e[ & $s2001d Je suonedrdde Sununoodoe

703 wialsAs yoindwoo € asn s3udr Fno Jeyy sownsse yorordde ipne Oy

SWwa)sAs pPa2INoSINO pue || JO MaIASY

"UONOUNJ JIPNE [EUIIIUT 93 JO SSIUIATIONIJD 93 JO MITAIF JNO 03 192[qns
‘pa1oNpu0d dABY A3 YFOM ) PUL PIYNUIPT SYSIF OYI JO JUNOIIL SIYB)
yorozdde 1rpne 1o 2INSTD 01 TONDUNJ JIPNE [LTUINUT O} YT JFOM [[IA )\

JpNne [eulajul uo asuel|ay

"SIUQWIAIEIS [B[DUBUI] U JO SSQUITE] PUE

INA 9 1F0ISIP J0OU S0P I JT [eIFAIBW 10U paspn( oq Aew anfea 3oysy
JO WA UY "SIUDWN[OWD SI0IDIIP JO INSO[ISIP Y SI19JJE 1B} WA AUr
orduwrexo 303 ‘Ormieu sI1 Aq [emForew paSpn( oq Aewr onfeA MO[ JO WA UY

*SIUOWIIEIS

[EIOUBUY 91 01 [erFaIewul 93¢ A9 1B} MI1A FnoA SUTWIFUOD ‘sn
01 voneIuasardar Jo Jo197 Inok ur nok 4q jjo pauds Isnfpe 10U op nok Jr
‘PUE NOK 1M PISSNISIP 91832133 UT PUE A[[ENPIAIPUT PISSISSE TE 98 T,

"SJUDWNLISSIW [eNU210d JO IMPIYDS & WO PIpIF0IF 3q [[IM LI[ersarews

JO 0/,7 UL} J21BIIS SOOUIFIJJIP FO STOFIO PIYNUIPT AUY ‘SIUIWIEIS
[EIOULUT 9T UO WT AU JO 1oedwr o1) $S9sSE 01 FOPIO UT $59203d

JIpNE 9U) IN0YSNOIYY pasn uay ST ] “pauue[d ST JFOM JPNE JO [AI]
arerzdordde ue e amsuo 01 Suruue[d JO 195INO O 18 198 ST AI[RIFOIBIN
MITA JTJ JO 9N B MOYS J9FUO[

OU P[NOM SIUSWIAIEIS [EIDUEUL ) ‘OINSO[ISIP-UOU JO UOISSTWO SIT YSNOIY)
JT SIUDWIAIEIS [EIDULUL ) O [BIFOIEW PAIIPISTOD 9] P[NOM WNT Uy

Anjesrep

(ponunuod) yoroidde ypne sjunodde InQ)

wnpuelowsdpy yoeoiddy ypny sjunoday



€ "paniasal siybu [y 'd 717 N UolLIOYL uelD L10Z ©

TPUNOY) 93 Aq P[OY SIATISIT JO [9AI]
otp uo 1oedwr prnood sty se ‘vonrsod
UJFOOU0D FUTOF $IT O3 I[SIF © ST 939 [,

*$93Np2203d UFIOU0d SUT03 INO JO

13ed se uontsod [epULUY S [1PUNOT) O}
JO Mo1AdF patepdn Ue INO AITED [[IM I\ o

Fe2A o) 303 23arpuadxo pur

9NUIADI § [IOUNOY) ) JO UONLIUIsaFdos

919[dw0d ® o3¢ puE JLIA 1993500

‘porzad [eroULUY 1X0U o) UT S3UTALS
JULDITUSTS 2AJMYDE 01 SBY [IPUNOT) I, »
'$903n0saYy 21e30dI07)

sjuswajels sainssaid JIPNT SUNOOIE [euy
|eroueul) ay) @ouew.opad o jo vona[dwod uo ()97
JO seale ||y¥ |eloueuly VS]) 99UBUIOAOL) TIIM
paseyD) asoy T, 03 1r0doy
[ENUTY FNO UT PIYRUIPT
SSIF OB JO 109dsar ur
STUOISN[OUO0D PUE SSUTPUTY
I3 M0 130do7 TIm 9\

JO JOIDFI(T O TPIA STUNOIW VOSTEI|
pue sxoded 10uIqer) JO MI1AF YSnOIY)
7224 o) Inoydnorp vonrsod [erdULUY

§,[IPUNOY) 9} PIIOITVOW IABY A\ o

9{3 U JOJ Palunoddt Ua9q aALY %Ddﬁ-
13 2Jnsuo Ol DHSu%QDQNQ pure onuoAas
uo m@MSmquO.HQ INEIFIPUN I I\ o

‘QYLIT FOpPUN ParoPIsSuOd JUTOq JUIUWNIEIR
Sununodde 03 sasueyd pasodord
Kue 303 130ddns popraoid oaey om

'so8ed Summoroy oyp

UT PIJIAOD 2TE UDTYM SYSIF
MU JNOJ PIYRUIPT SBY
[PUNO7) 93 SUIOEJ SYSTF
o JO MaTAdF parepdn InQ

(Hdd)

1wowdmbo pue juerd “iodord remonsed

o7 SpeT4L] O OISR 7 0 S put 2douEpMS pue SsaNSSI QY I SUISIOWD

SurpreSor Wea], 9JUBUL] oU (PRI

3
SE PAINUIPI SBIFE YSII YSIY 22 VO SNd0J UOSTEN SUTOSUO PAUTLIUTEW SATY 9 sjuawajels LT T
4 saxnpadoxd Jrpne 2ANTEISANS INQ) o .Q.NWCO. : S EIRIEITR O iy
"SIUWAILIS [BIDUBLY [1/010T 3 (OVY) /3que/p Jo seaue ||¥ - pouue[d yFom JoINg

e ur 110g Ay Ur oanmuwon)

pny 93 01 parrodas uaaq aaey

MITADI STUY) JO SI[NSF 9y T, ‘parodwod

U29q sey QYT F03 ssouparedord
$,[IPUNOY) 9} JO MOTADF OF1dS | o

pue 2ep 01 parodwod
JFOM JO SWOIINO Y}
ansoddo 1no 19s oaey pue
11/010C u¥ld #pny o ut
PIYHUSPL SSI JIpne. 943
POADTADT DABY M YFOM
UoNEN[EAd [OTIVOD PU
Suruued o jo red sy

o Jo FuruSdrs o [Run dn paseo[ox
92UEPING MOU PUE $INSST FULSFOWD

Page 138

SurpIESor Wea], 9JUBUL] oU IA UOSTE]|
3UT0SUO UTEIUTEW O) NUNUOD [[IM I\ o

pauue|d }Jom Jayling palajdwod 310 paloayje seale upny

JUQWISSISSE I[SIT JIPNE SJUNO0IIE UO epdN

wnpuelowsal\ yoeosddy Hpny sjunoday



Page 139

 "paniasal sBU Iy 47T MN uoUIoy ] eI L 102 ©

‘SPOYIOW [EUONUIATOD Jursn
POt U0 . ‘voneardop Jo3 £xo01d

e st (WYIN) 2oueMoy siredoy Jolejyy
ay3 asn 03 sup[d [PPUNOY) Y3 TORIPPE awdinbe sBuijamp
uT "Y201s Sursnoy sir jo syuouoduwod pue jueld [1ouno)
QUIWIFDIAP O SAWOY 1UIIIP TO ‘Aviadoud jo uonenjep

puads oy 1€ SUTOO] 2q [[IA [IPUNOY) 9}
QUOWOSEURW (IIM SUOISSNISIP TO PIsey e

Pa1E[MOTEd uoneardop WOIJ JUIIIJIP
Arerrorews 10U ST YA SUISh Paje[no[ed
uoneardop o 1L 21ENSTOWIP 01
Pa9u [ ‘syeaf snorasrd ur se rounon)
ST, "PoNSSI 90ULPINS YIIM JUT[ UT ST IT
9INSUD 01 YFOM JNO JO 13ed st SSuPMp
[PUNOT) JO UONEN[EA JUJ MIIADF [[IAN I\ o

130dx0 o Aq

pardde suondwnsse pue spoyow o - LI BPLEL B S 2 WNPUBIOWIW
95913 2INSTD 03 9PO7) 2} pPut (SOHTY)
130dx0 o 01 papraord suoponmSuT s 01 g xrpuadde ur
doidd : SJOA2AING PIFAFLY) JO NMINSUT [eLoy juswdinba
pue e1Ep JO ssoualerrdordde oyl £ d n3 sjosse paxiy PoJre1dp aye Ssjudwidle)s
:yenonred U SQY,]T IULBAI[F Ot 9 PopioIe 9SUTPING 9t HO pastq pue uerd JO uonenjeray [eroUeUl 91 0}
: . sgopenyea 1no £33ed 01 Wed) SUONeneA Avedoid . -

JUSWIO)E)SSTW [ELId)eW
Jo 3[sux ,91qrssod
A[qeuoseas, e juasaxd
0] JOPISUOD M [OTYM
91045 Aq S3[SIF UONIISSE
sjunoooe ogroads Jy T,

1M 20UEPF0IE UT pato[dwiod uaaq
JABY SUONEN[EA 1B} 2INSUD O] ‘PIMIJAIS
o [ s339dX0 uopeNEA JO 2SN AYT, e

o Aq USYEIFOPUN TII] SBY JFOM
QUOWOSEUBW (I SUOISSNISIP UO PIsey

pauue|d }JoMm Jayling palajdwod yioMm pajoayje seale upny anss|

(PoNURIUOD) JUSWISSISSE YSIF IIPNE SJUNOIDE VO 218pd)

wnpueiows|y yoeoiddy Hpny sjunoddy



Page 140

G "paniasal siybu [y 'd 717 N UolLIOYL uelD 1102 ©

SFom

o Jo 13ed se pasres sopronb Lue 0aJosox
pue pasanbar wonewoJUT [EUONIPPE
Kue opraoxd 01 owm JULHINS ey
[FOUNO7) Y3 9FNSUD 0} SEIFE JSIF Y31y 9}
UO SNd0J AJ[enTUT [[IA JFOM IIpne Q)

"JSNIT, 90¥[e] PUE YIeJ BIPULKI[Y
OpN[OUT B} SIUNODIE PIAILPI[OSUOD
aredard prnoys [pUNOT) o JOYPIYM UO
JUDWD2I3E U 01 SW0D O JUSWIIeULWs

A\ OSTRI] O3 9NUNTOD [[IM 9\ o

pauueld yiom Jayring

'$2OUIWUWOD

SFOM JIpNE O3 UaYM 20e[d UT 9 J0U
M syunodde oy Sumredard Apuozind
weo) 9y 1By S © ST 239y T, 'suonisod
A9U 9} [[IJ 03 SURMIIAF JO $s2203d

aup U ST [PUNOY) a1 pue pasroxdde uoaq
SBY 90UBUY JOJ IMIONIIS MU € DJep O}

JUOWISeULW (IM STOISSNISIP TO PIsey e

*9q prhoa sip jo suonedrduwr

Y3 JeyM WIFUOD 0 [IPUN07)

Y YA STUOISSNISIP UT [[BS 9F8 oM
JOAIMOF 'SIUNOIDE § [IDUNOT) ) OIUT

Po3epI[OSTOD 9q P[NOYS ISNIT, 9U3 Je}
7eadde pinom 11 ‘s1uowaIeIg [BIdURUT,]

a1eredog pue pateprjosuo) - /7 SVI
JSUTESE PAIBPI[OSUOD 2 P[NOY[S ISNI],

I3 JPylogMm JO MITAIT JNO TUO PIstq e

palajdwod Yo

sjuawajels
letdueuly ayi

JO seale ||y

uol}epIjosuod
Sjunoode
dnoiy

pajoayje seale upny

M3IADI
suolouny
uoddns
aoueuly

Isniy
aoejed pue

yied eipuexs|y

anss|

WNPUEIOUWdW

sty3 03 g xipuadde ur
PO[Ie1dp d3e SIUdWIdIE)S
[eroUEBUL 93 0}
JUIWIDIEISSTW [ELId)ew
Jo 3[sux ,91qrssod
A[qeuoseas, e juasaxd
0] JOPISUOD M [OTYM
91045 Aq S3[SIF UONIISSE
sjunoooe ogroads Jy T,

(PoNURIUOD) JUSWISSISSE YSIF IIPNE SJUNOIDE VO 218pd)

wnpueiows|y yoeoiddy Hpny sjunoddy



Page 141

9 "paniasal siybu || 'd 77 N UolLIOYL uelD 1102 ©

'ssoualardwon

PUE SSOUI[QEUOSEIT JOJ SADULPUNPIT

30 129ds27 UT SJUSWILIS [EIDULUY

SU} UT PopN{OUT SIVIIRI] IUIFURUOD
pue suorsiaord AUe MOTADT [[IM O\ o

‘puads
JOERUOD JJO, PUE 1DLITOD UO, ISTUNNIIS
01 U2YEIFOPUN SEY [IOUNOT) U3 JFOM
o1 JO JUTPULISIOPUN UL UTES [[IA 9\ o
"ONSST ST} SSAIPPE
031 ooe[d ur Ind Suroq s1uowWASUEIIE
[OTIVOD [EUIIIUT OUI MITAIT [[IA I\ o
*$IUBINSUOD VO
23IIpuadxo §,[PUNOY) 9} JO 9FLIIA0D
opN[OUT [[IA SUNS) dADULISANS INC) »

pauueld yiom Jayring

*SONIIQErT JUISUNUOT) PUE SUOTSIAOI]
- /€ SV UO Paseq JOJ 9SOISIP

PUE JUNODJE 01 PIJU [[IA [IOUNOT)

o) YOTYA SI[ULPUNPIF 9q 03 AT
9JE 2391} 9FMIONTISAT FUTOSTO I} YIIM

QUOWOSEURW [IIM SUOISSNISIP TO PIsey e

TUIWIPIG
9OUBUIIAOL) [ENTTY 9U) JO IXNUVOD
9} UT POFOPISUOD 9q P[NOYS EIFE ST
UL PORUDIPT $ISSIUNEIA\ “(PIA pardwod
sAeA[E 10U 0J0M SIOPI() SUIPULIS
o £q Ino pre st sarmpasoxd pajou
SEMA JT ‘SJUBINSUOT) JO 9SN 9 JO MIJAF
SIPNY [BUISIUT WOIJ SSUIPUL TO Pasey e

palajdwod Yo

SUOISIAOId

ainupuadxgy

pajoayje seale upny

salouepunpay

WNPUEIOUWdW

sty3 03 g xipuadde ur
PO[Ie1dp d3e SIUdWIdIE)S
[eroUEBUL 93 0}
JUIWIDIEISSTW [ELId)ew
Jo 3[sux ,91qrssod
A[qeuoseas, e juasaxd
0] JOPISUOD M [OTYM
91045 Aq S3[SIF UONIISSE
sjunoooe ogroads Jy T,

S1oeljuod
jueljnsuon

(PoNURIUOD) JUSWISSISSE YSIF IIPNE SJUNOIDE VO 218pd)

wnpueiows|y yoeoiddy Hpny sjunoddy



Page 142

L "Paniasal sBl Iy "4 77 N uojuloy ] el 110z ©

SONUTEIFIIUN UONBWNSI
poynuapr Aue jo 1oedwr oY) Surpnyour

‘suorstaoxd pue sfeniode ‘syuowkedoard
SSOUS[EUOSEIT JOJ 389} JO 102dsax o

‘SOOUELMO[[E ‘STONEN[BA 1SSE mc%sﬁucﬂ
ur opew mGOﬁQESmmm KAue Mo1A93 M0 9\ o ) ) ’

sjuawajels sjuawabpnl
[eloueulj ay} pue sajewi}sa

SIUQWIAILIS [BOULUY U3 UM

*SIUOWIIEIS
s1uoWOSpN| puE $9JBWNSI JOJ dOUIPIAD

[eIoURTY 9} UT PapN[IUT JUdWwa3pn| pue jo sease ||y joasn
2LWNS? JULIYTUSTS YO JOJ UONE[NILD
S MITADT [ 94 ‘SYQT S,

o Jo syuowIMbox o M OUT UT »

Sunsoddns pue soIsOSIP 03
SIUOWOIMbOI o) PISSNISIP ALY I/ e

*Ap293300
JOJ PIUNODIE 9 O PAIU [[IM JBY) SISED
SuI08UO JOIO JO FOqUINU € OFE I, e

“A1orerrdordde

P9SO[ISIP PUE FOJ PAIUNOIDE
97% $1800 AUE 2INSUD O} SISEI WNPUEIOUWIUW
oyp uo arepdn ue 398 03 JuSwWOTeuLw passoiford sey o529 SuoISIOId m:_omwww._ﬂw s 01 g xrpuadde ur
FRERS SSIH O3 SNURUOI IR 9N« o1} SB JUIWSEUBW I SUOISSNISIP - $1s00 ._m_Em:of._ POIEASPp 930 SAStNmS
'$$0U919[dWI0D PUE $SIUI[QLUOSEIT S — o&.u iq o oq o [eroULBUl 3Y) 0}
703 SYUITRITS [FDUEth posu Aewr QQE.B ased J Aqeg, SuroSuo FuoTIImsSI Ione e

SU3 UT POpN[OUT SINI[IE]] JUISUNUOD : ' L Jo 3su d[qrssod
pue suorstaord Aue MOTADT I 9\ St WO3 150 [PRU210d 238 23], « Aqeuoseas, e yussaxd
0] JOPISUOD M [OTYM
9[0A> Aq SISII UOTIIISSE
syunodoe oh1oads oy T,

pauuejd yiom Jayping pajajdwod 1o\ pajoaje seale Jpny anss|

(PoNURIUOD) JUSWISSISSE YSIF IIPNE SJUNOIDE VO 218pd)

wnpueiows|y yoeoiddy Hpny sjunoddy



Page 143

8 "PonIasal sybU Iy g7 )N UoJWIOYL JUBID LL0Z @

"2)EP ST} JO ODUBAPE UT JUIWANEIS dDULUIIAOL)
[enuuy 33eIp o3 Surpraoxd se [om se ‘110z A Yy TO 20u2Wwwod

01 PI[NPaYDS ST YITYM FOMP[I] IIPNE SIUNOIJE [BU FNO JO 13¥IS I} I8
s1unodde o 130ddns 01 szoded Suryzom parerap apraoid o1 9[qe 9q s109dxo
OS[E [I2UN07) Y T, FouuewW A[own © ul syuawoNNbox voIssIIqns s;UNOIdE
o1 399w 0 $309dX0 PUE I[EISWN I[EIMNS B PIYSIPLISI SEY [IOUNO7) YT,

'$$9003d TMOPISOPd
otp o 1xed se o[qereat opew oq 031 parmbos syoded Suryrom wo papraoid
20uepING SUTPNIUT ‘SIUN02d¢ QYT 3JeFp o1 Surredord 103 siuowoFuesse

9} PUE UMOPISO]D FOJ I[EIDWN S,[IDUNOT) I} PIFIPISUOI MIIADF INO)

sainpadso4d umopaso|)

(097 VSI) 92UBUIIAOL) YIA
paSreyd asop 03 350dox enuuy Ino Jo 1xed se sSurpuy Fno 150dox [ op\

JuowWISeurW 01 PANF0dor UIQ JABY SISSOUYEIM -

PUE ‘Pa1S9] U9 2ABY S[OFVOD Aoy -

{poIeN[EAd PUE PINUIPT U9 2ABY S[ORUOD Aoy -

‘{paruowmdop A[orenbope ore swosks -

BT 9INSUD O} SO ITPNE [EUINUT

99T} MOTADT [[IA M FOM ITPNE [EUFNUT JO SSOUIANDIJIO o) SUISSISSE U]

"SWRISAS [eIOUBUT O} UO JFOM
S ATPNE [EUFOIUT MOTADT [[IA 9 9IPNE SIUNOIDE [eUl Fno J0J voneredord Uy

TPUNOY) 9} UNPIA SIUIWISUEITE

9JUBUIIAOS [[EFOA0 PUE JUIWUOIAUD [OFVOD [eUINUT o3 03 L[oanrsod
SunNqIIUOD ST J[SIT 9DTATIS U3 LY} IPN[OUOD UL PUE IIPNE [EUFNUT

£q UaYEIFOPUN YFOM [[EFIAO0 I WOIJ DULINSSE UTES ULd oM ‘91enbope oq
0) POWIAIP 2FE SIUIWISUEITE O} 9FIY X\ SPFEPUEIS NPNY [UFNU] V IJID
900 Y3 ISUTESE SIUOWISULITE [[EFIAO S TPNE [EUINUT MOTAIT [[IA 3 X\
uonouNny Jipne [eudajul ayL

S[OTUTOD A30[0UYDI ], UONEWIOJU] JO MITAIT B -
pue ${SIF SUNUNOIDE YSIY PoyRuIPI
OABY 2M JOUM SEIFE UT SUIpUEIsSIOpun Jno 1od se pajuoworduwr ore
STOTITOD FIIIYA WIFUOD O} S[OFTOI JO $159) PUE SUNS) YFNOIPY[eM -
{(SYAD sprepurlg Sunsodoy [eroULUL] [EUOREUINNUT FJopUn
$1UN022¢ [eury o1 30J voneredord ur soINPId03d UMOPISO[D JO MITAIT B -
‘SwosAs [erdULUY A9 §,[IDUNOT) 91} VO JJOM SIIPNE [BUFIUT -
‘UONOUNJ JIPNY [EUIIUT 9} JO SSOUIANDIIYJO oY) -
:PIOPISUOD IM YIOMP[Ol IIpPNE
$IUNODDE [UT FNO JO 9DULAPE UT PUE YFOM I[PNE WFNUT 91 JO 13ed sy
adoog

NFOM JTPNE WIIIUT JO SINSIY

wnpuelowsdpy yoeoiddy ypny sjunoday



Page 144

6 'PonIBsal sybU Iy d T )N UoJWIOYL JUBID LL0Z @

(09 VSI) 92ULTIIA0L) TIM PaSFEYd 9503 01 130dox

[enuuy Fno Jjo 13ed se s3urpul Jno Jo Aue 130do3 [[IM PUE SIUNOIIE o) 0F
SSIF JUBDYTUSTS & 9s0d 01 959} FOPISUOD 10U OP I\ 'SLIFE 9SAY) UT JFOM JNO
JO 983n02 o1} SUENP 1UIWAOFJWIT JOJ SEIFE PIIBIANOF FOAIMOY DALY )\

'SIUDWANEIS [BIDUBUY S [IPUNOT) 9U3 TO 12edwr A[os1oape 01 A[oN1]

OFE UDTUA SISSOUNEIM [EIIIEW OU 93 2JIU) DIepP 01 UIILIFIPUN JFOM I}
WOoIJ L) POPNITOD 9\ "FedA snoraord o) UT PIsTes Uaaq dABY JBY) SINSST
o) Jo dn mo[03 & pawr0jrod OS[e 9ABY 9\ "WIISAS S[OTIVOD [EUIIIUT

91} JO MITADF [[6FA0 93 JO 17ed S VUIWUOIIAUD [OTIVOD T [6FOUI3

91 JO MITADF [9A9] Y31y & powrograd 1s1erdads swolsAs tonewroyur a0

S1041u09 ABojouyo3] uoIEWLIOUI JO MIIASY

“3UIpUEBISIOPUN PAIUIWNIOP FNO TPIM 2DULPIOIIE UT A[IF010e)snes 2erado
0] POAIISCO 9JOM S[ONTOD [BUINUT Jeak-ul pue pouue[d se paroidwod
9q 01 9[qE SeM SUNS) YSNOFPI[EA OFIYM PIIOU 9FOM SINSST JULIYTUSIS ON

“SFOMP[IY IIPNE SIUNODJE [EUL JNO JO JUIWIIUIWWOD

o3 01 Jorxd ssoo03d Suruue(d 3pne s1UN022E JNO JO 3ed SB PIFIPISUOD

oq [ SINSAT 9} pue (7 2un( ur uona[dwod 10 PANPIYISAF

U22q A[SUTPFODOE SEY YFOM SIU ], ‘SUOTIENEA JISSE JWOS JO AIIQE[IEAL

ot 031 Supe[as sep Joutw 03 anp Juswdmbs pue jue[d ‘Arodoid jo

©ITE OU) UT YFOM JNO 939[dW0d 01 9[qE U 194 10U ALY oM A[91BUMIIOJU)

‘(wnpueiowow

st 03 ¢ x1puaddyy UT Po[TeIap 93 SYSIF 9SAYT,) "SIUIWNLIS [eDTEUY o)

01 JUDWIALISSIW [BTINLW JO NS 2[qIssod A[qeuoseas, & 1uas23d 01 JOPISu0d
M OTYM 924D £q SYSIF TONIISSE S1UN0I2E didds ot Jo Lrrolewr oy

303 1107 [FdVY UT USYEIIOPUN 9F9M S[OFIVOD JO SIS PUE $159) YSNOTPY[E A\
$]04}U09 JO S1S9} pue Bunsal ybnoaypjiem

(PonunuUOd) JFOM JIPNE WIFIIUT JO SINSIY

wnpuelowsdpy yoeoiddy ypny sjunoday



Page 145

01 "Paniasal SYBU (I "d T N UOIWIOYL IUBID 1102 ©

wnpuelowsapy yoeosddy upny sjunodoy



Page 146

LL "Paniesal s|ybll |1y "d 717 YN UOIOYL Ui L L0Z ©

"110¢ [dy U1 pansst sea yarga
9119 SIUDWOTULIFY FNO UTPIIA UWIEd) 9DUEUT 91} 0 PAIELI[UNWIWOD TII]

OABY SIUDWIILIS [EDUBUI PUI-TEIA OU) JO JIPNE A[OWN PUE JUIDGJD UL
UT SN ISISSE prnom ey syuswormbar roded Surjrom pue uonewIoyur oy,
sjusawalinbai uonew.oju|

‘wre st Jo 330ddns ur YFOMPIAY IIPNE JNO JO

3SINO0D Y} INOYSNOTYI PIUTEIUTEW O [[IA SIUSWIFueIre djepdn [eWIOFUT
JO I[NPIYDS PUE 1LWI0J PI2ITE UY "9[EISWN ST} dAIIYDE 0) Wied)

oK Y A[9S0[0 JFOM 9M JEY) [ERUISSD DJOJIIIY ST 1] 'SOUIPEIP JNOA
190w 03 APUDIYJ $901n0s23 10 A[dde pue 218UIPI0-00 oM JBL INSTD
01 Juowogeurw 199(03d 9AR29339 £q pauurdiopun st ssa003d rpne oy T,

‘H

98¢¢ 8¢L LOCO +L JOTU92S JIpny w&ﬂaﬂm U9PPH
‘H

TLOT 8TL LOTO “L JoSEURI\ TUBISISSY  DYUB[OG BYSIUBE]
G|

CEI€TT ST8LO AL mSeurw PNy 9RNIL) dUIOIE))
H

95¢C 8¢L LOCO +L, J013231( PNy soysnyy [neJ

H
081¢ 8¢L LOCO ~L

roured JuowoSedur

19sso(J [ned

S[Te19p 10€1U0)

oloH

dwre N

:9PN[OUT [[IA IIPNE SIUNODJE I} JOJ Wed) 1UIWISeIud urew

o ‘1102 %.ﬁmﬂuﬁom ponsst ﬁﬁ\OHON UE[J IIpPnY INO YIIM 92UEPIOIDE U]
wea) Juswabebug

110¢ 3dag (092 VSI) 2amrwwo’) a1e30d107) 03 330doYy
VL S3UTPUTY JNO SSNOSIP 01 SUNIIW IDULIEI[))
110C

3sndny /A [ JIOM MITADT OF IISIA JOUIIB]
1102

sndny /A [ SFOM MITADT 01 IISIA FOSLUBIA]
1102 &[4 JIOMP[A1 IPNE SIUNOIIE IDUIWWO))
1102 dunf o¢ JOJIPNE O PI[IEWd SIUNO0IDE £F0INIEIG
110z dun[ SMOTADF SJOFIUOD [BUFANIUT SUIPUEISINO Jo uona[dwon)
1102 YoFeN MITADF SOTITVOD [BUIAIUT SUIPNOUT JTOMP[OYy PUD Fed4 93]
areq 1uaAY

UOWISeULW IIM

Pa933e pPuE 198 B3 ALY SIUIPEIP pue d[qerown pasodoid Summorog oy,

SaU0}Sa|IW pue sajgelswil

SONSISO "\

wnpuelowsdpy yoeoiddy ypny sjunoday



Page 147

2L "paniesal sybll |1y "4 YN UOIOYL Ui L L0Z ©

pornrod

paruswsdwr 97e SORTO0D 18y} AJ139A 03 pawrrograd o [ SYSNOTYINEA\ 1093300 UL PIPI0I3F JOU JO P3ITISIIPUN STOIIPII))
90UEI[O [OJIUO0D PIPUIIU] RN |

ssaurarduro)

sasuadxa SuperadQ

paruowodwr o€ S[ONTOD ey AJFoA 01 pawrrograd oq [[IA SYSNOTYI[EA\ ayenbope J0u yopeaidop 103 sdUEMO[Y

sYsTy

19N - Uopenyep

paruswsdwr 97e SORTOD Jey) AJ11oA 01 pawrsograd o [[IM SYSNOFPIEA\ 1093703 10U SIUWIINSBIW UONEN[EAIY
90URI[2F JOXIUO0D PIPUNU] SYSyY

SSOJD) - UOPEN[EA

1wwdmbas pue yuerd “Krodorg

JUOWIILISSTW [ETFN LW B JO POOYIIY]] 9U) 9SBIFIUT SF0IDL] YSIF JUIFOUU]

P91s91 970/ S[ONTOD JT A¥ea p[nom saynpadord oapueisqng

JudWOSEUEW Aq PIYSI[qEISI 9q P[NOYS S[OFIU0I s1993d £10A U2IJO pUE SNOFPWNN] o
:07oyM 3UIaq St Poulap SI ysir o[qrissod A[qeuoseas

O[2AD AQ SYSIF UOTIISSE SIUNOIDY (]

wnpuelowsdpy yoeoiddy ypny sjunoday



Page 148

€1 "Paniesal s|ybll |1y "d717 YN UOIOYL eI L L0Z ©

paruowardwr ore S[ORTOD JeT AJFoA 01 pawFoyrod oq [Ia SYSNOTYINE X\

90ULI[2I JONUOD PIPUNU]

paruowrdwr oxe S[ORTOD e AJFoA 01 pauwrrojrod oq [[Ia SYSNOIYIN[EX\

90URI[3J JOTIUO0D PIPUNU]

a1enbope 10U $1UN0IDE [NJIGNOP FOJ 2ITELMO[[Y
DS

19N - uonenje A

PIEA 10U SI01(9P Paproday

RN |

DUIIINII() /DUINISIXH

paruawordur ore s[onuod Jey) AJFoA 01 pawFoyrad oq [ SYSNOIINE A

90UEBI[o [OTIUO0D PIPUANU]

paruowdwr oxe S[ONTOD e AJFoA 03 pauwrrojrod oq [[Im SYSNOIYII[EX\

90ULI[dI JONUOD PIPUANU]

HANN

21enbape 10U $IUNOJDE [NJINOP FOJ IDULMO[[Y
sysTy

19N - UonenfeA

PITEA 10U SI0IGOP PIPIOINY
SYSTYY

DUIINDI () /IDUIISIXH

NUIAJY XeJ, [[OUN0))

wnpuelowsdpy yoeoiddy ypny sjunoday



Page 149

1 ‘ponsasal sybu Iy g7 )N UolWIOYL JUBID LLOZ @

paruowrdwr oxe S[ORTOD e AJFoA 01 pauwrrojrod oq [[Ia SYSNOIYIN[EX\

90URI[3J JOTIUO0D PIPUNU]

PIEA 10U SI01(9P Paproday

RN |

DUIIINII() /DUINISIXH

paruawordur ore s[onuod Jey) AJFoA 01 pawFoyrad oq [ SYSNOIINE A

90UEBI[o [OTIUO0D PIPUANU]

paruowdwr oxe S[ONTOD e AJFoA 03 pauwrrojrod oq [[Im SYSNOIYII[EX\

90ULI[dI JONUOD PIPUANU]

SONUIAIY 1UeIrn)

wuws_wuwwv.m JOU S1UNO0JJT [NJIQNOP JOJ DULMO[Y

sysTy

19N - UonenfeA

PITEA 10U SI0IGOP PIPIOINY
SYSTYY

DUIINDI () /IDUIISIXH

SONUIAJY [eIUdY VI H

wnpuelowsdpy yoeoiddy ypny sjunoday



Page 150

‘worronqnd s I FRagEus AUT JOo JNSaF T SF SUROT w03y SumnEsie 30 Sumor woszad fur 03 pauoisrooo
ssof 303 st fiq podacor aq weo Mypqrsuodsas o “pmE v sv fuo paredaad uaaq sey wonroqnd sy,

‘Apuspuadapun sumy Iaquusus 3 Aq PIssAT[ap WE 5301AFIG
‘dnyszatnae d SpHAPRFOM B JOU 3FF SLUY 32QUUALU 31} PUT [FUORELRNU] BOILROLL], JUF30) “(FUoRetmqu]
BoUmOL ], JUEED) ) P3 [FUORPLEQU] OJLROL] |, JUEI0) UTL[LA TS I3qUUSTE B ST JTT 34 () WOUIOL] ], JUeis)

“dryszanaed APppqes pagrur ® g7 O[] BOIROY ], JUTIL) SUTSLE | OJUROY ], JURID)

‘paazasa SYER Y d17 B0 BoRso ], 3D 1102 @
AN UOWIOYFPUBIH MMM

uojuJoy | Juelo) °



Page 151 Agenda ltem 12

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Corporate Committee On 20 June 2011

Report Title: Draft Annual Governance Statement 2010/11

Report authorised by: Director of Corporate Resources ZT' PW {O /é, / /f -

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973

Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk
Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Corporate Committee of the requirements of the statutory Annual
Governance Statement (AGS) and provide a draft statement relating to 2010/11 for
review and approval.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services. Part of this is completed by providing
assurance to managers and the Corporate Committee on governance and contro!
issues in key risk areas as part of the annual audit plan and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate.

3. Recommendations
3.1 That the Corporate Committee review and approve the draft AGS for 2010/11.

3.2 That the Corporate Committee note the approval timescale and processes for the
draft AGS.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Corporate Committee is responsible for approving the Council’s draft AGS as
part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, and provide information on
its sources of assurance from across the Council, reports have been provided on a
regular basis for review and consideration by the Audit Committee throughout the




Page 152

financial year, culminating in the production of the AGS.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The production and publication of an AGS is a statutory requirement as part of the
2006 Accounts and Audit Regulations. The process to gather evidence and produce
the AGS is contained within internal audit’s remit and the review and approval of the
draft AGS rests, at Member level, with the Corporate Committee.

6.2 This report provides the draft 2010/11 AGS for review. Information from internal
audit, other sources of assurance from across the Council and from individual
Directors and Assistant Chief Executives have been used to produce the draft AGS.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Acting Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this
report, and advises that in noting that the Annual Governance Statement is based
on an industry best practice pro forma, and that the Council has adopted a local
Code of Corporate Governance which is also based on industry best practice, there
are no direct legal implications arising out of this report.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Financial Officer notes that there are no direct financial implications arising
from this report that can not be met from within existing resources.

8.2 The Chief Financial Officer confirms that the presentation of the attached AGS for
approval by this Committee meets the Council’s statutory requirement under the
2006 Accounts and Audit Regulations.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with governance arrangements and their implementation are
managed across all areas of the council, which have an impact on various parts of
the community. Improvements in managing governance and controls will therefore
improve services the Council provides to all sections of the community.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 153

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this
report. Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant
Directors, Directors and Assistant Chief Executives in the production of the annual
self assessment and assurance statements. Their comments and conclusions are
included in the draft AGS which is reviewed and approved in accordance with the
agreed Corporate Committee terms of reference.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work within
internal audit to support the production of the AGS is contained and managed
within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget. Service departments
manage risks and governance arrangements as part of the routine work to achieve
their business plans and costs are contained within their revenue budgets.

13. Use of appendices
13.1 Appendix A — Draft Annual Governance Statement

14. Local Government {Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact
Anne Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1Since 2007/08, the Council has been required to produce an Annual Governance

Statement (AGS) for publication with the council’s annual accounts. The AGS
comments on the Council’s governance framework as a whole. Corporate governance
brings together an underlying set of legislative requirements, governance principles
and management processes.

15.2The preparation of an AGS is a statutory requirement of the Accounts and Audit

(amendment) (England) Regulations 2006. These regulations require local authorities to
produce an annual statement, in accordance with ‘proper practice’.

15.3 A pro forma AGS has been devised by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and

Accountancy (CIPFA) for use by local authorities. The pro forma provides the key
headings that should be included in the AGS, along with indications of what might be
covered. It does not, however, provide standard wording for the sections dealing with
the govemance framework and the review of its effectiveness. This will be dependent
on the risks identified within each individual authority.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3



Page 154

15.4The Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton, will review the AGS as part of their
annual audit and inspection processes.

16. Analysis

16.1 In order to comply with the statutory reporting deadlines, the AGS for 2010/11 has to
be approved prior to 30 June 2011. The Leader and Chief Executive will need to obtain
sufficient assurance that responsibilities have been adopted at a corporate level and
adequate processes exist and are effective before they sign the AGS.

16.2Prior to its final approval, the Council needs to demonstrate that the AGS has been
reviewed and agreed by relevant senior managers across the authority and an
appropriate member body. Chief Officers have reviewed an initial draft statement and a

copy of this is provided at Appendix A. This has been produced in line with the
guidance issued by CIPFA.

16.3It is acknowledged that the draft AGS is presented for review prior to the statutory
external audit of the accounts. Initial discussions with the Council’s external auditors,
Grant Thornton, have not identified any further issues that they would expect to be
included in the draft AGS at this stage. However, any significant governance or intermal
control issues which arise as a result of the final accounts audit can be included in the
AGS and re-submitted for officer and member consideration and approval before the
closure of the statutory audit period on 30™ September 2011.

16.4Corporate governance is an important element of the external assessment processes.
The annual accounts, including the AGS, are subject to audit by the council’s external
auditors. While the whole of the financial statements may not be qualified, an incorrect
or inaccurate AGS may be raised as a recommendation by the external auditors.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

Page 155 APPENDIX A

Annual Governance Statement 2010/11
Scope of responsibility

Haringey is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently
and effectively. Haringey also has a duty under the Local Government Act
1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in
which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of
economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this, Haringey is also responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management
of risk.

The authority has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate
Govemnance which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE
Framework ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’. Haringey
Council’s local code of corporate governance is published on the Council’s
website and a copy can be obtained from the Council’'s Monitoring Officer.
This statement explains how Haringey has complied with the code and also
meets the requirements of regulation 4{2) of the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2003 as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment)
(England) Regulations 2006 in relation to the publication of a statement on
internal control.

The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and
culture and values, by which the authority is directed and controlled and its
activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the
community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its
strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the
delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can provide a reasonable
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise risks to the achievement
of Haringey’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage
them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Haringey for the year ended
31% March 2011 and up to the date of the approval of the annual report and
accounts.



3.1

b)

Page 156 APPENDIX A

The governance framework

The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the authority’s
governance arrangements are:

Identifying and communicating the authority’s vision of its purpose and
intended outcomes for citizens and service users

Haringey has well established and documented aims and objectives in order
to improve the quality of life for people living and working within the borough
and ensure that high quality services are delivered efficiently and effectively.
The Council, together with its partners, has developed the Sustainable
Community Strategy 2007-2016 which sets out a joint vision and objectives.
The Sustainable Community Strategy was developed after extensive
consultation with residents and stakeholders through the ‘Have your say
Haringey - shape the future’ campaign. The Community Strategy is published
and is also available on the council's website and a summary of the strategy
has been translated into ten languages.

The Council Plan is linked to the Community Strategy and sets out the
priorities of the Council and how these will be achieved. The Council Plan for
2011-2012 is published on the Council’'s website and is monitored and
reported using the corporate performance framework. The Council Plan is
updated on an annual basis and the Council's objectives are informed by
what residents and service users say and their views are captured in our
annual residents’ survey.

Reviewing the authority’s vision and its implications for the authority's
governance arrangements

During 2010/11 the Council has transformed its approach to delivering
services, adapting them to meet the changing needs of residents, targeted to
those who need them most. [n tackling the dramatic budget reductions the
Council has responded to the challenge by adopting the vision ‘one borough
one future: reducing inequalities — working for a better society’. The vision is
to be delivered by five outcomes: thriving, healthier, safer, sustainable,
empowered and is underpinned by a set of principles (Rethinking Haringey
January 2011). All the Council’s business and financial planning documents
reflect its vision and objectives. Delivery of these is through an integrated
annual business and financial process, which are subject to full consultation
and review by the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee, formal
adoption by the Cabinet and approval by the Council.

Progress against the business plans is reviewed mid-year as part of the
Council’s formal pre-business plan review process. The Council’'s Medium
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2010-2013 sets out the three year budget for
the Council and contains plans for achieving the required budget reductions
resulting from the funding shortfall in this year's financial settlement for



d)

Page 157 APPENDIX A

Haringey. The MTFS is reviewed and updated on an annual basis to provide
a rolling three year planning period.

Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are
delivered in accordance with the authority’s objectives and for ensuring
that they represent the best use of resources

In facing up to the current financial challenges Haringey Council continues to
strive for the improved well-being of local people. To achieve this we are
targeting the use of resources and exploring ways of delivering better
services for less money within a framework of delivering value for money and
efficiency across all services. The Council is transforming service delivery
and making changes quickly, whilst ensuring that its resources achieve the
best outcomes. A new outcomes based performance management
framework has been agreed (February 2011) which sets out how the Council
will move from a top down approach, focusing on inputs and outputs, to an
outcomes focused performance, based on the vision for the Council and the
delivery of priorities. Outcome indicators will show when the Council's
policies and activities are having the expected impact. Haringey has a
comprehensive business planning system, and a robust performance
management system. Performance measurement is undertaken at various
levels and is subject to review both internally by managers and members and
independently by the Council’s external auditors.

The Cabinet receive regular reports highlighting key financial and
performance management information and allows them to effectively monitor
compliance with all key policies and Council objectives. Cabinet agendas,
reports and minutes are available on the Council’'s website. An independent
survey of a representative sample of residents and service users is
completed on an annual basis and reported to senior officers and members
to ensure appropriate action can be taken in specific areas.

Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive,
non-executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation
arrangements and protocols for effective communication.

The Council’s Constitution sets out the policy and decision making
framework of the authority and is held in hard copy and on the council's
intranet and external website. The roles and responsibilities of the whole
Council, the Cabinet, other committees, all councillors including Cabinet
Members, and officers is clearly documented, and it also contains protocols
governing the relationships between members and officers and job
descriptions of the Council’s Statutory Officers (Head of Paid Service,
Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer). The roles and functions of all
councillors in relation to governance issues are clearly documented, including
their responsibilities for ward duties and the governance of the Council.

The Constitution is reviewed on an ongoing basis and updated to reflect
functional and organisational changes to the Council. The Council’s scheme



Page 158 APPENDIX A

of delegation is contained within the Constitution and is reviewed and
communicated on a regular basis to all appropriate officers and members.
The Council at its meeting on 23 May 2011 approved significant changes to
the Constitution following an intensive Governance Review carried out by an
external body on behalf of the Council. A delivery group of Members was set
up to consider constitutional changes required following this review. The
Constitutional Review Working Group was also consulted on these proposed
changes. The number of Committees was rationalised and the existing nine
Non-Executive Committees were reduced to five. In general terms the
previous General Purposes Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit
Committee and Pensions Committee are combined into a single Corporate
Committee. The Licensing and Planning Committees, together with some
“non-executive” licensing functions taken from the General Purposes
Committee and Miscellaneous Functions Sub-Committee, are combined into
a single Regulatory Committee. The new Regulatory Committee is to operate
as both the statutory Licensing Committee and as a general non-statutory
Regulatory Committee. Two Licensing sub-committees and a Planning sub-
committee have been established under the Regulatory Committee. Other
changes included the removal of Area Assemblies and its replacement with
Area Committees which have some decision making powers. Informal Area
Forums will come at the start of each Area Committee. The Council’s website
also has an ‘Our Standards’ page which sets out the expectations and
standards required of both officers and members.

Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining
the standards of behaviour for members and staff

Haringey has well established codes of conduct for officers and members,
which are regularly reviewed and subject to approval by members. The
Council requires all members to formally acknowledge receipt of their code
of conduct on an annual basis. Members are provided with regular briefings
on the code of conduct as part of the established induction and training
programme. The Council’'s Member Learning and Development Strategy also
incorporates specific sections relating to corporate governance issues.

The Council’s officer code of conduct has been reviewed and updated on a
regular basis and is published on the Council’s intranet site. All new
members of staff receive training, including the code of conduct, as part of
their induction processes. Regular articles are included in corporate and staff
newsletters outlining expected standards of behaviour in specific areas.

Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions,
a scheme of delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which
clearly define how decisions are taken and the processes and controls
required to manage risks

The Constitution Working Group is an established member group which
meets on a regular basis to monitor, review and update the Council’'s
Constitution and associated governance arrangements, based on a rolling
work programme and taking into account any new legislative and statutory



g)

h)

Page 159 APPENDIX A

requirements. The Council’s Statutory Officers meet on a regular basis and
review key areas of govemance. The Council’s corporate risk management
steering group meet on a quarterly basis, chaired by a member of the Chief
Executive’s Management Board, and is comprised of senior officer
representatives from. each directorate. In addition to ensuring that the
Council complies with the risk management strategy, the steering group
takes responsibility for managing the Council’s response to specific incidents
and events.

Haringey has a corporate Risk Management Strategy which is reviewed and
updated on an annual basis and, through a variety of processes and
procedures, ensures that risk management is embedded across the
organisation and its activities, including being an integral part of the business
planning process. The Council has a corporate risk register and all
departments and business units have risk registers in place. The corporate
risk register is reviewed on a regular basis by the Chief Executive’s
Management Board and the Audit Commitiee and updated as a result of
feedback received. Regular reports are provided to both the Chief
Executive’s Management Board and the Audit Committee detailing progress
in embedding risk management throughout the Council.

Ensuring the authority’s financial management arrangements conform
with the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on The Role
of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010)

In 2009/10, CIPFA produced a statement on the role of the Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) in local government. The Council’'s CFO is a member of the
Chief Executive’s Management Board, as required by the CIPFA statement,
and fulfils all the requirements of the statement in ensuring that appropriate
financial, management, reporting, monitoring and governance arrangement
are in place.

Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in
CIPFA’s ‘Audit Committees — Practical Guidance for Local Authorities’

Using CIPFA and the Institute of Public Finance guidance, the Council’s Audit
Committee has been assessed as meeting all good practice requirements.
The Audit Committee received a report on the outcome of the assessment
undertaken in 2010/11. The Audit Committee receives reports from internal
and extemal audit and reviews risk management and governance
arrangements. These functions are now with the newly formed Corporate
Committee.

Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies
and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful

The Council’s Constitution contains the Financial and Contract Procedure
Rules, which specify the governance framework for all its operational
functions. Officer Employment Rules and a Monitoring Officer Protocol are



i

Page 160 APPENDIX A

also contained within the Constitution. The Constitution aiso includes the
roles of key compliance officers, including the Council’s Monitoring Officer
and Section 151 Officer, as well as specific functional responsibilities for the
Cabinet, committees, other bodies and officers. Regular internal and external
audit reviews check compliance with Financial and Contract Procedure Rules
across the Council.

Financial management is based on a framework of regular management
information and review to inform managers and members of the current
budget position. Key elements of the financial management system include
integrated budgeting and medium term financial planning systems, regular
budget monitoring reports to the Cabinet, systematic review of all key
financial control processes, monitoring of key financial and other targets, and
formal project management processes.

During 2010/11, the Court of Appeal handed down a judgement against the
Council in respect of the Wards Corner re-development site. The Council’s
consultation processes were adjudged not to have complied with relevant
equality regulations. Following this decision, the Council improved its
monitoring arrangements in relation to equality legislation, including the new
Equality Act 2010, in order to ensure full compliance with all relevant laws
and regulations.

Whistle-blowing and for receiving and investigating complaints from the
public

Haringey has a well-established and publicised anti-fraud and corruption
policy and strategy, including a fraud response plan and Whistle-blowing
policy which complies with relevant legislation and is monitored and
managed by Internal Audit. The Council also has a free-phone telephone
number and email reporting facilities which are contained on the external
website. These are monitored and managed by Internal Audit and all referrals
are subject to review and investigation where sufficient details are provided.
The Audit Committee receives quarterly reports on the use and outcomes of
the confidential reporting and Whistle-blowing facilities. Fraud and corruption
policies and procedures are contained within the Employee Handbook, the
council’s intranet and website and regular staff newsletter items are
published which explain how and where to report suspected fraud.

The Council also has a corporate complaints policy, and agreed procedures,
which are subject to regular review and updates. The Council’s policy and
procedures are compliant with all relevant statutory requirements and are
publicised on the Council’s external website and at various public sites
across the borough. Reports are provided to members on a regular basis,
summarising the numbers and types of complaints, together with the
outcome and resolution of these.



k)

1)

Page 161 APPENDIX A

Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in
relation to their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training

Haringey Council has implemented a Member Learning and Development
Strategy. The Council was the first in London to achieve a Member
Development Charter which recognises the work carried out by the Council
to provide members with the suppont, skills and training needed to develop
and manage councii services and budgets effectively.

All permanent staff within the Council receive an annual performance review
and appraisal, which is linked to the Council’s management standards and
competency framework, and results in individual work targets and
development plans. Every year, the Council provides a programme of
learning events for managers and staff based on the council’s vision and
values, aims and objectives, and key service delivery requirements, as well as
a series of senior manager seminars,

Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and
encouraging open consultation.

The Council's publishes a resident’'s magazine, Haringey People, ten times
per year containing information on council activities. Hard copies are
delivered to all residential addresses and the magazine is also available via
the Council’s intranet and external website. Once a year this includes a
summarised annual report and set of financial statements.

The Council has carried out a Governance Review to ensure that its
arrangements are as efficient as possible and to allow decisions to be made
in an effective and transparent way. The Neighbourhood Management
service and the Area Assembly meetings have ceased and are being
replaced by local Area Committees and Forums. These will have specific
responsibilities and consultative powers and will be a vital part of local
democratic engagement under the new arrangements.

The Council joined with local public agencies, community groups and
businesses to create the Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP) in April 2002.
The shared vision for the future of Haringey and the HSP priorities are set out
in the Sustainable Community Strategy which is published and available on
the Council’s website. All agendas and minutes from HSP Board and Theme
Board mestings are also publicly available and are accessible via the
Council’s website.

Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships
and other group working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report
on the governance of partnerships, and reflecting these in the authority’s
overall governance arrangements.

The Council has implemented a governance framework for its significant
partnerships, based on the Audit Commission’s definition, in 2009/10 which



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Page 162 APPENDIX A

specifies the minimum governance requirements each partnership must have
and how the Council monitors and reviews its involvement with each
partnership.

The Council has been working with Alexandra Palace and Park (APP) to
ensure that corporate governance arrangements and internal controls were
adequate and this was continued during 2010/11. APP’s independently
appointed internal auditors confirmed the implementation of the Council’s
internal audit recommendations as part of their annual audit plan in 2010/11
and this was reported to the Audit Committee.

Review of effectiveness

Haringey has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the
effectiveness of its governance framework, including the system of internal
control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the statements of
assurance and annual governance self assessments by each director and
assistant chief executive, who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment; the Head of Audit and Risk
Management’s annual report, and also by comments made by the Council’s
external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

The Audit Committee approves the annual intemal audit plan, receives
guarterly reports on internal audit work completed, reviews the corporate risk
management strategy and risk register and, during 2010/11, has aiso
reviewed reports from external assessments and actions taken by
management to address any recommendations made. The Chair of the Audit
Committee also reports annually to full Council on the activity of the
Committee during the year. The Audit Committee functions are now
subsumed into the newly formed Corporate Committee.

Children's safeguarding services in Haringey have received positive feedback
from inspectors, as part of a comprehensive assessment of all services
provided for local children by the Council. The annual assessment of
Haringey’s children's services by OFSTED highlighted 'good progress' in
child protection following both unannounced and announced inspections in
the last six months. Overall, inspectors found the majority of services for
children 'good or better'. OFSTED judged services for children overall to be
adequate and the capacity for improvement in both safeguarding and looked
after children's services to be good.

The Council’s Risk Management Strategy, which draws together the various
elements of risk management, including risk registers, health and safety,
business continuity and emergency planning and project management, is
reviewed on an annual basis. The key elements of the strategy are monitored
by the Audit Committee on the basis of reports received; and by officers as
part of the Risk and Emergency Planning Steering Group’s terms of
reference.



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Page 163 APPENDIX A

Directors have submitted a statement of assurance covering 2010/11 which
is informed by work carried out by departmental managers, intemal audit,
external assessments and risk management processes. The statements
provide assurance that any significant control issues that have been brought
to their attention have been dealt with appropriately. Key governance issues
which have been identified and which remain outstanding have been
incorporated into the action plan attached to this statement.

The Cabinet undertakes regular monthly reviews of financial and service
performance, based on a range of key performance indicators and financial
and budget management information. The Leader and Cabinet also review
the delegated decisions and significant actions undertaken by council
officers, or urgent actions taken in consultation with Cabinet members, to
ensure they comply with the scheme of delegation. Minutes of sub-bodies
are also reviewed by Cabinet, including procurement decisions and actions.
During 2010/11, the Council has responded to the shortfall in central
government’s financial settlement by starting to re-shape its services through
the ‘Re-thinking Haringey’ programme and will continue to implement these
proposals during 2011/12. This is a challenging process in order to achieve a
balanced budget whilst continuing to deliver key services to the borough's
residents. The Council will need to ensure that it’s financial and information
management processes are robust and effective in order to mitigate the
associated risks with reduced levels of funding and staff.

The Council's Standards Committee is chaired by an independent person
and receives reports from the Monitoring Officer on the referrals received
from the Standards Board for England. In addition, complaints alleging
breaches of the Members' Code of Conduct are made directly to the
Assessment Sub Committee of the Council's Standards Committee. There
are also Review Sub Committees to reconsider rejected complaints and
Hearing Sub Committees to undertake formal hearings involving the relevant
parties in order to determine complaints locally. The Council’'s new
governance arrangements will be operational from 2011/12.

The CIPFA statement on the role of the Chief Financial Officer has been
incorporated into the Council's overall governance arrangements. During
2010/11, the CFO fulfilled all the requirements set out within the CIPFA
statement. No gaps in compliance were identified.

The Head of Audit and Risk Management provided an Annual Audit Report
and opinion for 2010/11, which concluded that in most areas across the
Council there are sound intemal financial control systems and corporate
governance arrangements in place and that risk management arrangements
are satisfactory and compliant with best practice. The Council’s key financial
systems received a ‘substantial’ assurance rating in 2010/11. Four audits, out
of a total of 50 system reviews completed during 2010/11, received a
‘limited’ assurance rating and the follow up programme concluded that all
high priority recommendations had been appropriately addressed, or were in
the process of being implemented.



410

Page 164 APPENDIX A

The Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive have been advised of the
implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance
framework by the Audit Committee, and a plan to implement enhancements
and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

5. Significant governance issues

3.1 In 2009/10, a number of actions were reported in the AGS to deal with
outstanding governance issues. Some of these have been incorporated into
the body of the AGS as actions have been completed. The summary below
highlights what the Council has done to address those issues for which work
has been ongoing during 2010/11:

» Implementation of the Safeguarding (previously the Joint Area Review)
action plan continued throughout 2010/11, with reports to officers and
members detailing progress against agreed timescales; and

e The Housing Improvement Board has been monitoring implementation of
the recommendations made by the Audit Commission review.

5.2 The Council proposes over the coming year to take steps to further improve
governance arrangements in key areas and these are set out in the action
plan below. The action plan will be monitored during the year to ensure all
issues are appropriately addressed.

Issue Action Responsibility | Due date
Defining and Ensure that the new Council govemance
documenting the |arrangements are fully implemented and
roles and embedded during 2011/12, with
responsibilities of |appropriate review mechanisms in place to
the executive, ensure that risks and relevant regulations
non-executive, are appropriately managed and addressed.
scrutiny and

officer functions

Financial and Ensure that the Council’s processes to
information ensure robust financial and information
management management are embedded across all
arrangements departments.

Councillor Claire Kober Kevin Crompton
Leader of the Council Chief Executive




Page 165 Agenda ltem 13

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [N o _]

Corporate Committee On 20 June 2011

Report Title: Annual Audit Report and Assurance Statement 2010/11

Report authorised by: Director of Corporate Resources

REZWIS oo |

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s} affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform Members of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the system of
internal control and risk management operating throughout 2010/11 and present a
summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion, including reliance
placed on work by other bodies.

1.2 This report also fulfils the requirements of the Committee’s terms of reference.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Sirategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing key services and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate. Follow up work is undertaken
to ensure that managers implement agreed recommendations and improvements.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Corporate Committee notes the content of the annual audit report and
assurance statement for 2010/11.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)
4.1 The Corporate Committee is responsible for receiving the annual internal audit report




Page 166

as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, the Head of Audit and
Risk Management’s annual report and assurance statement is provided for review by
the Corporate Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

8.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the adequacy
and effectiveness of intermal control throughout the authority. This report looks at the
sources of assurance and results of internal audit work completed during 2010/11.

6.2 The information has been complied from information held within Audit & Risk
Management and from records held by business units across the Council.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Acting Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this
report, and advises that in view of the comments of both the Head of Audit and Risk
Management and the Chief Financial Officer in relation to the quality of the control
systems in place, coupled with it's adherence to industry best practice, there are no
direct legal implications arising out of this report.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 The Chief Financial Officer is happy that the approach to internal audit during
2010/11 clearly meets the requirements of the 2006 CIPFA Code of Practice for
Internal Audit and concurs that from the information compiled and set out in the
report the internal audit service demonstrates that it makes a significant contribution
to ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control throughout the
authority.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all areas of
the council, which have an impact on various parts of the community.
Improvements in managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the
Council provides to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this
report. Consultation has been undertaken with respective service managers,

Page 2 of 13



Page 167

Assistant Directors, Directors and the Assistant Chief Executive in the production of
internal audit reports which form part of the sources of assurance for this report.

12. Service Financial Comments
12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work

completed by Deloitte and Touche in 2010/11 is part of the five year contract which
was awarded following a competitive tendering exercise in compliance with EU
regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of this contract, along with all other costs
to provide an internal audit service, are contained and managed within the Audit
and Risk Management revenue budget.

13. Use of appendices

13.1

Appendix A - Internal audit summary of work 2010/11

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1 List of background documents. The following background documents were used in
production of this report:

Accounts and Audit (amendment) {(England) Regulations 2006.
CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit 2006

CIPFA guidance on the Annual Governance Statement
Internal audit files and monitoring reports

15. Background

15.1 One of the terms of reference for the Corporate Committee is ‘to consider the Head
of Audit and Risk Management’s annual report and a summary of Intemal Audit
activity (actual and proposed) and the level of assurance it can provide about the
Council’s corporate governance arrangements.’

15.2 In addition, the 2006 CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit sets out annual
reporting requirements for the Head of Audit and Risk Management. In order to satisfy
the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice, the Head of Audit and Risk
Management issues a formal annual report which:

Includes an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s internal control environment;

Discloses any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reasons for the
qualification;

Presents a summary of the audit work underiaken to formulate the opinion,
including reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies;

Draws attention to any issues that the Head of Audit and Risk Management
considers particularly relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance
Statement (AGS); and

Compares the work actually undertaken with the work that was planned and
summarises the performance of the Interal Audit function against its locally set
performance targets.

Page 3 of 13



Page 168

15.3The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather
than to eliminate risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of Haringey Council’s policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact
should they be realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

15.4The CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit states that the internal control
environment comprises three key areas: internal control; corporate governance; and
risk management processes. The opinion on the effectiveness of the intemal control
environment is based on an assessment of these key areas.

15.5The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006, which came into
effect on 1% April 2006, require that ‘the relevant body shall conduct a review at jeast
once in a year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and shall include a
statement on internal control, prepared in accordance with proper practices, with any
statement of accounts it is obliged to publish.’

15.6As part of the 2006 Regulations, the Council is required to review, at least annually,
the effectiveness of its system of internal control. The review of effectiveness of the
system of interal control is informed by the work of intemal audit and the council’s
senior managers who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
internal control environment. The review of effectiveness is also informed by
comments made by the Council’'s external auditors in their annual letter and other
review agencies and inspectorates in their reports.

16. Basis of assurance

16.1The Head of Audit and Risk Management's opinion is derived from work completed
during 2010/11 as part of the agreed annual audit plan, and any investigations into
breaches of financial irregularity. Where relevant, any assessment of the council's
corporate govemance arrangements and risk management processes are also taken
into account.

16.2The internal audit plan for 2010/11was developed to provide management with
independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems of internal
control. The plan was designed to ensure adequate coverage over the year of the
Council’s accounting and operational systems.

16.3Internal audit work has been conducted in accordance with mandatory standards and
good practice contained within the CIPFA Code of Practice for Intermnal Audit and
additionally from internal audit’s own quality assurance systems.

16.4The opinion is limited to the work carried out by Internal Audit based on the annual
internal audit plan. Wherever possible, the work of other assurance providers,
including external audit, has been taken into account.

17. Overall Audit Opinion 2010/11

17.1The Internal Audit work, using a risk based approach, included reviews of those
systems, projects, and establishments sufficient to discharge the Chief Financial

Page 4 of 13



Page 169

Officer’'s responsibilities under s151 of the Local Government Act 1972; the 2006
CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit and the 2006 Accounts and Audit
{Amendment) {England) Regulations. The opinion is based on the work undertaken.
Work was planned and performed in order to obtain the information necessary to

provide sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance of the internal control
systems tested.

17.2 Based upon the work of internal Audit and other sources of assurance outlined in this
report, the Head of Audit and Risk Management can provide an opinion that the
system of internal control in operation during the year to 31 March 2011 accords with
proper practice and is fundamentally sound. The opinion relates only to the systems
and areas reviewed during the year and any details of significant control issues
identified are included in the report.

18. Assurance from the work of Internal Audit

18.1During 2010/11, Internal Audit undertook 69 planned system reviews and 14 school
and visits, using a risk based approach. The outcome of the reviews indicated that
generally the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control is
satisfactory. Four of the system reviews received a ‘limited’ assurance rating, with the
remaining reviews receiving ‘substantial’ or ‘full’ assurance ratings. All key financial
systems were assessed as having substantial or full assurance ratings.

18.2Internal Audit were satisfied with management responses in those areas which had
received a ‘limited’ assurance rating. In addition, detailed monitoring was undertaken
during 2010/11 on all Priority 1 recommendations to ensure that appropriate action
was undertaken to address the risks identified during the course of the original audit.
As at the 31 March 2011, 100% of all Priority 1 recommendations where the due date
had been reached had been fully addressed. Intemal Audit and the Audit Committee
were satisfied with the responses from management on this area of follow up work.

18.3 A detailed report on the work of Internal Audit in 2010/11 is attached at Appendix A
to this report.

19. Assurance on Corporate Governance

19.1The Council’s corporate governance arrangements provide direction and control of its
functions, and how the Council relates to the local community. These arrangements
are underpinned by the Council’s Local Code of Gorporate Governance which has
been developed to comply with the CIPFA/SOLACE recommended framework and
guidance on corporate govemance. The Council's Local Code of Corporate
Governance, which codifies the Council’s governance arrangements, was approved
by Full Council in July 2008. The arrangements which support the Local Code of

Corporate Governance have been in place and operating effectively for a number of
years.

19.2Corporate controls are in place to help ensure that policy setting and decision making
is carried out in accordance with the Council’'s Constitution and alsc that the actions

of Members and officers comply with established policies, procedures, relevant laws
and regulations.

Page 5 of 13



Page 170

19.3The annual assurance report should draw attention to any issues that the Head of
Audit and Risk Management considers particularly relevant to the preparation of the
council’'s Annual Governance Statement (AGS). CIPFA guidance dictates the form and
basic content of the AGS and its approval and publication with the authority’s
statement of accounts represents the end process of the annual review of internal
control.

19.4 As part of the process to compile the AGS, all Directors and the Assistant Chief
Executive were required to provide an assessment of the governance arrangements
operating within their area of responsibility. The assessments covered the key areas of
corporate governance including:

Risk Management;

Performance Management

Financial Management;

Corporate Governance;

Procurement and contract management;

Information Management;

Project Management;

Partnerships;

Business Continuity Plans; and

Internal audit recommendations.

19.6 These self assessment statements underpin the AGS. The completed assessments
identified that all significant governance issues which had been brought to the
attention of Directors and the Assistant Chief Executive had been appropriately dealt
with, or had been included in the AGS.

19.7 Corporate governance is effective in most areas across the Council. The main areas
for action were included within the 2010/11 AGS and relate to ensuring that:

e the new Council governance arrangements are fully implemented and embedded
during 2011/12, with appropriate review mechanisms in place to ensure that risks
and relevant regulations are appropriately managed and addressed; and

e the Council’s processes to ensure robust financial and information management
are embedded across all departments.

20. Assurance on Risk Management Activities

20.1During 2010/11, the Council’s corporate risk management strategy was reviewed and
updated to reflect the progress made to date in embedding risk management. The
Council’'s risk management strategy draws together all key areas into a cohesive
framework to ensure that the Council manages its risks in the most appropriate way.
The Council’s Risk and Emergency Planning Steering Group reviews the Council’'s
implementation of the risk management strategy and in 2010/11 responded effectively
to specific issues including the severe winter weather.

20.2 Regular reports to the Chief Executive’s Management Board and the Audit Committee
during 2010/11 by Intemal Audit provided updates on the management of key
business risks. Risk registers and the processes to keep these updated are fully
embedded at business unit, departmental and corporate levels, using the Covalent
electronic system to manage, review and report risk registers on a quarterly basis. The

Page 6 of 13



Page 171

Haringey Strategic Parinership risk registers are also managed and reported to the
relevant Thematic Boards using the electronic Covalent system.

20.3 Internal Audit reviewed six business unit risk registers as part of the agreed 2010/11

annual audit plan and tested the key controls which management had stated were in
place to ensure the conirols were in place and effective in managing the identified
risks. Only one risk register received a ‘limited’ assurance rating and an agreed action
plan was put in place to address the risks identified.

20.4 Risk management is contained within all the key business and project management

21.

processes of the Council. It is a specific requirement of all business plans that all key
risks are identified, together with the management controls in place. This ensures that
any resource implications are considered at the business planning stage. The
Council’s project management framework has risk identification and management as
one of its core objectives, therefore allowing any key risks to the success of the
project to be appropriately managed from the beginning of the project.

Assurance from External Inspections

21.1 The CIPFA guidance states that in practice councils are likely to take assurance from

the work of Internal Audit when discharging their responsibility for maintaining and
reviewing the system of internal control and that extemal audit and other review
agencies and inspectorates are also potential sources of assurance. In formulating the
overall opinion on intemal control, the Head of Audit and Risk Management took into
account the work undertaken by external inspectors.

21.2 The Annual Audit and Inspection letter issued by the Council’s external auditors, Grant

Thornton, for the year 2009/10 reporied that the Council had received an unqualified
opinion on its accounts which gave a true and fair view of the Council’s affairs as at 31
March 2010. Grant Thomton also issued their annual Value for Money conclusion
which confirmed that the Council made proper arrangements to secure economy
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2010.

21.3 While Grant Thomton highlighted that the Council had improved its management

arrangements in a number of areas, including data quality, commissioning and

procurement and asset management, they also identified four key areas where the

Council needed to ensure action was taken, namely that:

+ the impact of the changes to local government funding are taken into account in
all future plans;

¢ the Medium Term Financial Strategy is reviewed in the light of the Spending
Review and is subject to robust stress testing and sensitivity analysis;

¢ it continues to emphasise the importance of data quality, including housing benefit
information; and

o there is a continued focus on the production of the first IFRS compliant accounts
in 2010/11.

21.4 During 2010/11, the Audit Committee also reviewed progress against agreed the

22.

action plans for the Housing allocations, lettings and homelessness service re-
inspection.

Assurance on the Effectiveness of Internal Audit

Page 7 of 13



Page 172

22.1 In May 2011, a review of the effectiveness of the Council’s internal audit arrangements
in place during 2010/11 was completed by the London Borough of Camden. The
review used the CIPFA Code of Practice, and the council’s compliance with the
standards required of it, as its basis. The review concluded that Haringey had
complied with the Code of Practice and that Internal Audit arrangements were
effective.

23. AQualifications to the Head of Audit Opinion

23.1 Internal Audit has unrestricted access to all officers, information, buildings and
systems across the Council, a right which is explicit within the Council’s Constitution,
and has received appropriate co-operation from officers and members.

Page 8 0f 13



Page 173

Appendix A

Annual Report on Internal Audit Activity 2010/11

1. Summary of Internal Audit work

1.1Internal Audit services, excluding the investigation of allegations of fraud and corruption,
are provided by Deloitte & Touche. A full report is issued for every planned project in the
annual audit plan. The report provides an overall audit opinion according to the
seriousness of the findings. in addition, each recommendation is given a priority rating,
to assist service management in prioritsing their work to address agreed
recommendations. The overall classification given was that applying at the completion
of the audit work. In each case, recommendations are agreed with the client for the
work and an action plan completed, showing responsible officer and timescales to
address the weaknesses identified.

1.2 The recommendations made should be sufficient to address all the control weaknesses
identified. As long as the recommendations have been implemented as agreed in the
action plan, the risks presented should be addressed, and the residual risk would fall. A
definition of the overall classification is shown in Table 1 below:

Table 1

Assurance Level | Definition

Full Assurance There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the
system objectives.

Substantial There is a basically sound system, but there are weaknesses

Assurance which put some of the system objectives at risk.

Limited Assurance | Weaknesses in the system of controls are such as to put the
system objectives at risk.

No Assurance Control is generally weak leaving the system open to
significant error or abuse.

1.3For 2010/11 a total of 76 projects, including schools and social services establishment
visits, formed the annual audit plan which was approved by the Audit Committee.
Internal audit also completed seven assessments against the School Financial
Management Standard (FMSiS) prior to its abolition in November 2010. Resources to
assist departments with the development and implementation of corporate anti-fraud,
risk management and project management arrangements were also delivered, although
no reports are issued in these areas. Resources to complete follow up work are also
included in the annual audit plan. The results of the follow up reviews were reported
separately to the Audit Committee, although no individual reports are issued.

1.4 In addition, requests for additional audit work were made during 2010/11 and a further
seven projects were completed. Including follow up work completed and resources to
support work which did not result in a formal report, Deloitte delivered 94.6% (1088
days) of the planned audit programme (1150 days) by 31 March 2011, which is broadly

Page 9 of 13



Page 174

in accordance with the contract specification and the agreed local performance
indicators which specify a 95% compilstion rate.

1.5 One project (5 days) was deferred until 2011/12 by agreement with service
management and one project (10 days) was cancelled following discussions with service
management as external audit were also planning to undertake work in the same area. A
summary of the outputs of the remaining project work completed by 31 March 2011
against the planned work is shown at Table 2 below. Of the 83 projects, 79 had been
completed to draft or final report stage by 31 March. Three projects were in progress as
at 31 March and no draft reports had been issued for these.

Table 2 — Planned project work vs. actual completion rates

Number of Number of | Number of
projects final reports draft reports
. planned issued | issued [ %
| Key systems 12 12 0 | 100%
Other systems 43 38 2 | 93%
Schools 21 20 1 95%
Additional 7 6 0 86%
| projects . I
Total 83 76 3 95% 3§

1.6Intemal Audit performs reviews of the Council’s key systems on an annual basis. This is
completed in agreement with Grant Thomton, the council’s external auditors as part of
the managed audit approach to ensure that audit resources are used effectively and
duplication of work between internal and external audit is minimised.

1.7 The assurance levels provided for the key systems work is shown in Table 3 below. For
comparison purposes, the assurance levels for 2008/09 and 2009/10 are also included.

Table 3 -~ key systems assurance ratings

Assurance level 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
Full 2 1 2
Substantial 10 11 10
Limited 0 0 0

Nil 0 0 0
Total 12 12 12

1.8All audit work is followed up to ensure recommendations have been implemented. The
results of the follow up programme are reported separately. The timing and nature of
each follow up depends on the risk assessment of the area at the end of the original
audit project.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 10




Page 175

1.9There are no national or Best Value performance indicators for internal audit work.
However, three local performance indicators are reported to the Audit Committee on a
quarterly basis. These are in line with current best practice targets across the public
sector. Performance of the whole service for 2010/11 is recorded in Table 4 below.

1.10Internal Audit issues questionnaires on the completion of all key systems and general
systems work in order to obtain feedback from the identified client. The average
satisfaction rating from the customer evaluation questionnaires received during 2010/11
was 3.75, on a scale where 1 is low and 5 is high.

Table 4 - Local performance measures

Performance indicator Actual Target
Audit work delivered against the
planned programme of 1150 days 94.6% 95%
(Deloitte & Touche}
Time taken to complete investigations
by in-house staff (2010/11 referrals) 8 weeks 8 weeks
Priority 1 recommendations (2008/09
projects) implemented at follow up 100% 95%
User satisfaction (1 low, to 5 high) 3.75 3.75

1.11 This level of audit coverage is satisfactory and complies with the 2006 CIPFA Code of
Practice for Internal Audit.

2. In-house team - fraud and irregularities

2.1in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Internal Audit investigates all cases that

fall outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team and the Council’s
Information Security Policy.

2.2During 2010/11, a total of 20 investigations were undertaken involving Council
employees. The allegations covered a number of issues including fraudulent overtime
claims, working whilst off sick and council tax fraud. Table 5 below summarises the
investigations completed by department. For comparison purposes, figures for 2008/09
and 2009/10 are included. The table below excludes investigations completed for

Homes for Haringey. The 20 cases investigated were all concluded within the 2010/11
financial year.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 11



Page 176

Table 5 - Investigations by department

Investigations | Investigations | Investigations |

Department 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
Chief Executive — P&OD 0 2 1
Chief Executive - PPP&C 1 1 0
Corporate Resources 4 4 5
Children and Young
People’s Service ) 7 | 6 7
Adults, Culture and '
Community Services 6 6 4
Urban Environment 7 5 3
Total 25 24 20

2.3The Council’s anti-fraud and corruption arrangements are robust, with a clear strategy

and detailed fraud response plan in place. Regular reminders regarding expected
standards of behaviour and how to report suspected fraud are provided via staff and
other newsletters and the council’s intranet and website. All referrals are investigated
and the investigation team is adequately resourced and trained. Investigations are
managed according to all relevant statutory requirements, including Data Protection,
Regulation of Investigatory Powers and Police and Criminal Evidence Acts, which are
supported by agreed internal procedure manuals.

2.4Operational arrangements are supported by Codes of Conduct, the Employees

3.

Disciplinary Code and the Whistle-blowing Policy, which was reviewed and updated in
2008/09. All of these are available via the Council’s intranet and website. In addition, the
Council has a dedicated email address and telephone number, which is advertised on
the Council website. Members of the public can report instances of suspected fraud or
irregularity, which can be done anonymously if required. Regular articles are included in
the Council’s staff and corporate newsletters reminding everyone of the Council’s

expected standards of behaviour and how to report any concemns regarding fraud and
corruption.

Housing Benefit Counter-fraud

3.1 The function for investigating benefit fraud was transferred to the Audit & Risk

Management business unit on 13 December 2010. The HB Fraud Team spent a large
proportion of the third quarter 2010/11 processing outstanding claims and identified
128 existing cases which were able to be closed with no identified fraud.

3.2 In total, during 2010/11, the HB Fraud Team achieved a total of 21 prosecutions,

compared to a total of 16 in 2009/10. Although the capability to apply lower level
sanctions will be retained in future years, the team will focus on securing prosecutions
and working with Legal Services and other services across the Council to recover
money and assets using relevant legislation, including the Fraud Act and Proceeds of
Crime Act.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 12



Page 177

3.3 In 2010/11, the 21 prosecution cases identified a total of £440k in overpaid and
fraudulent benefits, of which £106k (24%) has already been recovered and repayment
plans are in place for the remaining amounts, with a Proceeds of Crime hearing set for
May 2011 for one case (£39k). The team will be working with the HB recovery team and

Legal Services to ensure that all options for recovery are considered when fraud has
been proven.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 13



Page 178



Page 179 Agenda ltem 14

Haringey Council
Agenda item:

Corporate Committee On 20 June 2010

Report Title. Treasury Management 2010/11 out-turn & Quarter 1 2011/12
update :
Report of: Director of Corporate Resources
Signed :
T Cener 10l6ll
Julie Parker

Contact Officer:  Nicola Webb, Head of Finance: Treasury & Pensions
Telephone 020 8489 3726

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Noting

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To report to members on treasury management activity and performance during
2010/11 in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice.

1.2 To update members on treasury management activity during the first quarter of
2011/12.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member
2.1 Not applicable.

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strétegies:
3.1 Not applicable.

4. Recommendation

4.1  That Members note the Treasury Management activity and performance during
2010/11 and the first quarter of 2011/12.




Page 180

5. Reason for recommendation

5.1 To ensure members are aware of the Treasury Management activities undertaken
during 2010/11 and in the first quarter of 2011/12.

6. Other options considered

6.1 None.

7. Summary

7.1 This report sets out the Council’s Treasury Management activity and performance
during 2010/11 as required by the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice.
In addition it provides an update on activity in the first two months of 2011/12.

7.2 During the year £52m of long term borrowing matured and £47m was borrowed.
The difference was financed through use of cash balances. The total borrowing
at the end of the year was £630.8m. The cash balances averaged £43m during
‘the year and the average interest earned was 0.61%.

8. Head of Legal Services Comments

8.1  The Head of Legal Services has been consuited on the content of this report and
comments that its content is within the policy agreed by Council and is consistent
with the purposes of Financial Regulations. There are no specific legal
implications arising from the content of the report.

9. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

9.1  There are no equalities issues arising from this report.

10. Consultation

10.1 Not applicable.

11.  Financial Implications

11.1 The total cost of borrowing during 2010/11 was £42.4m and the interest earned
was £261k. This contributed to the £2.2m underspend against debt financing
costs reported in the out-turn report to Cabinet on 7" June 2011. The underspend
arose due to the use of internal cash balances in lieu of borrowing. This report
shows that £5m of the loans which matured in 2010/11 were not replaced and a
significant proportion of the new borrowing was not taken until the end of the
financial year. These actions minimised financing costs.

12. Use of appendices

12.1 Appendix 1 - Summary of 2010/11 Treasury Management Activity & Performance

Appendix 2 - 2010/11 Prudential Indicators




Page 181

13.
131

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

o Financial Planning Report for 2010/11 to 2012/13 reported to Council
and agreed on 22" February 2010. ‘

o Reports to General Purposes Committee dated 28" June 2010, 23w
September 2010 and 11t January 2011.

For access to the background papers or any further information please contact
Nicola Webb, Head of Finance: Treasury & Pensions, on 0208 489 3726.

14.

141

15.

15.1

15.2

Background

The Council’s treasury management activity is underpinned by CIPFA’s Treasury
Management Code of Practice which requires local authorities to produce annually
Prudential Indicators and a Treasury Management Strategy Statement on the likely
financing and investment activity. The Code also recommends that members are
informed of treasury management activities at least twice a year, including a report
reviewing the activity of the previous financial year within six months of it ending.
These reports enable those tasked with implementing policies and undertaking
transactions to demonstrate they have properly fulfilled their responsibilities, and
enable those with ultimate responsibility for the treasury management function to
scrutinise and assess its effectiveness and compliance with policies and

objectives.

Economic and treasury portfolio background in 2010/11

At the time of determining the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for
2010/11 in February 2010, interest rates were expected to remain low in response
to the fragile state of the UK economy. The UK Bank Rate had been cut to 0.5% in
March 2009 and had remained at this level throughout 2009/10. This continued
throughout 2010/11, as the Bank of England tried to balance lacklustre growth and

rising inflation.

This background meant short term investment rates remained only marginally
above 0.5% during 2010/11. As part of the Spending Review in October 2010, the
interest rates payable on borrowing from the PWLB increased to 1% above the
government’s cost of borrowing. This was done with immediate effect for all new
borrowing increasing all rates by 0.87%. The Council’s existing borrowing was
unaffected by this.



15.3

16.

16.1

16.2

Page 182

The position of the treasury portfolio at the end of the financial year compared to
the previous financial year end is shown in the table overleaf. This shows that in
total the borrowing and investment positions had not changed significantly by the
end of the year. However there was activity during the year as can be seen from
the movements in the categories and the sections below describe this in relation to
both investments and borrowing.

Treasury Portfolio Position at Position at
31/03/10 31/03/11
£000 £000
Borrowing
PWLB Fixed Maturity 490,811 460,806
PWLB Fixed EIP 0 24,000
PWLB Variable EIP 20,000 18,000
Market loans 125,005 125,000
Other Local authorities ' 0 3,000
Total External Borrowing 635,816 - 630,806
Investments
Fixed Term Deposits 6,100 3,400
Call Accounts 17,006 10,400
Money Market Funds 0 14,235
Total Investments 23,106 28,035

Long Term Borrowing

The Council’s borrowing requirement for 2010/11 was estimated in February 2010
to be £41m. In addition £52m of loans were due to mature during 2010/11 and
required re-financing.

The Prudential Code permits the Council the flexibility to bring forward or defer
borrowing in relation to its Capital Financing Requirement. During the year the
significant differential between debt costs and investment earnings seen in
2009/10 continued. In order to eliminate the high “cost of carry” associated with
the higher cost of long term borrowing compared to temporary investment returns
(between 0.5% and 1%), the Council continued to use internal resources in lieu of
borrowing for the majority of the financial year. By doing so, the Council
maintained a low overall treasury risk during the year, however it was recognised
that utilising investments in lieu of borrowing clearly had a finite duration and so
liquidity was monitored closely throughout the year.



16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

16.7

16.8

Page 183

The PWLB remained the Council’s preferred source of borrowing given the
transparency and control that its facilities continue to provide. Loans that offered
the best value in an interest rate environment with a large differential between short
term and long term rates were PWLB medium term Equal Instalments of Principal
(EIP) loans and temporary borrowing from the market.

The movements on the borrowing portfolio during 2010/11 are summarised below:

Balance at | Maturing New | Balance at

01/4/10 loans | Borrowing | 31/3/2010

£000 £000 £000 £000

PWLB Fixed Maturity 490,811 (50,005) 20,000 460,806
PWLB Fixed EIP 0 0 24,000 24,000
PWLB Variable EIP 20,000 (2,000) 0 18,000
Market loans 125,005 5) , 0 125,000
Other Local Authority 0 0 3,000 3,000
Total borrowing 635,816 (52,010) 47,000 630,806

£20m of PWLB fixed rate maturity borrowing was taken at the end of August 2010
for 50 years when rates reached their lowest level for 3 years. The rate achieved
was 3.92%. In February cash balances had dropped to such a level that the
Council’s liquidity was at risk and so three EIP loans were taken from the PWLB for
6 years at an average rate of 2.97%. In addition £3m was borrowed from another
local authority for a period of one year for 1.35%.

The Council’s borrowing costs were £42.4m in total and the average rate payable
on the portfolio had fallen to 6.8% by the end of the financial year.

In all its borrowing activity, the Council complied with the prudential indicators set
for 2010/11. Al borrowing decisions, including the decision to use internal
balances, were taken following advice from the Council’s Treasury Management
Advisor, Arlingclose Ltd.

As a result of the planned reform of Council Housing Finance, the Council is
expecting a reduction in debt of £242m. The Communities and Local Government
Department proposes to settle this by repaying a proportion of each of the
Council’s PWLB loans. The treasury management implications of this are being
reviewed with the Council’s treasury management advisers.



17.

171

17.2

17.3

17.4

17.5

Page 184

Investments - activity and performance in 2010/11

The Council held average cash balances of £43m during the year. The balances
represented working cash balances and the Council’'s reserves. The Council
invested these funds in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement agreed for 2010/11. All investments made during the year complied
with the Council’s agreed Treasury Management Strategy, Prudential Indicators,
Treasury Management Practices and prescribed limits. Maturing investments were
repaid to the Council in full and in a timely manner.

The Council’s investment priorities set out in the 2010/11 strategy were:
1) Security of the invested capital;

2) Liquidity of the invested capital; ‘

3) An optimum yield which is commensurate with security and liquidity.

The investments placed by the Council during 2010/11 reflected these priorities.

Counterparty credit quality was assessed and monitored with reference to credit
ratings (the Council’s minimum long term counterparty rating of A+ across all three
rating agencies - Fitch, Standard & Poors and Moody’s); credit default swaps; any
potential support mechanisms from the UK government and share price.

The Council has sought to minimise its security risk by setting limits on each
institution on the lending list. The Council has complied with all these limits during
2010/11. In addition officers have sought to spread the deposits across the

~ available institutions to further minimise security risk. The table below shows a

breakdown of the Council’s deposits on 315t March 2011:

Institution Long Term Amount % of

Credit Rating (£k) total

deposits

Barclays Bank AA- 3,400 12.1%

Santander UK AA- 10,400 37.1%

BlackRock Money Market Fund AAA 2,150 7.7%

JP Morgan Money Market Fund AAA 500 1.8%

RBS Money Market Fund AAA 11,585 41.3%
Total 28,035

Throughout 2010/11 credit risk scores have been reported to General Purposes
Committee, based on a methodology devised by Arlingclose, the Council's
treasury management advisers. The scores show credit risk on a scale of 0 to 10
on both a value weighted and a time weighted basis and the table below
demonstrates how to interpret the scores:

Above target AAA to AA+ Score 0 -2
Target score AA to A+ Score 3 -5
Below target Below A+ Score over 5




17.6

17.7

17.8

17.9

18.

18.1

18.2

Page 185

The scores during 2010/11 are shown below:

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

2010/11 2010/11 2010/11 2010/11
Value weighted 2.3 2.7 2.2 2.3
Time weighted 3.6 4.2 1.9 3.5

Liquidity has been maintained throughout the year through the extensive use of
AAA rated money market funds and the instant access account with Santander
UK. These investments offered instant access for a rate of return comparable to
that achievable on a one month fixed term deposit.

The table below shows the Council’s deposits at 315t March 2011, the term of each
of the deposits and calculates the weighted average maturity of the portfolio. Due
to the signficant use of instant access investments at present, the weighted
average maturity at present is very low.

Institution Days to Amount (£k)
maturity

Barclays Bank 14 3,400
Santander UK 1 10,400
BlackRock Money Market Fund 1 2,150
JP Morgan Money Market Fund 1 500
RBS Money Market Fund 1 11,585
Weighted Average Maturity 2.6

£261k of interest was earned on the Council’s investments during 2010/11 at an
average rate of 0.61%, 0.11% above the Bank of England base rate.

Update on Icelandic deposits

The administration process for Heritable Bank is being undertaken by Ernst and
Young in the UK. Their work is directed by the creditors’ committee of which the
Council is a member. 56% of Heritable deposits have now been returned — this
amounts to £11.2m in the case of the Council. The overall expected recovery rate
is still expected to be 80-85%.

In April 2011 the Icelandic District Court ruled that local authority deposits in
Landsbanki and Glitnir have priority status. The other creditors have appealed this
decision and the appeal will be heard by the Icelandic Supreme Court during 2011.
The expected recovery rate of these deposits depends on the outcome of this
appeal. The lawyers appointed on behalf of all local authorities are confident about
that the outcome will be in favour of local authorities. If priority status is
confirmed, then the expected recovery is 95% for Landsbanki and 100% for
Glitnir.  However if priority status is overturned then the recovery rates are
expected to be 38% for Landsbanki and 29% for Glitnir.



19.

19.1

19.2

19.3

20.

20.1

20.2

20.3

Page 186

Compliance with Prudential Code indicators

The Council set prudential indicators for 2010/11 in February 2010. The set of
indicators is made up of those which provided an indication of the likely impact of
the planned capital programme and those which are limits set on treasury
management activity. Appendix 2 sets out the original indicators, the out-turn
position for each of the capital indicators and the final year end posmon on each of
the treasury management limits.

Detailed information about the capital expenditure figures can be found in the out-
turn report submitted to Cabinet on 7" June 2011. The incremental impact of
capital expenditure indicators are showing much lower levels than originally set.
The original indicators showed the total Band D Council Tax and weekly housing
rent, rather than only the portion related to capital expenditure not supported by
grants.

None of the limits on treasury management have been breached in the year.
Borrowing is significantly lower than was anticipated when the limits were set, due
to the policy of using internal cash balances to fund the capital programme.

2011/12 quarter 1 update

During the first two months of 2011/12 the cash balances have increased in line
with the cashflow forecast. Therefore there has been no need to borrow and the
total of the borrowing portfolio remains at £630.8m. The average cash balance in
the period was £53.3m and the average interest rate earned was 0.67%.

Moody’s placed Clydesdale Bank’s long term rating on review for possible
downgrade in February and in response to this they were immediately suspended
from the lending list. There are no outstanding deposits with this bank. Although
the rating of it's parent National Bank of Australia has since been downgraded,
Clydesdale remains under review by Moody’s. For this reason Clydesdale remain
suspended.

The table overleaf shows the outstanding deposits at 315t May 2011. It can be
seen that significant use is being made of call accounts and money market funds.
These offer instant access with a rate only achievable with a fixed term deposit of
2-3 months.



20.4 The credit scores for the period were 2.58 on a value weighted basis and 1.75 on a
time weighted basis. These scores are particularly low because of the instant
access nature of the portfolio and the fact around half of the portfolio is invested in

20.5

Page 187

Institution Long Term | Period | Amount % of

Credit to (EK) total

Rating maturity deposits
Nat West Call Account A+ 1 11,130 22.7
Santander UK Call Account AA- 1 15,400 31.3
BlackRock Money Market Fund AAA 1 8,020 16.3
Deutsche Money Market Fund AAA 1 5,600 11.4
Invesco Money Market Fund AAA 1 400 0.8
RBS Money Market Fund AAA 1 8,590 17.5
Total 49,140

AAA rated money market funds.

During May there was one breach of the lending limits agreed by Council in
February 2011. For one day the amount invested in the Deutsche Money Market
Fund was £130,000 above the maximum allowable limit. It was identified the next
day and immediately rectified. Procedures have been reviewed as a result of this

to ensure it does not happen again.




Page 188

Appendix 1: Summary of 2010/11 Treasury Management Activity and Performance

1. Treasury Portfolio 2010/11

Quarter 4 | Quarter 3| Quarter2 | Quarter 1
£000 £000 £000 £000
Long Term Borrowing PWLB 502,806 480,806 520,806 510,811
Long Term Borrowing Market 125,000 125,005 125,005 125,005
Short Term Borrowing 3,000 0 0 0
Total Borrowing 630,806 605,811 645,811 635,816
Investments , 28,035 31,720 67,770 87,934
Icelandic deposits in default 26,989 27,928 28,788 30,030
Total Investments 55,024 59,648 96,558 117,964
Net Borrowing position 575,782 546,163 549,253 517,852
2. Security measure 2010/11
Quarter 4 | Quarter 3 | Quarter 2 | Quarter 1
Credit score - Value weighted 2.3 2.2 2.7 2.3
Credit score ~ Time weighted 3.5 1.9 4.2 3.6
3. Liquidity measure 2010/11
Quarter 4 | Quarter 3 | Quarter2 | Quarter 1
Weighted average maturity:
deposits (days) 2.58 1.0 13.8 41.3
Welghtgd average maturity: 53 5 038 20 6 216
borrowing (years)
4. Yield measure 2010/11
‘ Quarter 4 | Quarter 3 | Quarter 2 | Quarter 1
| Interest rate earned 0.63% 0.63% 0.54% 0.66%
| Interest rate payable 6.63% 6.71% 6.78% 7.00%




Appendix 2: 2010/11 Prudential Indicators

Page 189

No. | Prudential Indicator 2010/11 2010/11
Indicator Out- turn
CAPITAL INDICATORS
1 Capital Expenditure £169,699k £154,903k
2 Ratio of financing costs to net
revenue stream
General Fund 4.67% 5.34%
HRA 33.39% 32.31%
3 Capital Financing Requirement £718,766k £716,449k*
4 | Incremental impact of capital | R
investment decisions - y
Band D Council Tax £1,184.32 £8.22
Weekly Housing rents £83.20 £0.01
TREASURY MANAGEMENT LIMITS .
5 Authorised Limit £900,000k £653,468k
Operational Boundary £875,000k £653,468k
6 Upper limit — fixed rate exposure 100% 97.1%
Upper limit — variable rate exposure 40% 2.9%
7 Maturity structure of borrowing (U:
upper, L: lower) L U
under 12 months 0% | 25% 8.5%
12 months and within 2 years 0% | 25% 7.3%
2 years and within 5 years 0% | 50% 15.9%
5 years and within 10 years 0% | 75% 17.3%
Over 10 years 0% | 100% 51.1%
8 S:gs invested for more than 364 £60,000k 0
9 Adoption of CIPFA Treasury
Management Code of Practice v Vv

* This figure is excluding operating leases converted to finance leases under IFRS.




Page 190



Page 191 Agenda Item 16

Agenda item:

[No.]

Corporate Committee 20 June 2011

Report Title. Establishing a Shared Economic Development Service

Report of Anne Lippitt, Interim Director, Place and Sustainability

Signed : @J\)\ \f{/uw_ f/é/’z/()((

Contact Officer : Marc Dorfman, Assistant Director, Planning & Regeneration

Marc.dorfman @ haringey.gov.uk

02084895538

Wards(s) affected: ALL Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To get approval to establish the new Shared Economic Development Service for
Haringey and Waltham Forest following the formal consultation with staff and their
Trades Unions. The outline service description, and proposed organisational chart
and ring fenced recruitment schedule are appended.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)
2.1. Not applicable

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1 Rethinking Haringey — Outcome 1 Thriving

Regenerating the borough; creating opportunities for employment and educational
attainment; tackling low income and poverty; providing a balance of different types of
home which offer quality, affordability and sustainability

3.2 Sustainable Community Strategy outcome — Economic vitality and prosperity shared




Page 192

by all
3.3 Regeneration Strategy - To put People, Places and Prosperity at the heart of
regeneration in Haringey.

4. Recommendations

4.1.To agree the ongoing work on developing the new shared service including
establishing the service based on the appended organisational structure and ring
fenced recruitment process.

4.2.To have due regard to the authority’s public sector equality duties in relation to the
agreement of Recommendation 4.1.

4.3. As the Council is currently reviewing its approach on tackling worklessness this
report focuses on the core economic development service as set out in the
Cabinet report of 8 February 2011. Delivery and Programme Management posts
will be covered by a separate report following the review of the approach on
tackling worklessness in a future Phase 2 of this reorganisation.

4.4. To note that this is a separate restructure to the Planning, Regeneration and
Economy (PRE) restructure, but will sit within the PRE service. PRE structure is
appended at Appendix 3.

. Reason for recommendation(s)

5.1. Haringey and Waltham Forest Councils have already agreed to develop a shared
Economic Development Service — to be established by the summer of 2011. This
recommendation will enable ongoing work on creating the service to proceed to
schedule and secure the efficiencies and savings outlined in 2011/12.

. Other options considered

6.1. Other options considered were maintaining separate services but these would not
deliver the scale of efficiencies needed and will not facilitate greater sub-regional
working and linkages.

. Summary

7.1.Haringey and Waltham Forest Councils are working to establish a Shared
Economic Development Service which will involve collapsing both current
services into a single reconfigured service.

7.2.This report sets out the establishment of the new shared service and required
proposed changes to the current establishment.

7.3.The current establishment includes 20 staff including 3 fixed term posts (after 4
have taken voluntary redundancy) with 9 in the core Economic Regeneration
service funded through council revenue, 2 in Programme Management funded




Page 193

through LDA grant (fixed term) and 9 in current direct delivery teams Families into
Work and Employment Action Network funded through ABG and LDA grant plus
the Future Jobs Fund Co-ordinator funded through ABG (fixed term.) This report
focuses on changes to the core Economic Regeneration service funded through
council revenue. Programme Management and delivery teams will be covered by
a separate report.

7.4.The proposals for a shared service will see a core shared Economic Development
service of 8 posts to cover both boroughs. A proposed ring fenced recruitment
schedule to these posts is appended at Appendix 1.

7.5.The shared service reorganisation will sit within the wider PRE service. The

proposed PRE structure will consist of the following services:

Building Control

Carbon Management and Sustainability Service

Development Management and Planning Enforcement

Shared Economic Development Service (with Waltham Forest)

Business Development and Technical Support

Please see Appendix 3 for the proposed structure.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1.The draft budget proposals for 2011-12 assume a £75,000 saving from the
creation of a Shared Services model for Economic Development. This is based on
the new structure being implemented around June/July 2011 and thus three
quarters of the full year saving of £100,000 is achievable. The reductions in post
numbers are consistent with this level of saving being achievable, although the
exact level of saving will only be known once Jobs have been evaluated.

9. Head of Legal Services Comments

9.1. A decision by the Committee with implications for the staffing establishment of this
service can only be taken in principle pending the outcome of statutory
consultation with the trades unions and consultation with the staff affected. It is
noted that this consultation is yet to commence.

9.2. The decision in principle must pay due regard to the authority’s public sector
equalities duties, including consideration of the attached equalities impact
assessments.

9.3. The carrying out of this proposal must comply with the Council’s procedures
concerning restructuring. The position of staff who may be displaced as a result of
this reorganisation will need to be considered under the terms of the Council’'s
procedures regarding redeployment and redundancy.

10. Head of Procurement Comments —[ Required for Procurement Committee]
10.1. Not Applicable




Page 194

11. Equalities &Community Cohesion Comments

11.1. An Equality Impact Assessment on the shared service re-organisation has
been carried out and is appended to this report (Appendix 2).

12. Consuitation

12.1. Informal consultations have been undertaken with staff in Economic
Regeneration at team meetings in January, February and March 2011

12.2. A formal consultation with staff and trades unions was carried out between 4
April and 6 May 2011 including a formal consultation meeting on 11 April 2011.

12.3. Responses were received from Unison, a collaborative staff response and 2
individual responses relating to the work roles of programme management staff
and suggestions for a new post within the delivery team. The main issues raised
were around consultations across two boroughs, recruitment to the new service,
location, management, possible redundancies, employment rights, funding of the
shared service, the future and make up of the delivery team (funding),
governance and accountability of the new service.

12.4. The management responses are included in the appended EqIA and also
appended at Appendix 4.

13. Service Financial Comments

13.1. As per the Chief Financial Officer comments above. Furthermore, any
expenditure incurred in the setting up of the shared service will be contained
within the existing revenue budget

14. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

14.1. Appendix 1 — Shared Service outline

14.2. Appendix 2 — Shared Service Reorganisation EqlA
14.3. Appendix 3 — PRE Structure

14.4. Appendix 4 — Consultation Responses

15.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
15.1. Not Applicable




Page 195

Appendix 1

A Shared Economic Development Service for Haringey and Waltham
Forest

Background

Local authorities are facing substantial spending reductions which will impact on
service delivery especially on non-statutory services. Further following Total Place
initiatives and the development of the Coalition Government’s “Big Society” approach
combined with the current efficiency agenda puts shared service delivery in the
centre ground of Government policy. No longer can public bodies automatically take
the stance that undertaking any activity on a standalone basis is the most cost
effective way of going forward. A new Shared Services approach is needed to
release efficiencies across the system and support delivery more focused on
customer needs. Shared services provide public service organisations with the
opportunity to reduce waste and inefficiency by re-using assets and sharing
investments with others.

Following agreement at Cabinets in February 2011 work on sharing Economic
Development services in both boroughs is progressing.

The Shared Service

Economic Development covers work areas and priorities around employment and
skills focussing on tackling worklessness, and attracting investment for business and
enterprise with the overall objective of enabling economic prosperity for residents of
both boroughs through supporting job creation and local enterprise.

Work programmes and streams covered by a shared economic development service
include:

Strategy

Develop agreed shared strategy and high level outcomes and KPIs
Implementation and reporting on strategy and outcomes
Cross-borough partnerships — enterprise, business, employment
Liaising with and linking sub-regional and regional priorities, initiatives

Tackling Worklessness
e local programme delivery and programme management
links with the Work Programme
commissioning and contract management
external funding
cross-borough partnerships and delivery
partnership working with JCP/DWP
policy and strategy developments and responses
procurement/contracts and local labour

Working with local businesses
e understand and address skills gaps in the labour market
* broker relationships with private sector businesses to secure job opportunities
for local people
o develop and link to local enterprise initiatives
inward investment



Page 196

encourage, support and promote an enterprising culture
develop business support initiatives leading to job creation
establishing apprenticeship opportunities

policy and strategy developments and responses
procurement/contracts and local businesses

Developing and establishing a social enterprise
e Outsourcing operational delivery of interventions and programmes of activity
focussing on tackling worklessness, social inclusion and promoting youth
employment initiatives into a new social enterprise.

Location

The Shared Service will have a physical presence in both boroughs with both the
Head of Service and Economic Development Manager dividing their times between
the boroughs and each borough having access to Economic Development Officers.

Milestones

Phase 1 - Development of service and model via Compatibility Analysis and the
Implementation and Engagement Process - January 2011- March 2011

Staff consultation — April/May 2011

Recruitment to Shared Service — July 2011 _
Phase 2 - Shared Service established with Head of Shared Economic Development
Service - August 2011

Develop agreed shared strategy and high level outcomes — September 2011
Develop agreed shared KPIs and reporting mechanisms - September 2011

Service work programme agreed — September 2011



Page 197

e )

182410

Hoddng uiwpy

et
{4A 18)e ueden)
90pu0sas

JUBULSOAU| PIEMU|
e e )

(TR
JOJRUIRIO
-09 JuawdojeAsq

ssauisng
— e )

)

Jo01j0 uijid
\——

(| e R )
(2) (esudiajuzg
» ssauisng)

SIBOHO Adliod
|\t A o

(Fr LUV O
uue} pexiy) vai
Jebeuryy
swweibold

o
190140 =
uopesausboy
e
(o oA TUT ) FF YU US
1820 0} uus) paxid) (HA Jeye juedep) vai vai vai ogy
awweiboid —/ 101BUIDIO-0D J0JBUIpIO 18010 uoddns (2) siesiApy. 189140 (2) s1e010
» Aoljod pun4 sqop ainn4 -0D dasyiom JuswAoldwz JuswAodwz o J00l0id 101UBS poddng Ajwey
L | | |

(sims (HA J8ye JuedEA) ogy
» JuswAhojdw3) JOJeuIpIO Jsbeueyy
199130 Adtjod -00) uoljeisuabay JUOM Ojul Seljwe

(JA s0ye JueseA)
Jebeuepy asudiojugy

» sseuisng

SIS

» JuawAo|dws)

Jabeuepy
uopessuabay

(3ueoep)
uojjeseusbey

2|LLIOU0DT JO peaH
‘Hodal djesedas e Aq paianoa aie Aay) ‘aimondysai sy} jo ued jou ase pue sysod papuny jueib aie soyey ui sysod iy
1 LOZ Yodey Mey) jeuonesjuebiQ uonesauabay d1wouosy Juaiing



LOS 418210 Hoddns juswidojgasq 2iwiouody

(s1oeloid » Adijod)

SOd () s192130 uswdojpAsg oIWLouodg

==

20d (Asbuue) 100 w4

Page 198

(Buuoyuopy ¥ s}oenuoD)
20d 19010 uswdojpaag J1Louodg

[

L

LINS Jebeuepy juswdojarsq diwouody

¢LOd/ENS 8dIAI8S paJeys Jo pesH

ainjonqs |euonesiuebig pasodoud
991alas Juawdojanag d1wouo9g paleys




Page 199

95E1693 S90IAI8S 1sai04 weyleM B AsbulieH V101

CSEEVET V10l
19010 Bunojuo

192110 Bunoyuopy

1abeuep s|INS ¥ uswAhojdwg

1aBeuey 1098l01d

labeuey JuswAojdwg

juawdojanag d1Wou093 Jo pesH

1102 dunr ® 99lAles Juawdojanag d1WoU0dT 1S40 Weylem

Y00€SES Tv10l
lojelisiuiwpy

(s@9) wyy ybnoiyy papuny) 19O Wi

19010 uoneisuabay

lojeulp1o-07) yuswdojeasq ssauisng

(esudisyug ® ssauisng) 19210 Adlj0d

(esudiaug g ssauisng) 18010 Ad1j10d

(slMS *® wswAhodws) 180130 Adljod

(1 102 Iudy Aouepunpay Asejunjop) Jebeuely asudisiug g ssauisng
(sus % weawAholdws) sobeuepy uoneisusbay

(9%0€ punoJe Jo adoueINSUl [euoieu ‘ucisuad s}s09-uo Buipnjour)
LLOZ dunpe @ saliejes 39IAIRS uolelauabay slwouosz AabulieH

sbujiaes pue sbuiysos aoinIag paleys



Page 200

996.¢c3

S61€€C3
S61€£€C3

06€9913

99IAJ9S paJeys wouy sbuines TvY.10L

18404 weyyem
AabuneH
sybnoJog 0} a9IAI9g JO 1S09)

Iv1i0l

(s@9} wiy ybnoiyy papuny) (Aebuue) Jeayo wii4
190140 voddng uoielsuabay

1901)J0 uonelausbay

12010 Juswdojaaag d1uouoog

18210 Juswdojensg 21LoU0d]

192110 Juswdojaaag d1Wou09] JoIuaS

19210 Wwawdojeasg d1WOU0d] I0jUSS

Jabeuey Juswdojpaag d1wLouo0dg

90IMBS JO pesH juior

(%0€ puno.e Jo asueinsul jeuoneu ‘uoisuad S}S02-uo Buipn|our)
LLOZ ¥ISnbBny @ 991A19S Jusawdojanag o1wouo9] paleys



Haringey Council

Page 201

Proposals For Ring Fenced Recruitment

Head of Shared Economic
Development Service

Head of Economic Development (LBWF)
Closed Ring Fence

Economic Development Manager

Regeneration Manager (LBH)
Closed Ring Fence

Economic Development Officer
(Policy & Projects) x 4

Closed ring fence
Policy Officers (LBH) x3
Project Manager (LBWF)

Economic Development Officer
(Contracts & Monitoring)

Open ring fence

‘Business Development Co-ordinator (LBH)

Regeneration Officer (LBH)
Employment & Skills Officer (LBWF)

Economic Development Support
Officer

Administrator (LBH)
Assimilated into post

Film Officer (Haringey)

Film Officer (Haringey) Assimilated into post




Page 202



Page 203

Haringey

Haringey Council

Equalities Impact Assessment (EqlA)
for Organisational Restructures

Date: 18 February 2011

Department and service under review: PRE — Economic Regeneration

Lead Officer/s and contact details: Martin Tucker, Regeneration Manager,
0208489 2932

Contact Officer/s (Responsible for actions): Martin Tucker, Regeneration
Manager,

Summary of Assessment (completed at conclusion of assessment to be used as
equalities comments on council reports)

The Equalities Impact Assessment for service restructures should assess the likely
impact of restructuring on protected equalities groups of employees by: age, disability,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex (gender),
sexual orientation.

Page 1 of 17




Page 204

The assessment is to be completed by the business unit manager with advice from
HR. Itis to be undertaken by an assessment of the basic employment profile data and
then answering a number of questions outlined below.

Page 2 of 17



Page 205

PART 1
TO BE COMPLETED DURING THE EARLY STAGES OF CONSULTATION WITH
STAFF/ UNIONS ON THE STRUCTURE

Step 1 — Aims and Objectives

1. Purpose — What is the main aim of the proposed/new or change to the existing
service?

It is proposed to establish a new Shared Economic Development Service for the
boroughs of Haringey and Waltham Forest.

2. What are the main benefits and outcomes you hope to achieve?

Shared services between the two boroughs can deliver services at reduced costs
in a time of reduced resources.

3. How will you ensure that the benefits/ outcomes are achieved?
The move to a shared service would be a phased process with:

Phase 1 - Development of full business case following Compatibility Analysis and
Implementation and Engagement process by March 2011.

Phase 2 — shared joint economic development service with joint Head of Economic
Development overseeing the service and strategic commissioning with
commissioning leads for each borough and a soft split between commissioning and
operational delivery by June 2011

Phase 3 — single strategic commissioning economic development service with
operational delivery outsourced into a social enterprise established by December
2011.

The first phase of developing alternative models for delivery will be closer
collaborative working between the two borough services with Phase 2 being the
establishment of the new shared service. Phase 3 will include the establishment of
a social enterprise for operational delivery.

Phase 1 - Development of full business case and model via Compatibility
Analysis and the Implementation and Engagement Process

In the last quarter of 2010/11 January — March 2011 work on developing the full
business case and model for the shared service based on the approach and

Page 3 of 17



Page 206

processes set out in the agreed Memorandum of Understanding between Haringey

and Waltham Forest on Shared Services will be undertaken.

This work will include a Compatibility Analysis — high level evaluation - looking

at Strategic Fit, IT systems, Processes, Staff arrangements, Governance, Service
standards, Cost Sharing, Risks, and Organisational Arrangements and once this is

completed progressing through the Implementation and Engagement Process
including a full business case and design of the new shared service.

Phase 2 — a Shared Service

This service would see the collapsing of current provision in both boroughs to be
replaced by a new slimmer service.

Phase 3 - A Social Enterprise

As local authorities retract and refocus on core statutory services over the next few

years it is inevitable that more non-statutory services will be delivered by
organisations external to local councils.

Economic development and regeneration is currently and will remain a priority for

both boroughs as they recognise the importance of tackling worklessness and
supporting local businesses in order to deliver economic prosperity through job
creation and enterprise. However in light of changing policy priorities and

spending reductions it is not a requirement of local authorities to deliver economic

development delivery services themselves and this can be outsourced to a local
provider through establishing a new social enterprise based on the operational
delivery elements of the shared service in Phase 2.

Step 2 — Current Workforce Information & Likely Impact of
your proposals

Note — there is an Excel template that accompanies the EIA Service Restructure

template on Harinet. This is to help you complete the tables of staff information and %

calculations. You will also find the latest Annual Council Employee Profile on Harinet
(based on data for a financial year) to help complete the council and borough profile
information. Ask HR if you cannot find it.

1. Are you closing a unit? NO

e If No, go to question 3.

Page 4 of 17



Page 207

e If Yes, please outline how many staff will be affected broken down by race, sex
(gender), age and disability.

e In addition if you have information on the breakdown of your staff by the following
characteristics: gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, religion or belief,
sexual orientation; you must consider the impact on these groups.

2. Can any staff be accommodated elsewhere within the service, business unit or
directorate?

e If Yes, identify how many by race, sex, age and disability. And where possible
identify the number by gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, religion
or belief, and sexual orientation.

Race

3.Provide a breakdown of the current service by Grade Group and Racial Group
following the format below.

No. of
Total Race
Staff in Not % of % of White % of % of BME % BME%

Grade Servic | Declared | Service | White | Service | Other | Servic | BME | Service in Borough
Group e Staff Total Staff Total staff | e Total | Staff Total Council Profile
Sc1-5 0
Sc6-S02 |3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 100 57
PO1-3 12 0 0 4 33 1 8 7 58 46
PO4-7 6 0 0 3 50 1 17 2 33 39
PO8+ 2 0 0 1 50 0 0 1 50 19
TOTAL 23 0 0 8 35 2 9 13 57 54 34.2

4. Highlight any grade groups that are very under represented (10% or more
difference) compared with the council profile and where relevant the borough profile.

NONE
5. Do any ring fences disproportionately impact on staff from one ethnic minority group
(whi’E?e, white other, asian, black, mixed race) or Black & Minority Ethnic (BME) staff
NO.

e If No, go to question 8.

e If Yes, how many of these staff might be displaced?

Page 5 of 17



Page 208

6. By how much does these staff change the % (percentage) of BME staff in the
structure? Show start and end %.

7. Can any of these staff be accommodated elsewhere within the proposed new
structure or can you amend the structure to accommodate them e.g. consideration of
flexible working or reduced hours including flexible retirement, voluntary reduction of
grades, etc.?
e If Yes, how many and what effect do they have on the BME %? Show start and
end %.

Gender

8. Provide a breakdown of the current organisation by Grade Group and Gender
breakdown following the format below

% %
Total No. % of No. % of Females | Females
Grade Staff in Male | Service | Female | Service in in

Group Service | Staff Total Staff Total Council | Borough
Sc1-5

Sc6 - SO2 0 0 3 100 74
PO1-3 12 4 33 8 67 62
PO4-7 &) 83 1 17 64
PO8+ 2 2 100 0 0 52
TOTAL 23 11 48 12 52 67

9. Highlight any grade groups that are very under represented (10% or more
difference) compared to the % of females/males in the council.

Grades PO4-7 and PO8+ in the service show significant under representation of women
compared to the council figures

10. Do any ring fences disproportionately impact on impact on female or male staff?
NO

e If No, go to question 13.

e If Yes, how many female / male staff might be displaced?

11. By how much do these staff change the % (percentage) of female/male staff in the
whole structure? Show start and end %.

12. Can any of these staff be accommodated elsewhere within the proposed new
structure or can you amend the structure to accommodate them e.g. consideration of

Page 6 of 17



Page 209

flexible working or reduced hours including flexible retirement, voluntary reduction of
grades, etc.?

Age

If Yes, how many and what effect do they have on the female/male%? Show
start and end %.

13. Provide a breakdown of the current organisation by Grade Group and Age
breakdown following the format below

16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65+ TOTAL
% of % of % of % of % of % of

Grade No. Grade No. Grade No. Grade No. Grade No. Grade No. Grade
Group Staff | Group | Staff | Group | Staff | Group | Staff | Group | Staff | Group [ Staff | Group | STAFF
Sc1-5
Scb6 - SO2 1 33 2 67 3
PO1-3 4 33 6 50 2 17 12
PO4-7 3 50 2 33 1 17 6
PO8+ 1 50 1 50 2
TOTAL 0 0 8 35 8 35 3 13 4 17 23
Council
Profile 138 3 812 18 1124 | 25 1600 | 35 831 18 56 1 4561
Borough
Profile 13.9 26.6 22.8 15.5 9.5 11.7

14. Highlight any grade groups with a high level of staff from a particular age group

compared to the compared to the council profile.

Staff in the age group 25-34 are almost twice the council profile 35% compared to 18%
while staff in age group 45-54 are less than half of the council profile 13% compared to

35%.

15. Do any ring fences disproportionately impact on staff from one age group only? NO

If No, go to question 18.

If Yes, how many of these staff might be displaced?

16. Does the displacement of these staff result in no representation of staff from a
particular age group within the structure as a whole? NO

17. If Yes, can any of these staff be accommodated elsewhere within the proposed

new structure or can you amend the structure to accommodate them e.g. consideration
of flexible working or reduced hours including flexible retirement, voluntary reduction of
grades, etc.?

Page 7 of 17




Page 210

e If Yes, how many and what effect do they have on a particular age group? Show
start and end %.

Page 8 of 17



Page 211

Disability

18. Identify the total number of disabled staff in the service following the format below:

Disabled employees

% of Grade Council
Grade Group No. Staff Group profile
Sc1-5
Sc6 - SO2
PO1-3
PO4-7
PO8+
TOTAL 0 0 7%
Borough Profile 7.6%

19. Do any ring fences disproportionately impact on disabled staff? N/A
e If No, go to question 21.

e If Yes, how many of these staff might be displaced? Show start and end numbers
and %.

20. Can any of these staff be accommodated elsewhere within the proposed new
structure or can you amend the structure to accommodate them e.g. consideration of
flexible working or reduced hours including flexible retirement, voluntary reduction of
grades, etc.?

e If Yes, what effect will this have on the number of disabled staff? Show start and
end numbers and %.

21. In addition to the above analysis of race, sex, age and disability you will need to
consider the impact on groups with the following characteristics: gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, religion or belief, sexual orientation. Please ask HR for help
with the data on:

Gender Reassignment
Religion/ Belief

Sexual Orientation
Maternity & Pregnancy

The Council does not a present monitor in any systematic way by any of these
characteristics, so we do not have reliable data on them. However, as part of
implementing the Equality Act 2010 in Haringey, the Council’s employment related
monitoring systems will be updated to include all the characteristics protected by
that Act, including Gender Reassignment, Religion/Belief, Sexual Orientation and

Page 9 of 17



Page 212

Maternity and Pregnancy. This will enable data on these characteristics to be
collected across the Council.

22. If you provide services to residents please also identify the potential impact/ issues
relating to the change in service delivery as a result of your proposals.

Part of the current Economic Regeneration service, which will be reduced to
accommodate the new shared service, focuses on operational delivery of employment
& skills interventions and programmes of activity to Haringey residents.

13 of the current staffing establishment are directly involved in this service delivery
through the Haringey Guarantee programme. The Haringey Guarantee is externally
funded and reductions in that funding will result in reductions in staffing (2 have taken
VR) and a reduced programme. However the reduced programme will still maintain its
equalities targets and will still predominantly focus on deprived wards and thereby
lessen the equality impact. The reduced programme in 2011/12 will be a programme
focussed on employment support leading to sustained employment and will include
delivery partners with the best strategic fit, best performance, value for money plus local
presence and connection — this will include the 4 Star rated EAN based in
Northumberland Park combined with the innovative Families into Work project, the
successful work placements provision, the NHS led Working for Health focussing on
health conditions, IB and disability, and a local job brokerage based in Tottenham with
excellent links to BME businesses.

A full Equality Impact Assessment has being undertaken on budget reductions affecting
the Haringey Guarantee programme.

Date Part 1 completed - 18 February 2011

PART 2
TO BE COMPLETED AT THE END OF CONSULTATION WITH STAFF/ UNIONS
ON THE STRUCTURE

Step 3 — Consultation

Outline below the consultation process you undertook, what issues were raised
(especially any relating to the eight equalities characteristics).

Informal consultation discussions took place at Economic Regeneration team meetings
in January, February and March 2011.

Page 10 of 17



Page 213

A formal consultation commenced on 4 April 2001 and ran until 6 May 2011 and
included a formal consultation meeting on 11 April 2011.

Responses were received from Unison, a collaborative staff responses and 2 individual
responses relating to the work roles of programme management staff and suggestions
for a new post within the delivery team.

The main issues raised were around consultations across two boroughs, recruitment to
the new service, location, management, possible redundancies, employment rights,
funding of the shared service, the future and make up of the delivery team (funding),
governance and accountability of the new service.

The management responses are:

Consultations

Both boroughs operate similar policies on reorganisation/restructuring and
redeployment and although it was preferred that the consultation in the two boroughs
ran simultaneously with both completing in early May. Both boroughs are in agreement
to the proposals going forward as an interim measure pending work currently in
progress with regards to finalising a Memorandum of Understanding to establish an
agreed approach between the two London Boroughs.

Recruitment

Recruitment to the shared service will be in line with Haringey’s and LBWF recruitment
processes under restructuring policy and a range of support is available to staff through
the Haringey Supporting Change programme to support staff in preparing for interviews
etc. Recruitment panels will include staff from both boroughs for the shared service but
where there are posts dealing with delivery in Haringey panels will comprise solely
Haringey staff. Alternative ring fence proposals were submitted regarding posts on the
delivery side which will be fully considered when decisions are made about the future of
local delivery. Previous open ring fences have now been changed to closed ring fences
with the exception of the Economic Development Officer (Contracts & Monitoring) which
remains an open ring fence. The job descriptions for respective roles for both boroughs
are generic and aligned to reflect the respective grades according to the Borough pay
grading structure . It is planned to have the shared service in place by August 2011 with
recruitment undertaken in July — normal periods of notice and redeployment will be
adhered to for affected staff.

Location

Staff will continue to work from their current locations and attend relevant meetings in
the two boroughs. Staff will also be able to work flexibly in both boroughs. Currently
staff attend out of borough meetings and this will not change in the shared service.

Management

As this is a new service covering two boroughs there is a need for 2 management posts
reflecting the equal role for each authority and the importance of sharing the
management responsibilities on strategic and operational areas.

Page 11 of 17



Page 214

Redundancies/Redeployment

As with other reviews/restructures full council policies apply including the option to apply
for voluntary redundancy which would be considered on a case by case basis. Council
policy on displacement of staff and redeployment will be fully followed. Costs of
redundancies will be borne by the relevant employing authority of any staff displaced.
There are currently no part-time staff employed in Economic Regeneration. Current
flexible working arrangements will be honoured under the shared service.

Employment Rights

On employment staff currently employed by Haringey will continue to be employed by
Haringey if and when appointed to the shared service, disciplinary and grievances will
be dealt with by and under a staff member’s employing authority. This will be an interim
arrangement until the shared service model is established and long term agreements
and arrangements on accountability and governance are established. There will also be
considerations for secondment opportunities between both boroughs.

Funding

The shared service will be funded by both Haringey and Waltham Forest Councils on an
equal 50/50 basis sharing full costs. The length of the agreement between both
boroughs, and notice for opting out agreements is currently under review and further
consideration.

Delivery Team

The Council are reviewing its approach to tackling worklessness and the future of any
programme(s) and staff involved in delivery will be determined following that review. It is
likely that this will be accommodated in a future Phase 2 of this reorganisation

Governance and Accountability

Work is ongoing on establishing the shared service model including governance and
accountability. This will include agreements on reviews of shared services. Staff in the
respective economic development services are and will continue to be employed by the
Authority which employed them prior to the (partnership agreement) and are ultimately
accountable to their respective Head of Paid service. To the extent that staff make
decisions on behalf or for one or the other of the authorities, they do so on the basis of
specific or general delegated authority from the relevant Authority.

Step 4 — Address the Impact

1. Are you in a position to make changes to the proposals to reduce the impact on
the protected groups e.g. consideration of flexible working or reduced hours
including flexible retirement, voluntary reduction of grades, etc. - please specify?

Page 12 of 17



Page 215

The shared service will deliver greater efficiency and shared resources across
the two boroughs. As indicated in section on the current workforce information
and likely equality impact on the workforce, the ringfence does not impact
disproportionately on groups that have any of the protected characteristics
covered in this assessment — race, gender, age and disability. Consequently,
none of those protected characteristics will be disproportionately adversely affect
compared to their size in the current staff profile.

What changes or benefits for staff have been proposed as a result of your
consultation?

Changed 2 “open” ring fences to “closed” ring fences

If you are not able to make changes — why not and what actions can you take?

The essential structure of the shared service is unchanged in order to deliver the
scale of efficiencies needed and facilitate greater sub-regional working and
linkages.

Do the ringfence and selection methods you have chosen to implement your
restructure follow council policy and guidance?

Ringfence and selection methods fully follow council policy and guidance and
have been agreed with HR.

Will the changes result in a positive/ negative impact for service delivery/
community groups — please explain how?

Establishing a shared economic development service in Haringey and Waltham
Forest would look to increase efficiency and reduce costs through delivering a
single service across two boroughs. This would not have any negative impact on
people from equality groups, promotion of equality in general or promotion of
community cohesion.

How can you mitigate any negative impact for service users?

Economic development and regeneration is currently and will remain a priority for
both boroughs as they recognise the importance of tackling worklessness and
supporting local businesses in order to deliver economic prosperity through job
creation and enterprise.

Focus on tackling worklessness by maintaining local delivery, links with Work
Programme, commissioning and contract management, external funding, cross-
borough partnerships and delivery, partnership working with JCP/DWP, policy
and strategy developments and responses.

Page 13 of 17



Page 216

¢ Enhanced working with local businesses across two boroughs to understand and
address skills gaps in the labour market, broker relationships with private sector
businesses to secure job opportunities for local people, develop local enterprise
initiatives to encourage, support and promote an enterprising culture, develop
business support initiatives leading to job creation, including establishing
apprenticeship opportunities.

Date Steps 3 & 4 completed — 31 May 2011

Page 14 of 17



Page 217

Step 5 — Implementation and Review

1. Following the selection processes and appointment to your new structure are
there any adverse impacts on any of the protected groups (the eight equalities
characteristics). Please identify these.

2. If there are adverse impacts how will you aim to address these in the future?

3. Identify actions and timescales for implementation and go live of your new
service offer.

4. If you are not in a position to go ahead on elements of your action plan — why not

and what actions are you going to take?
5. Identify the timescale and actions for review of the restructure to ensure it
achieved the expected benefits/ outcomes.

This section will be completed after the proposals have been implemented.

Page 15 of 17



Page 218

Step 6 — Sign off and publication

There is a legal duty to publish the results of impact assessments. The reason is not
simply to comply with the law but to make the whole process and its outcome
transparent and have a wider community ownership. You should summarise the
results of the assessment and intended actions and publish them.

COMPLETED BY (Contact Officer Responsible for undertaking this EqglA)

NAME: Martin Tucker
DESIGNATION: Regeneration Manager

\N\&C;g’a‘m}(g -

DATE: 18 February 2011

SIGNATURE:

QUALITY CHECKED BY (Policy, Equalities & Partnerships,)

NAME: Inno Amadi
DESIGNATION: Senior Policy Development Officer

SIGNATURE: Oﬁ/

DATE: 3 June 2011

SIGNED OFF BY Director/ Assistant Director

NAME:
DESIGNATION:
SIGNATURE:
DATE:

SIGNED OFF BY Chair Directorate Equalities Forum

NAME:
DESIGNATION:
SIGNATURE:
DATE:

Page 16 of 17




Page 219

Note - Send an electronic copy of the EqIA to equalities@haringey.gov.uk; it will then
be published on the council website

Page 17 of 17



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 221

wea|
awwelboid
|eyded I

(0g1)
awwelboid
|endeD jo peay

(£-50d)

1900 Ane]
aunjonusesyu]
Aunwwod
(y0d-10S)
(Hodsued])
19010 Buluueld
(y0d-10S)
(Hodsuel])
19010 Buluueg
(y0d-L0S)
(uodsueu])
1920 m:_EEm_&
(¥Od - 1L0S)
(juewabeuey (2-60d)
juswdojanaq) (Hodsued])
190130 Buluueld Jabeuepy
awuwelbold
(10d - 998) (+Od - 10S) Buluueld
19010 Hoddng (yuswabeuepy lediound
JuswadIoug yuawdojana() (yOd-10S)
® NG Je00 Buluueld (speloid) $0d-10S)
19010 Buluueld 19910 19210 w4
(L0d-90S) (LOd = 998) (yOd = LOS) seoInosey
19010 poddng 19010 Hoddng (uawabeuepy (yOd-10S) |ejusWwUoIIAUT (Buloyuopy
uonelaubay juawaoiopug juswdojanaq) (uonensasuo) 3 SJOBRAUOD)
3 Bujuue|q 3 Na 1900 Buuueq % ubisaq) (yOd-10S) 190140
19010 Buluueld 19010 Juswdojersq
(10d-998) (10d - 998) (+Od - 10S) $301N0s3Y olwouoog
19010 Hoddng 19010 Hoddng (yuswabeuepy (eod) |ejuswiuoAUg
uolesausboy juswisoloug juawdojaneq) 18010 19010 Hoddng
8 Buluueld 2 NQ (g-zod) Je00 Buluueld Auenod jend (£-60d) juswdojereq
Jokening bul Jabeuepy olWwouoo]
(z-10d) (LO0d — 998) (+0d - LOS) (+Od-108S) swweiBold
1800 18010 Hoddng (g-z0d) (uswabeuepy 1921110 S92In0say (syoaloid IOSIApY
juswabeuepy juswaoiopug Jokaning Buy| juswdojanaq) Buijgqeu3 BuisnoH |eluswuoIIAUg ® Koljod) yswAholdws
Jaquisy ® N 19010 Buluueld Jedioud 19010
LECTYES (e-z0d) (¥0d-108) Juswdojeraq 10SIAPY
uonelauaboy (Lod — 998) Jokening bul (yOd — LOS) 19210 (¥Od-10S) olWwouoo] wawAojdws
» Buluue|d 19010 Hoddng (yuswabeuepy Buiiqeu3 buisnoy (uoneasasuod
juswaoloug (yod) juswdojanaq) ® ubisaq) (syoaloig JOSIApY
(1od) ® NQ Johening Bu Je030 Buluueld (¥Od-10S) 180130 Buluueld % Aoljod) jusw/ojdwz
1220 192110 19210
(Butioyuopy (L0d — 99S) (+Od) (+0d - LOS) Buijqeus Buisnoy (+Od-108) Juswdojereq 10SIAPY
sjoalold 19010 Hoddng Jokening Bul (uswabeuepy (Aa1j0d) 2lWouoo] waw/Aojdwg
lewssix3 3 901.S) jusweIopug juswdojeneq) (¥0d-10S) 18030 Buluueld
juswebeuely B Na (10d - 998) (90d) (¥0d-10S) 12010 Buluueld (uoneiasuog (syosfoid 10SIAPY
|eroueul 19010 Jokaning (juswaoioug) 9 uonelauaboy) (¥Od-10S) ® Koljod) wswAoldws
uopessuabay (L0d — 99S) yoddng og 1900 Bujuueld (+0d - 10S) 1200 Buluueld (Koljod) 12010
pue Buluueld 19010 Hoddng (yuswabeuepy 190140 Buluueld juawdojanag Jabeuepy
juswaolojug (LOd —999) (yOd-10S) juswdojanaq) (2-50d) olWwouoo] wea| Aianlleg
(vod) ® NG 18010 (Juswaoiopuz) Je00 Buluueld (uonessuaboy (£-60d)
1200 yoddng 0g 1800 Buluue|d (2-60d) 1ead1sAud) (Aoijod Buiuueld) (syosloig 18210
jyuswdojene (L0d — 998) (yOd — LOS) (syosloid Jofepy Jebeuepy J1ebeuepy 2 £olj0d) swwelbold
ERIINETSY 19010 Hoddng (LOd — 99S) (90d) (y0d-10S) (uawabeuepy R Juswabeue|y swwelboid awuwelbold 19010
uonelauaboy juswaoiopug 19010 Jokaning (juawaoioug) juswdojanaq) juswdojara(y) Buluuelq Buluuelq juawdojanag Jabeuepy
® Buluue|q ? NA yoddng 0g Buip|ing Jus 18010 Buluueq 190130 Buluueld 1820 |edioung ledioundg olWwouoo] swweibouid
Buluueld jediuud
( ) ( ) ( ) :S_Qw\mOnc
10d 10d LINS/80d Hodsuel]
(50d) (5-70d) s|eaddy juswebeuep sjosfold Jolely B Q Jabeuepy
oddns Na@ uoddns o8 d bl ‘Buisnol USWUOIIAU plelidoioioa
J9pea wea | Jopea weas | B JUBWISIOT juswdorensg ublseq "buisnoH ¥ . 'Aug olWouody
Jopea wea| JopeaT wea| JopeaT wea| Buluueld
lapea wes ]
f
(tns)
(1ns) Juswsoloug fa Am\mmc_\_,._mws S
poddng [eoluyos | Buluued S uonessuabey
dojanaq@ R Juswebeuep eI W olWou0o3
G Buipjing Jo peaH uogqied
ssauisng Jo pesaH juswdojersg Jo pesH julor
Jo peaH
10 peaH

VSN

(Zns)
10}0811Q JuB)SISSY

110z Ael

ainjoni)g uonesauabay B Bujuuel|d pasodoid




Page 222

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 223

Appendix 4
Shared Economic Development Service Consultation

Informal consultation discussions took place at Economic Regeneration team
meetings in January, February and March 2011.

A formal consultation commenced on 4 April 2001 and ran until 6 May 2011
and included a formal consultation meeting on 11 April 2011.

Responses were received from Unison, a collaborative staff response and 2
individual responses relating to the work roles of programme management
staff and suggestions for a new post within the delivery team.

The main issues raised were around consultations across two boroughs,
recruitment to the new service, location, management, possible redundancies,
employment rights, funding of the shared service, the future and make up of
the delivery team (funding), governance and accountability of the new service.

The management responses are:

Consultations

Both boroughs operate similar policies on reorganisation/restructuring and
redeployment and although it was preferred that the consultation in the two
boroughs ran simultaneously with both completing in early May. Both
boroughs are in agreement to the proposals going forward as an interim
measure pending work currently in progress with regards to finalising a
Memorandum of Understanding to establish an agreed approach between the
two London Boroughs.

Recruitment

Recruitment to the shared service will be in line with Haringey’s and LBWF
recruitment processes under restructuring policy and a range of support is
available to staff through the Haringey Supporting Change programme to
support staff in preparing for interviews etc. Recruitment panels will include
staff from both boroughs for the shared service but where there are posts
dealing with delivery in Haringey panels will comprise solely Haringey staff.
Alternative ring fence proposals were submitted regarding posts on the
delivery side which will be fully considered when decisions are made about
the future of local delivery. Previous open ring fences have now been
changed to closed ring fences with the exception of the Economic
Development Officer (Contracts & Monitoring) which remains an open ring
fence. The job descriptions for respective roles for both boroughs are generic
and aligned to reflect the respective grades according to the Borough pay
grading structure . It is planned to have the shared service in place by August
2011 with recruitment undertaken in July — normal periods of notice and
redeployment will be adhered to for affected staff.



Page 224

Location

Staff will continue to work from their current locations and attend relevant
meetings in the two boroughs. Staff will also be able to work flexibly in both
boroughs. Currently staff attend out of borough meetings and this will not
change in the shared service.

Management

As this is a new service covering two boroughs there is a need for 2
management posts reflecting the equal role for each authority and the
importance of sharing the management responsibilities on strategic and
operational areas.

Redundancies/Redeployment

As with other reviews/restructures full council policies apply including the
option to apply for voluntary redundancy which would be considered on a
case by case basis. Council policy on displacement of staff and redeployment
will be fully followed. Costs of redundancies will be borne by the relevant
employing authority of any staff displaced. There are currently no part-time
staff employed in Economic Regeneration. Current flexible working
arrangements will be honoured under the shared service.

Employment Rights

On employment staff currently employed by Haringey will continue to be
employed by Haringey if and when appointed to the shared service,
disciplinary and grievances will be dealt with by and under a staff member’s
employing authority. This will be an interim arrangement until the shared
service model is established and long term agreements and arrangements on
accountability and governance are established. There will also be
considerations for secondment opportunities between both boroughs.

Funding

The shared service will be funded by both Haringey and Waltham Forest
Councils on an equal 50/50 basis sharing full costs. The length of the
agreement between both boroughs, and notice for opting out agreements is
currently under review and further consideration.

Delivery Team

The Council are reviewing its approach to tackling worklessness and the
future of any programme(s) and staff involved in delivery will be determined
following that review. It is likely that this will be accommodated in a future
Phase 2 of this reorganisation

Governance and Accountability

Work is ongoing on establishing the shared service model including
governance and accountability. This will include agreements on reviews of
shared services. Staff in the respective economic development services are
and will continue to be employed by the Authority which employed them prior
to the (partnership agreement)and are ultimately accountable to their
respective Head of Paid service. To the extent that staff make decisions on



Page 225

behalf or for one or the other of the authorities, they do so on the basis of
specific or general delegated authority from the relevant Authority.



Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 227 Agenda Item 18

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 228

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 229

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 231

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 232

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 233

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 234

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 235

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 236

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 237

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 240

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 241

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 246

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 247

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 250

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 251

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 252

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 253

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 254

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 255

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 256

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 257

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 258

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Final  minutes18 04 2011
	Final GP minutes 04.05.2011
	Final Minutes 19.05.2011
	Draft minutes - Audit 19 April 2011 - approved by Chair
	Unrestricted draft mins - 12 Apr
	Unrestricted Minutes

	6 Corporate Committee Terms of Reference & Protocols
	20110517Item044DraftProtocolCorporateCommittee

	7 Quarterly Pension Fund update including Investment Strategy Review Update
	8 Pension Fund Governance Compliance Statement
	10 Grant Thornton  Grant Report for 2009/10
	LBH 2009-10 Grants report Certification work report FINAL

	11 Progress Update
	LBH AAM 10-11 FINAL

	12 Draft Annual Governance Statement 2010/11
	13 Annual Audit Report and Assurance Statement 2010/11
	14 Treasury Management 2010/11 Out-turn & Quarter 1 2011/12 update
	16 Establishing a Shared Economic Service
	Shared Service Appendix 2
	Appendix Shared service Appendix 3
	Appendix 4 Shared Economic Development Service Consultation

	18 Exempt Minutes
	Exempt Minutes 040411
	Exempt minutes 190411
	190411_16.00 EXEMPT Minutes
	Exempt Minutes 19.05.2011
	Exempt draft mins - 12 Apr
	Draft CEJCC minutes - 1 February 2011
	CJCC mins 2011.03.31
	eXEMPT  Minutes
	07.04.2011  disciplinary minutes
	03.05.2011  disciplinary minutes
	09.05.2011  disciplinary minutes


